

Walden University ScholarWorks

Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies

Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies Collection

2022

Business Strategies for Small Business Survival in Competitive **Environments**

Wangtzu Moualawtoua Walden University

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.waldenu.edu/dissertations



Part of the Finance and Financial Management Commons

Walden University

College of Management and Human Potential

This is to certify that the doctoral study by

Wangtzu Moualawtoua

has been found to be complete and satisfactory in all respects, and that any and all revisions required by the review committee have been made.

Review Committee

Dr. Christopher Beehner, Committee Chairperson, Doctor of Business Administration
Faculty

Dr. Rollis Erickson, Committee Member, Doctor of Business Administration Faculty

Dr. Judith Blando, University Reviewer, Doctor of Business Administration Faculty

Chief Academic Officer and Provost Sue Subocz, Ph.D.

Walden University 2022

Abstract

Business Strategies for Small Business Survival in Competitive Environments

by

Wangtzu Moualawtoua

MBA, Metropolitan State University, 2014

BS, National University of Laos, 2005

Doctoral Study Submitted in Partial Fulfillment
of the Requirements for the Degree of
Doctor of Business Administration

Walden University

July 2022

Abstract

The majority of small business auto dealerships in the United States close due to business failure within the first 3 years of operation. Small business auto dealership owners who lack business strategies risk financial loss resulting in business failure. Grounded in the resource-based view theory, the purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore strategies small business auto dealership owners used to sustain organizations beyond 5 years. There were six participants, including owners and managers from three small business auto dealerships in Sacramento, California, who used strategies to sustain business operations beyond five years. Data were collected through semistructured interviews, and a review of company websites and company documents. Through thematic analysis, five themes emerged: customer satisfaction, internet marketing, business knowledge, human capital, and effective supervision. Key recommendations include developing programs to reward exceptional customer service employees, and forming alliances with other automotive industry stakeholders to cultivate collaborative business relationships and create additional marketing opportunities. Implications for positive social change include the potential to expand employment opportunities in the community resulting in increased tax revenues and possible increased contributions to local nonprofit organizations.

Business Strategies for Small Business Survival in Competitive Environments

by

Wangtzu Moualawtoua

MBA, Metropolitan State University, 2014

BS, National University of Laos, 2005

Doctoral Study Submitted in Partial Fulfillment
of the Requirements for the Degree of
Doctor of Business Administration

Walden University

July 2022

Dedication

I dedicate this study to my wonderful wife, Julie Moua, for her inspiration and trust in my motivation and support throughout the doctoral journey. Without her being such a wonderful wife and good mother to my kids, I could have had difficulty completing my doctoral journey. I also dedicate this study to my children, Yenghoua, Yangchengxeng, Yenglengchi, Athena, Alena, and Alisa, for their support and contribution toward accomplishing this study. I would like to dedicate this time to thank my great parents, Mouaxaytoua and Kaying, who just passed away in the last 2 years, for their support as great parents in inspiring my doctoral journey. I want to thank all my siblings, nieces, nephews, and friends for their encouragement and support. I completed my doctoral achievement because their inspiration encouraged me to work hard days and nights to conduct and achieve this study. I hope that my achievement will be a source of inspiration to future generations of my family, cousins, and friends to encourage them to become higher educators.

Acknowledgments

Thank God for the grace, strength, and gift that I had the opportunity to complete my doctoral study. I want to thank my chairman, Dr. Chris Beehner, for his support, feedback, suggestions, and guidance throughout the doctoral process. Dr. Beehner was always willing and ready to help, encourage, and advise me tremendously in completing my doctoral study. I also want to thank Dr. Rollis Erickson, my second committee member, and Dr. Judith Blando, university research reviewer (URR), for their guidance and support. Thank you to all the participants who participated in the interviews to share their business knowledge, experience, and success in completing this study.

Table of Contents

Section 1: Foundation of the Study	1
Background of the Problem	1
Problem Statement	2
Purpose Statement	3
Nature of the Study	3
Research Question	5
Interview Questions	5
Conceptual Framework	6
Operational Definitions	6
Assumptions, Limitations, and Delimitations	8
Assumptions	8
Limitations	8
Delimitations	9
Significance of the Study	9
A Review of the Professional and Academic Literature	10
Resources-Based View Theory	12
Alternative Theories	23
Firm Resources	32
Competitive Advantage and Sustained Competitive Advantage	46
Organizational Culture Resource	57
Organizational Economy Performance	62

Organizational Business Mode Strategy	72
Small Businesses	76
Small Businesses Failure	78
The Key Constructs of Business Models	81
Competitive Business Model	82
Value Creation and Resource Integration	85
Business Process Management and Performance	89
Transition	93
tion 2: The Project	95
Purpose Statement	95
Role of the Researcher	96
Participants	99
Research Method and Design	102
Research Method	102
Research Design	103
Population and Sampling	105
Ethical Research	109
Data Collection Instruments	112
Data Collection Technique	114
Data Organization Technique	121
Data Analysis	122
Reliability and Validity	127

	Reliability and Validity	128
	Reliability	128
	Validity	129
	Transition and Summary	131
Pre	esentation of Findings	132
	Emergent Theme: Customer Satisfaction	134
	Emergent Theme: Internet Marketing	141
	Emergent Theme: Business Knowledge	145
	Emergent Theme: Human Capital	153
	Emergent Theme: Effective Supervision	157
	Applications to Professional Practice	161
	Implications for Social Change	163
	Recommendations for Action	164
	Recommendations for Further Research	169
	Reflections	170
	Conclusion.	171
	References	172
	Appendix A: Interview Protocol	283
	Appendix B: Interview Questions	284

List of Tables

Table 1. Sources of Data for Literature Review	12
Table 2. Customer Satisfaction	
Table 3. Internet Marketing	138
Table 4. Business Knowledge	143
Table 5. Human Capital	
Table 6. Effective Supervision	155

Section 1: Foundation of the Study

Small business leaders operate in competitive environments that increasingly require a competitive advantage to respond to changes in the supply chain and increased customer demands (Hopkin & Blyth, 2019). Sustaining a competitive advantage is challenging for many small and medium-sized business leaders in a competitive environment (Sikandar et al., 2021). Small businesses such as auto dealerships are valuable and significant in their contribution to the U.S. economic development, expansion, and improvement regarding processes of innovation, job creation, income generation, and business dynamics (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019). Competitive advantage is one concern for small business owners because many small and medium-sized businesses have already grown (Bvuma & Marnewick, 2020). As a result, the objective of this study was to explore business strategies that small business owners use to sustain their organizations in a competitive environment.

Background of the Problem

Small businesses account for half of all U.S. private sector employment, generate more than one half of the gross domestic product (GDP), and create approximately two thirds of all net new jobs (Cuadros et al., 2021). Small business sectors are significant in U.S. market economies that involve job creation, income generation, and business dynamics (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019). In the last two decades, small business owners have created approximately 7 million new jobs in business industries (Chuang & Zhao, 2019). Small businesses total approximately 30 million firms in the United States, representing nearly 99.9% of all U.S. employer firms, employ 48% of private sector employees and

provide 41.2% of the total U.S. private payroll (Turner & Endres, 2017). Small businesses create new jobs for the community at large (Cuadros et al., 2021).

Decreasing small business failure rates can involve improving management strategies (Agostini et al., 2019). Small business firms fail at a high rate of 50% within the first 5 years (Nizam, 2017). High business failure rates may lead to bankruptcy and cause increasing unemployment rates in communities at large (Nizam, 2017). Small business firms, such as auto dealerships, consider having highly competitive advantages over other similar comparators (Rua et al., 2018). Small business owners' lack of education, training, capabilities, experience, and management strategies can contribute to incompetence and, eventually, small business failures (Agostini et al., 2019). To succeed, small business owners should improve their business management strategies to defeat the competition and gain new customers (Postavaru et al., 2019). Improving management skills, business performance, customer service strategies, and development plans are important for organizational leaders to sustain a business (Postavaru et al., 2019).

Problem Statement

The Small Business Administration (SBA) reported that 66.67% of U.S. small business auto dealerships failed and closed during the first 2 to 3 years (Bhandari et al., 2019). In 2012, the statistics reported by the U.S. Department of Commerce (2012), closing small business auto dealerships contributed to a loss of 500,000 to 1 million jobs and caused a decrease of \$1 to \$5 million in profit for state taxes (Hudson et al., 2019; Minchin, 2020). The general business problem was that some small business owners started auto dealerships with inadequate business strategies. The specific business

problem was that some small business auto dealership owners lacked business strategies to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years.

Purpose Statement

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain organizations beyond 5 years. The targeted population was three small business auto dealership owners in Sacramento, California who used strategies to sustain business operations beyond 5 years. The study results may contribute to social change by reducing business failures and improving organizational practices in the small business automobile industry. Leaders may use the findings to create additional jobs for local communities using and implementing a data-driven strategic plan for new auto dealership startups.

Nature of the Study

Three types of research methods are qualitative, quantitative, and mixed. My choice for the research study was the qualitative method. Researchers use the qualitative research method to explore complex sets of business issues and present varied perspectives or meanings of participants (Gehrke, 2019). The qualitative method is useful for researchers to identify participants' meanings and focus on a single concept or phenomenon (Farquhar et al., 2020). Researchers use the qualitative method to provide descriptive information, assist in conceptualization, and develop a better understanding of phenomena. Using the qualitative method can provide a way to obtain an in-depth understanding of the underlying reasons, attitudes, and motivations behind various human behaviors.

In contrast, quantitative research involves numbers, logic, and objective measurements. Researchers use the quantitative research method to accumulate facts using numerical data and evaluate relationships and differences among variables (Cotta de Mello et al., 2020). Mixed methods research includes both qualitative and quantitative methods. In the quantitative analysis stage, mixed method researchers also collect and analyze data, integrate findings, and draw inferences (Behnke et al., 2020; Lanka et al., 2021). Because this study was designed to explore what strategies small business owners used to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years, rather than to examine or establish a relationship, neither the quantitative nor mixed method was suitable for this research study.

The primary qualitative designs are phenomenological, ethnographic, narrative, and case study. Phenomenology is a design that researchers employ to gain an understanding of the subjective meaning of people's lived experiences (Deniers, 2019). Phenomenological research was not appropriate because the study was not intended to explore the meanings of lived experiences of small business owners. Ethnography is a design that researchers use to study cultural practices (Woermann, 2018). Ethnographic research was not appropriate because I explored business strategies and was not attempting to understand the shared patterns of beliefs within a group's culture. Researchers use a narrative research design to focus on multiple participants and their personal stories or experiences of phenomena (Madden et al., 2018). A narrative research design did not fit this study because an individual's life experiences were not important to determine successful auto dealership business strategies. A narrative research design was

not appropriate because I explored business strategies and did not attempt to explore personal stories. Researchers use a case study design to explore a bounded system through in-depth data collection, involving multiple sources of information and describing key themes related to phenomena (Pathiranage et al., 2020). Using a case study can provide an opportunity for researchers to gain a deep, holistic view of a research problem (Lv et al., 2019); therefore, a case study design using semistructured, open-ended questions were appropriated to explore participants' perceptions and experiences in the small business auto dealerships.

Research Question

The central research question of this qualitative study was the following: What business strategies do small business auto dealership owners use to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years?

Interview Questions

- 1. What are the strategies you used for business sustainability in the competitive auto dealership market?
- 2. What methods did you use to assess the effectiveness of your strategies?
- 3. How, if at all, did you use the assessment data to change or enhance strategies for sustainability?
- 4. What were the adjustments, if any, made to achieve planned benchmarks?
- 5. What additional information would you like to provide to improve business skills to manage a small business through competitive advantage?

Conceptual Framework

The conceptual framework for this study was the resource-based view (RBV) theory. Barney (1991) developed the RBV theory to describe the internal sources of a firm's strategic resources and sustained competitive advantages. The RVB is an influential theory in the field of management strategies regarding the competitive advantage and organizational sustainability (Shibin et al., 2020). Within the RBV theory, there are four organizational sources of competitive advantage that leaders may use to sustain a business: resources that are (a) valuable, (b) rare, (c) inimitable, and (d) nonsubstitutable (Uwizeyemungu et al., 2018). The tenets of the RBV theory are firm resources, competitive advantages, and sustained competitive advantages in formulating innovation strategies. The RBV theory was suitable for this study because it aligned with exploring competitive strategies for sustainability in small businesses such as auto dealerships. Small business leaders might use the RBV theory to optimize the utilization of resources, develop business strategies, and create a competitive advantage for business sustainability.

Operational Definitions

Competitive advantage: Competitive advantage is a firm's benefit that enables a firm to outperform competitors by using unique and rare attributes, such as superior service quality, business resources, highly experienced labor, differentiation, and service convenience (Chao-Hung, 2019).

Dealer: A dealer refers to a person, an individual, or a legal entity that operates automobile dealerships (Famiyeh et al., 2018).

Auto dealership: An auto dealership is a business that sells new or used cars at the retail level based on a dealership contract with an automaker company (Borchardt et al., 2018).

Marketing competition: Marketing competition is related to change in a firm's business objectives and their revision, product development, regular modification as per market demands, and maintenance of good relations with society and other stakeholders (Purchase & Volery, 2020).

Organizational competition: Organizational competition is defined as competitive advantage that can obtain the capability of generating value, products, services, and ideas, which enable organizations to compete through quality (Masoomzadeh et al., 2019).

Service competition: Service competition is defined as the creation of valuable alterations in the services that customers use and is considered as valuable ideas to advance service efficiently (Dotzel & Shankar, 2019).

Small business: A small business is a company that has under 500 employees (Sepulveda, 2021).

Social competition: Social competition is defined as a novel solution to a social problem that is more effective, efficient, sustainable, or just than current solutions (Taylor et al., 2020).

The resource-based view (RBV) theory: The RBV theory is a basis for leaders to create competitive advantage for business sustainability (Barney, 2001).

Assumptions, Limitations, and Delimitations

Assumptions

Assumptions are beliefs that certain things are facts without verification.

Assumptions are statements that researchers assume to be true without concrete evidence to support and verify them (Kane, 2020). Conducting a qualitative study, I assumed that I could get the best results from the qualitative method for the research topic. An additional assumption was that a case study was an appropriate design for the research study. Using a case study design, I assumed that conducting semistructured interviews with multiple participants could provide more validity to the research results. The next assumption was that practitioner participants could provide honest, truthful, and comprehensive responses to the interview questions and not intentionally introduce bias. A final assumption was that the participants could respond to the interview questions accurately.

Limitations

Limitations are potential weaknesses of a study that researchers would are not able to control. Limitations of the research study are the shortcomings, influences, and conditions that researchers cannot control (Seifzadeh, 2017). The first limitation was the geographical location. The study location was the Sacramento area of California, and the results may not apply to areas with either smaller or larger populations. Luo and Chong (2019) indicated that small auto dealerships are more significant and successful in rural areas than urban areas. The data from my research study might not reflect, replicate, or imitate the enthusiasm of small business owners in other non-rural areas.

The sample size of small business auto dealership owners might have limited the study because the sample size might not represent all of the small automobile industries in the United States. My finding might not apply to small business auto dealerships comparatively larger in scope and capacity. An additional limitation was the possibility that potential for the selected small business owners might not share the full extent of their business strategies, choices, and experiences in an interview setting.

Delimitations

Delimitations in research are boundaries that researchers introduce to limit and control the scope of a study (Kanyane, 2019). In this study, these boundaries included the decision to limit the research site to a particular geographical location and the decision to focus on three particular automobile dealerships. The first delimitation of this study was the geographical location. Another boundary of the study was that I selected only small business auto dealership owners in Sacramento, California, who had a business experience of more than 5 years. In the study, I planned to focus on the three practitioners' experiences with business management strategies that they successfully used to sustain their organizations for over 5 years.

Significance of the Study

Business leaders seek management strategies to prevent business failure. Business failure may increase the unemployment rate in local communities (Toussaint-Comeau et al., 2020). Small business leaders could benefit from the findings of the study to improve the effectiveness of business strategies, decrease business failure, and increase management skills. The findings may aid small business leaders in developing business

management plans to prevent business failure in the automobile industry. Implications for positive social change may include the potential to provide new business knowledge for small business auto dealership owners to increase educational training for employees, improve professional services to customers, improve automobile sales productivity, and reduce unemployment. Improving customer services, decreasing unemployment rates, and increasing productivity could benefit for the small auto industry by increasing organizational revenues and growth.

A Review of the Professional and Academic Literature

The literature review involves identifying new ways to interpret prior research, providing a context for the research, highlighting flaws in the previous research, and determining what articles in scholarly journals contribute to the topic (Ganusauskaitė & Vveinhardt, 2020; Simsek et al., 2018). Schonberger and Vasiljeva (2019) identified that literature reviews typically include overview information, synthesis, and a critical assessment of previous research; challenge or problematize existing knowledge; and construct narrative research problems and promising research questions. The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years. In this literature review, I identified professional and academic literature on small business auto dealerships' success and related research topics.

The databases and library materials used to search the literature for this qualitative multiple case study included Academic Search Complete, EBSCOHost, Business Source Complete, ProQuest Central, ProQuest Dissertations, SAGE Publications, ScienceDirect,

Government Databases, and Google Scholar. I searched the Walden University Library resources for peer-reviewed journal articles to support the literature review. The primary database search terms included (a) sustainability theory, (b) sustainable competitive advantage, (c) successful and unsuccessful small business auto dealerships, (d) business strategy, (e) customer relationship, (f) business competitive environment, (g) business marketing, (h) competitive advantage, (i) small business development and improvement, (j) small auto dealerships, (k) resource-based view theory, (l) organizational competition, (m) marketing competition, (n) organizational capability and resources, (o) alternative theory, (p) social networking, (q) cultural competition, (r) business sustainability, (s) business model, and (t) strategic customer services.

The literature review in this qualitative multiple case study includes a critical analysis and synthesis of literature related to the RBV theory. The review of professional and academic literature includes an overview of the RBV theory and the competitive business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their organization and gain a competitive advantage. I used scholarly sources and peer-reviewed journals for the literature review. The literature review strategy consisted of searches using 670 articles in the original databases with the key terms listed above.

Table 1 represents the references of the (a) peer-reviewed journal articles, (b) books, (c) dissertations, and other sources in the doctoral study. This literature review contains 81.20% of the 538 peer-reviewed journal articles, two dissertations, one book, and three other sources that had publication dates between 2018 and 2022. The literature review also contains 18.80% of the 126 articles that were published prior to 2017. The literature

review includes the following main categories: (a) RBV theory; (b) alternative theories; (c) firm resources; (d) competitive advantage and sustained competitive advantage; (e) organizational culture resource; (f) organizational economy performance; (g) organizational business mode strategy; (h) small businesses; (i) small business failure; (j) the key constructs of business models; (k) cognitive business model; (l) value creation and resource integration; and, (m) business process management and performance.

Table 1Sources of Data for Literature Review

Publications	Published within 5	Older than 5 Years	% of sources
	years of expected		
	graduation date of July 08, 2022		
Books	01	02	0.45%
Dissertations	02	04	0.89%
Others	03	01	0.60%
% of total	81.20%	18.80%	100%
Total sources	670		

Resources-Based View Theory

Proponents of the RBV theory focus on primary elements of strategic advantage, competitiveness, sustainability, and performance that may enable small business leaders to optimize internal resources (Barney, 1991). Researchers use the RBV theory to

understand how firms maintain a sustainable competitive advantage by using organizational resources including valuable, rare, inimitable, and nonsubstitutable resources (Elbanna & Abdel-Maksoud, 2020). Organizational resources are the primary determinants of competitive advantage, including firms' innovativeness (Shibin et al., 2020). Barney (1991) noted that to generate sustainable competitive advantage, a firm resource must have four attributes: (a) the resource must be *valuable*, in the sense that it exploits opportunities or neutralizes threats in a company's environment; (b) the resource must be *rare* among a company's current and potential competition; (c) the resource must be imperfectly *imitable*; and (d) the resource must be nonsubstitutable, in that there cannot be strategically equivalent substitutes for it (Bosquetti et al., 2017). According to the RBV theory, a firm's resources are significant components in formulating a sustainable competitive advantage.

Cao and Chen (2019) identified the application of the RBV theory as implementing competitive strategies for business sustainability, profitability, efficiency, or organizational design in business practices and marketing competition methods.

According to the RBV theory, competitor intelligence, policy formulation, business procedures, brands, marketing, distribution, and service capabilities provide significant benefits in differentiation that leaders use to develop a competitive advantage (Pai-Chin et al., 2019). Using such resources could help small business auto dealership owners to sustain their organizations and improve the management of competitive advantage strategies (Khan et al., 2021). Proponents of the RBV theory argue that a firm's resources provide a valuable theoretical lens for small business leaders to explore business

strategies for their competitive advantage and sustainability (Khan et al., 2021). Rahman (2020) proposed that each small business has a unique portfolio of challenging resources to achieve in the competitive environment. Consequently, small business auto dealership owners should understand how they could employ resources efficiently to gain a competitive business advantage and better performance.

The concept of the RBV theory may assist leaders of auto dealerships to understand better how they can manage resources efficiently and achieve a competitive advantage to sustain their organization (König et al., 2019). According to the RBV theory, a small business leader can gain a competitive advantage by using an appropriate business competitive strategy in the marketplace (Khan et al., 2021). The RBV concept highlights the importance of valuable, rare, inimitable, and nonsubstitutable resources to create capabilities for small business leaders to achieve a competitive advantage (Rahman, 2020). The concept of the RBV theory has significant direct resources on a small business's aspiration levels in sustaining a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners must decide what resources to use to develop a sustainable competitive advantage (Khan et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners can choose to seek new resources or apply the RBV theory as a source of competitive advantage to sustain their organization (Viglioni & Calegario, 2021). Small business leaders should consider the RBV theory a significant source to improve their business and overcome competition by attracting customers and maintaining better customer services (Viglioni & Calegario, 2021).

The effectiveness of the application of the RBV theory depends on the ability of small business managers and owners to incorporate achievement strategies, as well as how they use their resources to gain competitive advantage (König et al., 2019). Small business leaders can achieve a sustainable competitive advantage by using valuable resources and capabilities that are inflexible in supply (Fornes & Cardoza, 2019). Firm resources include all assets, capabilities, information, and knowledge that an organization controls to implement strategies to improve its efficiency and effectiveness (Rahman, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can use resources to conceive and implement business strategies to improve their proficiency and competitive advantage (Yuen et al., 2019). Firm resources can create value for an organization's competitive advantage either directly or indirectly by obtaining strategic competencies, such as differentiation or cost advantage (Bloodgood, 2019). Bloodgood (2019) also identified that by aligning their operating systems with a competitive advantage strategy, firms can create human capital and return value to their organizations. Thus, firms can accumulate, influence, and gain advantage from tangible and intangible resources resulting in value creation (Akbari et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a sustainable competitive advantage by implementing valuable, rare, inimitable, and nonsubstitutable resources.

Valuable Resources

A valuable resource is one of the categories of significant resources discussed in the RBV theory. A firm's resources create value when organizational leaders use them to implement a competitive advantage or provide a sustained competitive advantage through increased efficiency and effectiveness (Dungan et al., 2020). Resources are valuable when they assist small businesses in exploiting internal business opportunities or minimizing external threats (Abel et al., 2016). Using external opportunities is insufficient to achieve and improve a firm's competitive advantage because competitors may possess the resource (Shin & Lee, 2019). Organizations must have the infrastructure to realize the full competitive potential of their resources by exploiting the business resources to result in a competitive advantage (Venables et al., 2019). Leaders strive to implement and use resources to gain a competitive advantage (Divatia, 2018).

The resources of small business auto dealerships are valuable only as a source of competitive advantage or sustained competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners can use valuable resources to exploit an internal opportunity or neutralize external threats to improve the organization's competitive advantage (Saqib et al., 2020). Valuable resources can decrease the net cost, increase the net revenues, and enhance the firm's service quality beyond attainable limits (Martinez et al., 2019). If small business auto dealerships fail to exploit valuable resources, they may have a competitive disadvantage (Perkins et al., 2020). Suppose that a resource that a small business auto dealership possesses is not a valuable resource; in that case, leaders should not choose and implement strategies that exploit opportunities and neutralize threats from the environment (see Perkins et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should consider resources valuable if they can be used to improve the firm's performance, exploit market opportunities, or mitigate threats.

Small businesses can obtain valuable resources when they are underpriced (Barney, 2001). A competitive advantage can be attained if only one competing firm possesses a valuable resource and anticipates and exploits the competitive imperfection within strategic factor markets by using private information (Barney, 2001; Raimundo et al., 2018). Private information includes databases, organizational capabilities, and firm resources (Raimundo et al., 2018). The value created by available resources is a function of confidential information to purchase in the market (Venables et al., 2019). Leaders seeking to obtain above standard returns or high profits from implementing product market strategies must have more accurate expectations consistently about the future value of those strategies when acquiring the resources necessary to implement the market strategies (Venables et al., 2019).

Organizational leaders can earn a profit rate over the cost of capital based upon two factors: the attractiveness of the business location, and its establishment of competitive advantage over rivals (Dungan et al., 2020; Orr, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should emphasize the industry's attractiveness as the primary basis for superior profitability (Raimundo et al., 2018). The implication is that strategic management primarily seeks favorable industry environments, locating attractive segments and strategic groups within industries, and moderating competitive pressures by influencing industry structure and competitors' behavior (Dungan et al., 2020).

Rare Resources

A rare resource is another significant resource touched on in the RBV theory. A resource must be rare to be a source of sustained competitive advantage; valuable

resources that are not rare cannot be sources of competitive advantage (Ferreira & Fernandes, 2017). Resource rareness implies that competitors cannot access a particular resource or only have limited access to the resource (Saqib et al., 2020). Perkins et al. (2020) indicated that valuable and rare resources ensure the firm's survival and aid the firm in achieving competitive advantage, equality, and parity in the industry. Advocates of the RBV theory state that the rarer a value-generating resource is, the more likely it will be a significant source of a sustained competitive advantage for a firm (Ferreira & Fernandes, 2017). The RBV perspective maintains that firms within an industry might develop differentiated resources and capabilities, heterogeneous in value and rareness (Abel & O'Brien, 2017). Firm resources should aid the company in establishing competitive advantages; leveraging these advantages help to improve both short and long-term firm performances (Ferreira & Fernandes, 2017).

Abel and O'Brien (2017) identified that as long as many other firms do not simultaneously implement a strategic resource, the resource is adequately rare to create a competitive advantage. Many firms possess the same valuable resource, and each firm exploits that resource in a similar way; none of the firms achieve a competitive advantage (Abel & Bressan, 2016); therefore, for small business auto dealerships to gain a competitive advantage, their resources must be valuable and rare. Rare and valuable capabilities are the key drivers of economic gains that can contribute to small businesses' performance and competitive advantage (Abel & O'Brien, 2017). If a firm wants to sustain these advantages over time, its organizational resources must also be inimitable and nonsubstitutable (Saqib et al., 2020). Organizational resources include organizational

capabilities and performances (Albrecht et al., 2018; Kaukab et al., 2020). Organizational resources demonstrate characteristics, such as being unique, rare, valuable, and nonsubstitutable, leading to achieving competitive advantage (Bhatti et al., 2020). Organizational capabilities refer to capabilities that leaders use to organize tangible and intangible resources to execute an activity to improve business performance (Bhatti et al., 2020; Liu & Hsin-Feng, 2020). Leaders can also use organizational performance to enhance relationships with external stakeholders such as suppliers and customers (Aboramadan et al., 2020; Bhatti et al., 2020; Liu & Hsin-Feng, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should need organizational capabilities and performance to obtain a competitive advantage over their competitors (Aboramadan et al., 2020; Bhatti et al., 2020).

Inimitable Resources

An inimitable resource, which sustains rarity over time, is another source of sustainable competitive advantage and high performance (Kaukab et al., 2020). An inimitable strategy is a valuable and rare resource that competitors cannot duplicate (Kaukab et al., 2020). The concept of inimitable strategy is that firms can sustain relative performance and competitive advantages only if their existing assets (i.e., marketing strategy, business information, and stakeholder data) cannot be imitated by potential rivals (Saqib et al., 2020). An imitation strategy is one of many ways that two firms may become similar in appearance, advantage, and performance (Koh et al., 2018). Small business leaders should make technological progress and deploy a combination of valuable and rare resources that competitors cannot imitate and substitute (D'Oria et al.,

2021). Developing employee stakeholder relationships and combining valuable and rare resources are critical sources of sustainable competitive advantage (Freeman et al., 2021). Small business leaders should consider trusting stakeholder relationships as valuable and difficult (if not impossible) to imitate by competitors (Freeman et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners can attempt to outsource these relationships, but presumably, so can competing firms. Small businesses that want to achieve genuinely inimitable; stakeholder relationships must be organically homegrown (Freeman et al., 2021).

Gibson et al. (2021) stated that small businesses could be imperfectly inimitable for a combination of three reasons: (a) when its valuable and rare resources are obtained through a unique historical marketing condition; (b) if the links between a firm's resources and its sustained competitive advantage mechanism are poorly understood by competitors; and, (c) if a firm's resources, such as interpersonal relations among managers, employees, and reputations are complicated situation. If small business auto dealerships obtain valuable and rare resources because of their unique business history, the organization may exploit those resources in implementing value-creating strategies that cannot duplicated by other small businesses (Biloshapka & Osiyevskyy, 2018). Without a unique path through history, small business auto dealerships cannot obtain the resources necessary to implement this specific strategy (Biloshapka & Osiyevskyy, 2018). Alternatively, suppose the link between small business auto dealerships' resources and sustained competitive advantage is causally ambiguous; in that case, it becomes difficult for competitors to know which resources and strategic advantages they should

imitate (Gibson et al., 2021). A small business auto dealership's resources might be imperfectly imitable because of socially complex phenomena beyond the ability of other organizations to manage and influence systematically, such as the organization's culture, reputation among suppliers, and interpersonal relations among their managers (Alonso, 2019).

For small business auto dealership owners to sustain a unique position, leaders must seek creative ways of configuring the various elements and sub-elements of the marketing mix so that their new marketing offerings are perceived to be different (Lahtinen et al., 2020). Small business auto dealerships must have a systemic program of constant improvement, continuous innovation, and an incessant zeal to reconfigure the marketing mix in new and ingenious ways (Mahajan & Golahit, 2020). They must aim to be change initiators and market leaders, not simply followers of trends set by their pioneering competitors (Shokrani et al., 2019). These strategies will ensure that the firm's marketing offering continues to be a resource of competitive advantage over a long period (Lahtinen et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can design marketing processes that include structure, systems, policies, and procedures that support better decision making and faster competition implementation (Mahajan & Golahit, 2020). Since the structure and systems of small business auto dealerships are proprietary, tacit, and intangible, they are much more difficult to imitate than the relatively more tangible aspects of marketing strategy, such as product features, pricing, promotion, advertising, and distribution (Mahajan & Golahit, 2020).

Nonsubstitutable Resources

A resource is nonsubstitutable when competitors cannot duplicate the strategy provided by the resource bundle of a particular firm (Alonso, 2019). For a firm's strategic advantage to be a nonsubstitutable resource, there must be no other resources to take their place when implementing its strategy (Ashby et al., 2017). A nonsubstitutable resource becomes a sustained competitive advantage when current and potential competitors cannot duplicate the benefits of the implemented strategy (Tamminen et al., 2018). To achieve a sustained competitive advantage, leaders should possess valuable, rare, inimitable, and nonsubstitutable resources (Tamminen et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should use these resources to achieve a sustained competitive advantage over competitors (Valls-Fox et al., 2018).

To ensure sustainable competitive advantage, small business auto dealership owners must establish themselves with virtuous quality services for other firms seeking innovation, capabilities, and solutions to the marketplace challenges (Borza et al., 2021). As a result, small business auto dealership owners fully utilize their assets and resources through strategic collaboration. These assets and resources provide benefits in the form of these innovative capabilities and capacities for firms (Priaulx & Weinel, 2018). The attribute of strategic collaboration can represent an extension of insufficient imitable and nonsubstitutable resources (Priaulx & Weinel, 2018).

Firms with no strategically equivalent valuable resource, either imitable or rare, must exist (Tamminen et al., 2018). Small business auto dealerships with no strategically equivalent resources need to implement specific strategies to create a sustained

competitive advantage because these resources are imperfectly imitable, rare, and valuable (Tamminen et al., 2018). Small business auto dealerships' resources form a formal planning system, and a charismatic leader, while not the same, maybe strategically equivalent resources (Nyseth et al., 2019).

The imperfectly imitable and nonsubstitutable resources are particularly illustrative of the complexity of achieving a sustained competitive advantage (Borza et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners must be aware of the potential impact of substitutes, whether by similar resources or different resources that serve the same purpose. For example, to create a strong vision built by a charismatic leader, competitor firms could substitute a unique but similar leader or a very different formal planning system that generates the same common idea (Ashby et al., 2017). Many leaders might identify the same resource as a core competence, leading to corporate strategies that fail because other competitors with better skills are simultaneously pursuing the same process (Ashby et al., 2017).

Alternative Theories

The alternative theories to the RBV theory include general systems (GS) theory and social network (SN) theory. Opponents of the RBV theory have argued that it focuses on internal assets and capabilities and ignores external market factors (Schiermer, 2019). For example, Pedwell (2020) stated that the RBV theory focuses on a firm's internal business-generating resources, but it does not analyze the influence of networks on firm performance. A firm's network relationships represent the critical avenues of necessary resources for healthy survival and growth (Hye-Su & Holst, 2018). A network represents

a valuable resource in and of itself, provides strategic opportunities, and affects assertive behavior and value (Sanz, 2019). The SN theory is significant for small business auto dealership owners to understand the external relationships that bridge a firm and its outside identities (Sanz, 2019). Small business auto dealerships with a social network can cost effectively attain critical market information and gain a competitive advantage.

General Systems Theory

The GS theory is a theoretical framework developed to investigate general laws for the system of arbitrarily complex arrangements that constitute functional integrities (Yaşar, 2017). The GS theory is a scientific discipline exploring invariant concepts, law, and business models in various object domains (Sobrinho et al., 2017). The topicality of system investigations is determined by searching for universal methods of solving interdisciplinary problems, including strategic competition (Sobrinho et al., 2017). The GS theory has a long tradition in the natural, behavioral, and social sciences, where it has been used to add substantial insights to the understanding of a wide variety of business complex phenomena (Yaşar, 2017). From the GS theory perspective, small business auto dealership owners can achieve their objectives and goals when all significant activities form a whole system (Vasil, 2020). General systems theorists have argued that a firm is an entire system that is more than the sum of its parts, and therefore, parts of a system are best understood in the context of the whole (Katrakazas et al., 2020). The GST theory concept attempted to describe how related components at different business levels interacted with one another in forming a system, including the interaction of these various units at different business levels and the interrelationships among the departments

(Katrakazas et al., 2020). General system theorists have argued that all systems have some characteristics in common and that it is helpful to understand different approaches in terms of those common characteristics (Valentinov, 2017). In developing these generalizations, GS theory moved beyond descriptive terminology, asserting that the concepts and propositions of GS theory are a mechanism for providing a more complete and accurate understanding of complex business phenomena (Shaw, 2020).

The GS theory has been applied to a wide range of business competitions, from the social network of reactions in a cell to the dynamics of business marketing (Coda et al., 2019). Heiens et al. (2019) indicated that marketing occurs within the context of competition; a general theory of marketing should be consistent with the most general theory of strategic competition. The general theory of strategic competition is an appropriate foundation for small business auto dealership owners to use while working on business marketing (Coda et al., 2019). It can provide substance for the normative marketing strategy that includes market segmentation, relationship marketing, and brand equity, which small business leaders can implement to achieve a competitive advantage (Coda et al., 2019).

The GS theory applies to complex business problems involving competition and decision making (Omotayo et al., 2020). Organizational culture and policymaking influence decision making (Kefan et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should need purposeful systemic management and high-quality systems thinking to attain competitive advantage and decision making in their organizations (Šviráková & Bianchi, 2018). According to the systems thinking framework, organizations are complex systems

composed of interconnected parts, evolving altogether with emergence and interdependencies as major concepts (Benoliel et al., 2019). Systems thinking provides deeper perspectives, internal and external variables, and an understanding of how a dynamic and complex system behavior contributes to small business auto dealerships' success (Omotayo et al., 2020). The systems theory can be used to positively affect the organization in achieving its objectives and attaining a sustainable competitive advantage and business performance (Benoliel et al., 2019).

Small business auto dealership owners can use the systems thinking method to resolve complex business problems by establishing that the organizations' business activities are interconnected and consistent (see Henshaw, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should view their organizations as systems comprising different strategic components, including knowledge, culture, technology, customers, suppliers, and physical and environmental economy (Heikkilä et al., 2018). Small business leaders can view the organizations as conceptual constructs to aid leaders in learning, developing, and achieving business problematic situations (Henshaw, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can achieve their goals when all business activities operate efficiently and proficiently (Katrakazas et al., 2020). Nevertheless, small business owners and managers of auto dealership failure with one key component of the system may threaten their organizations with a decrease in the sustainable competitive advantage and business performance (Hintsala et al., 2017; Katrakazas et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can use systems thinking to extend sustainability initiatives beyond optimizing efficiency and proficiency by focusing on competition strategy rather than

tactics (Benoliel et al., 2019). From the systems thinking perspective, small business auto dealership owners can achieve sustainable business growth and performance by developing, performing, and understanding the relationship between the economic, business marketing, customer service, social networking, technology, working capital, and environmental factors (Omotayo et al., 2020; Šviráková & Bianchi, 2018). These business activities influence each other and positively interact, which leaders can use to sustain sustainable competitive advantages. Small business auto dealership owners can use systems thinking to establish accountability, responsibility, and obligation in business activities (Henshaw, 2019). Leaders should ensure activities are correctly attaining sustainable competitive advantages (Henshaw, 2019; Hintsala et al., 2017).

Social Network Theory

The SN theory is defined as a process individuals could use to create a bundle of valuable resources through their outside networks (Zhao & Ha-Brookshire, 2018). Social networks develop relationships with other individuals based on mutual interests, friendship, interdisciplinary, information, and other beneficial reasons (Zhao & Ha-Brookshire, 2018). Proponents of the SN theory have argued that firms can take advantage of external network relationships by connecting with external partners to exchange or share projects and information (Sachpazidu-Wojcicka, 2021). These relationships become critical resources for firms and enhance competitive advantages and performance, as supported by the RBV of the firm (Zhao & Ha-Brookshire, 2018). The firm's network relationships and the exchange of information and knowledge will

provide networking opportunities (i.e., benefits to facilitate innovation) that will evolve and develop over time (Cote, 2019; Sage et al., 2020).

The central concept of social networks is a specific link between people, objects, and events (Lee & Yu, 2020). Introducing the concept of social network capabilities represents a firm's ability to develop, manage, and use networks (Fang et al., 2019). Although the RBV theory offers insights into a firm's strategic resources to attain competitive advantages, small business auto dealership owners should need to recognize and understand the SN theory to bridge a firm's outside identities (Cote, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can use external resources to complement their resources, facilitating their performance and achieving their organizational goals (Fang et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can use social networks to build relationships with other individuals to increase business opportunities. Develop common relationships include kinship, buyer-seller relationships, customer relationships, suppliers, competitors, and organizational hierarchy (Lee & Yu, 2020). Organizational networks consist of horizontal and vertical relationships with other firms and individuals (Fritsch et al., 2020). Small business leaders should consider networking a strategic tool for approaching new and existing customers, suppliers, and other organizations by creating long-term working relationships (Su et al., 2013). Long-term relationships include opening communication, coordination of efforts, and joint planning (Su et al., 2013). Small business leaders who engage in networking can obtain and provide critical information important for decision-making to improve the organizations' performance (Chun-Ming, 2018).

The SN theory investigates the human social organization (Schultz-Jones, 2009). Its main strength is the potential to address cross-population-level problems by building up complex social structures from individual-level interactions (Schultz-Jones, 2009). The SN theory can derive a novel social network at the individual level and measure the interpersonal aspects of human relationships (Horak et al., 2019). Leaders of auto dealerships can use this measure alongside other standard statistical variables (i.e., estimates of relatedness or reproductive success) of the organization (Naqvi et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should have a solid network for attaining critical market information cost-effectively and influence firms' performance (Horak et al., 2019). To increase firms' performance and achieve effective marketing, leaders should build up complex social structures from individual-level interactions by allowing customers and suppliers to stay connected (Naqvi et al., 2020).

Although the RBV theory of the firm assists small business auto dealership owners in understanding the secrets of how they can succeed from the firm's internal perspective, the SN theory provides insights to determine critical market information of the network from the external perspective (Zhu & Bao, 2018). Developing an external network of stakeholder interactions with other organizations can be essential for cultivating business relationships (Naqvi et al., 2020; Sage et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should create higher levels of trust, certain production factors, manage scarcity, institutional support, distribution channels, and create opportunities to improve small business auto dealerships' performance (Naqvi et al., 2020). The network of stakeholder relationships is a strategic resource with the potential to attain and

contribute substantively to the organizations' performance through their capability and ability to increase a sustainable competitive advantage (Fang et al., 2019; Jordão et al., 2020). Using social networks includes individuals and partners to connect with their contacts anywhere and anytime and access comprehensive information timely (Fang et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can extend their operational agility to their partners, who can increase the proficiency and effectiveness of their processes and the quality of information and resources available for decision-making (Syed et al., 2020). Social networks aid small business auto dealerships in gaining valuable resources and significant capabilities. Practical resources include extensive knowledge, internally developed technological knowledge, accumulated information about customers, specialized workforce, managerial skills, contracts, equipment, organizational culture, efficient processes, and financial resources support, among others (Fang et al., 2019).

Small business auto dealership owners should understand how to build trust with their partners because faith can play an active role in the value-network constellation (Galbreath, 2002). Small business auto dealership owners can create the value of trust for their shareholders, achieve business sustainability goals, and create a competitive advantage by improving partners' trust and increasing their collaboration efforts with other partners (Sachpazidu-Wojcicka, 2021). In the SN theory, faith refers to firms' belief that their supply chain partners' firms will take actions generating positive outcomes and subordinate their immediate interests for longer-term mutual benefits (Su et al., 2013). Consequently, creating trust can contribute highly to supply chain partner satisfaction and commitment, contributing to and playing a critical mediating role in influencing that

success is the outcome variable (Choi et al., 2019). The outcome of trust includes improving productivity, increasing market information exchange, sales volume, and satisfaction, increasing services, enhancing market share, profitability, and word-of-mouth advertising (X. Liu et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should consider building trust to increase the benefit from strengthening their supply chain partnerships and advancing partnership success, as reflected in improvements in partner satisfaction and commitment (Luo & Yu, 2019). In contrast, an atmosphere of domination, distrust, and conflict generating hard bargaining and distance may prevail when the powerful party prefers a market relationship; small business auto dealership owners should avoid conflict with their supply chain partnerships (Luo & Yu, 2019).

According to the SN theory, severe global competition and a rapidly changing supply-chain management environment (Fang et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should develop their core capability and cooperate with partners to access critical resources that have become a strategic competitive advantage (Fang et al., 2019). Small business leaders should consider relationship transparency as the subjective perception of feeling informed about the relevant actions and properties of the other party in the interaction (Mitrega et al., 2017). Relationship transparency involves providing information about important business characteristics such as technical abilities, capabilities, and relationship atmosphere (Mitrega et al., 2017). A relationship atmosphere is the emotional setting of the relationship in which both parties interact (X. Liu et al., 2019). Luo and Yu (2019) said that by better understanding the other party and its value creation, relationship transparency could minimize the perceived need to

constantly search for better alternatives and contribute to satisfaction, relationship commitment, recommendation, and competitive advantage. According to the relationship transparency of social networks, small business auto dealership owners can acquire necessary information capabilities and resources from different partners. They can combine and exchange significant information, knowledge, and firm resources with their partners through social interactions and create more business opportunities through the interaction process (X. Liu et al., 2019).

Firm Resources

In the RBV theory, the firm's resources contain a bundle of resources that influence business performance (Wasiuzzaman, 2019). The firm's resources include all assets, capabilities, organizational processes, information, and knowledge controlled by a firm that assists the firm in conceiving and implementing strategies that improve efficiency and effectiveness and achieve a sustainable competitive advantage (Demirkan, 2018; Shin & Lee, 2019). The firm's resources of the RBV theory include human resources, intangible resources, tangible resources, and organizational capabilities that can affect performance (Khattak & Shah, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should consider an integrated set of tangible and intangible resources that aid leaders in implementing strategy advantages to improve their efficiency and effectiveness (Van Weele et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can use these resources to attain a sustainable competitive advantage, generate a maximum profit, and improve efficiency (Khattak & Shah, 2020).

Human Resources

Human resources of the RBV theory are a significant asset that can aid firms in achieving and sustaining competitive advantage (Eppich & Grinda, 2019). According to the RBV theory, human resources are a bundle of education, employment or industry experience that aid small businesses in delivering superior performances and competitive advantages (Wasiuzzaman, 2019). Human resources consist of personnel available to formulate, verbalize, and implement small businesses strategy (Eppich & Grinda, 2019). Human resources include the small businesses' capabilities and competencies that can contribute to the organizations' performance (Wasiuzzaman, 2019).

The human resources of the RBV theory are significant for small business auto dealerships, especially where leaders play primary roles (Xue et al., 2020). Ying et al. (2019) stated that a firm's human resources consist of unskilled and skilled work, clerical, administrative, financial, legal, technical, and management. Small business leaders and employees are tangible resources for the organization (Xue et al., 2020). However, human resources involve human capacities and behavior that have been accumulated in the small business auto dealerships over time, including training, expertise, skills, knowledge, information, and decision making available to the auto industry (Eppich & Grinda, 2019; Xue et al., 2020). Developing human capabilities is significant for small business leaders and employees to learn new business experiences and increase the knowledge, services, and skills required in small business auto dealerships (C. Liu et al., 2020).

The human resources of the RBV theory are part of the organization's human capital. Human capital is a strategic resource of competitive advantage and is significant to firm performance (C. Liu et al., 2020). Small businesses that posit adequate human capital can increase the productivity of potential activity and create cognitive competencies, establishing sustainable competitive advantages (C. Liu et al., 2020). Small business leaders with high-quality human capital, such as skills and competencies, can enhance organizational performance and competitive advantages through resources (Mishra, 2017). Small business auto dealership owners should consider human capital that significantly influences the small business auto dealerships' performance and further their competitiveness. Small business auto dealership owners can increase their human capital by attracting highly skilled individuals from the external labor market and internally developing their current members' skills (Longoni et al., 2019). Human capital is an essential resource for operations management that small business auto dealership owners need to increase their productivity and attain competitive advantages (Musibau et al., 2019). Human capital includes intellectual knowledge and expertise, the structure and quality of interpersonal networks, courage and resilience, skill and personality attributes, creativity, and embodied in performing labor to produce economic value (Longoni et al., 2019). Human capital may face an increasingly competitive environment and rapidly changes the global market (Dankyi et al., 2020).

Sustainable competitive advantages in the market can only result from effective managers and talented staff who can provide high-quality customer services and effectively manage business resources (Podra et al., 2020). Improving and developing

effective managers and qualified staff is critical for every organization and executive leader (Podra et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should create and build their human capital by offering business training, providing business knowledge, and enhancing promotion decisions (Dankyi et al., 2020; Yang et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners should give ethical business principles and effectively manage staff performance in their activities (Yang et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners use human capital to formulate a unique organizational structure, constitution, establishment, and culture (Dankyi et al., 2020). As a result, human capital is a critical resource of any successful competition system and competitive advantage in the marketplace.

International capital is a significant achievement resource of constant business growth that can continue business in the industry (Yang et al., 2021). International capital involves organizational knowledge, intellectual property, business designs, and business process techniques, enabling organizations to build a competitive advantage through economies of scale and scope or differentiation (Audretsch & Link, 2018; Yang et al., 2021). However, suppose a small business fails to innovate in the business market; it might inevitably fall back to a harmful, destructive, and disadvantageous situation in the market competition and finally experience a hasty market decline (X. Lu et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should achieve constant success through integrated international capital, human capital, and management services (Barra & Zotti, 2017). Likewise, the success of a firm's suite of innovative activities is a function and implementation of the quantity and quality of resources, capital, funds, assets, and

possessions dedicated to the business task (Barra & Zotti, 2017). Small business auto dealership owners should often organize, arrange, and manage their business activities and actions in portfolios of projects.

Tangible Resources

Tangible resources of the RBV theory are assets, such as production equipment, manufacturing plants, and formal reporting structures (Kamasak, 2017). In the RBV theory, tangible resources are all those that can be effectively observed and measured; that is, they have a physical and measurable nature (Van Weele et al., 2020). The primary tangible resources are financial resources (i.e., cash, securities, and borrowing capacity) and physical resources (i.e., plant, equipment, land, and mineral reserves) that consider the most likely sources of firm success (Kamasak, 2017). Small business auto dealership owners can turn these static resources into dynamic nature and transform them to create a new configuration of resources that can sustain a competitive advantage (Kamasak, 2017; Salehi et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners may optimize their financial resources to maximize profits and maintain a competitive advantage.

Financial resources are important drivers of superior business results because financial resources can support the business acquisition of other strategic resources and assets (Salehi et al., 2019). Financial resources can help the firm's strategic efforts, sustainable growth, performance, new strategies, practices, growth opportunities, and innovative activities (Einarsen et al., 2019). Financial resources can constitute constraints and provide possibilities for further development of the small business auto dealerships regarding customer services, products, and other service developments (Einarsen et al.,

2019). Levitskaya (2021) underscored financial resources as a factor that can drive the operations of small business auto dealerships. Financial resources become significant sources for small business auto dealerships to make optimal financing decisions to survive in a competitive and dynamic business environment (Tibbetts & Lutter, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners need sufficient financial capital that can easily convert into other types of resources to support the implementation of internal growth strategies and gain a competitive advantage through superior returns (Levitskaya, 2021). Financial resources of small business auto dealership owners should include, among others, financial liquidity, operating funds, borrowing capacity, and the ability to generate internal funds that are important for small business auto dealerships' survival and profitability (Levitskaya, 2021).

Physical resources mainly refer to the level of sophistication and complexity of the technology possessed by the firms, such as plants, machinery, equipment, and tools (Van Weele et al., 2020). The central part of technology could embody physical resources (Yang & Lirn, 2017). The technology of the small business auto dealership owners can expect to improve auto industry production, customer services, and business operations (Yang & Lirn, 2017). Technology can generate a competitive advantage if technology has an important role in determining small business auto dealerships' relative cost position or success in differentiation (Ying et al., 2019). As technology can influence several value-creating activities in small business auto dealerships, it can have a substantial effect on cost (Ying et al., 2019). Small business auto dealerships with high investment in technology can permit low-cost productions and achievement of economies of scale by

spreading the relatively high fixed cost over many outputs (Quan Minh & Ngo Thi, 2020). Physical resource technology is another main driver for small business auto dealerships' success. The more tangible resources small businesses have, the superior the sustainability of their competitive advantage (Quan Minh & Ngo Thi, 2020).

Intangible Resources

Under the RBV theory, intangible resources can strengthen small businesses' performance (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Intangible resources are rare and valuable assets that lead to competitive advantage, enabling small businesses to withstand in the long term and become a sustainable competitive advantage (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Intangible resources are usually described as a core component that is the most likely source of small businesses' success because competitors cannot easily acquire and replicate the resources (Kamasak, 2017). The critical importance of intangible resources refers to their scarcity and difficulty-imitating competitors (Yang & Lirn, 2017). Intangible resources such as culture, relationships, knowledge, and management support small businesses' sustainable competitive advantage and performance (Kamasak, 2017). Yang and Lirn (2017) proved that intangible assets boost the organizational ability to acquire external, valuable resources. In the RBV theory, proponents consider intangible assets a significant component of small businesses' sustainable competitive advantage (Cruz et al., 2017).

Intangible resources of the RBV theory can play an important role in developing and improving small business auto dealerships' sustainability (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Intangible resources include relationships, collaboration, and

knowledge, which may differ from tangible resources because they cannot purchase (Cruz et al., 2017). Small business auto dealership owners must implement practices to develop intangible resources to increase their strategic advantage potential (Barua & Ioanid, 2020). The competitive value of small business auto dealerships is inevitably associated with the management and relationships of its intangible resources (Yang & Lirn, 2017). For instance, especially employee relationships support small business auto dealerships' ability to adjust and sustain organizations in the long term (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Thus, to leverage the sustainability potential, small business auto dealership owners must improve employee relationships and focus on strengthening the human factor in organizations (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Zhou et al. (2020) stated that employee relationships are recognized as factors shaping employee satisfaction and intention to stay in the organization. The concept of employee relationships in small business auto dealerships refers to the positive relationship between two or more individuals involved in a mutual relationship within the social network and authority dimensions within an organizational context (Zhou et al., 2020). Employee relationships can manifest and demonstrate themselves in employee participation in decision-making processes, high quality of interactions, and a sense of community within organizations (Nicholas, 2019).

According to the intangible resources of the RBV theory, knowledge considers a core resource in the success of small businesses that can influence organizations' performance (Jin & Edmunds, 2015). Knowledge is significant for decision-making, supporting effective processes, and improving business activities (Mohr & Batsakis,

2014). Knowledge is a critical basis for creativity and is recognized as significant to gaining a competitive advantage (Van Weele et al., 2020). Small business auto dealerships that obtain and retain knowledge can play a critical role in achieving a sustainable competitive advantage (Van Weele et al., 2020). The capability effectively uses knowledge can aid small business auto dealerships in maintaining long-term competitive advantage, improving, and implementing new technology (Oprean-Stan et al., 2018). Knowledge contributes to small businesses' development as a primary competitive advantage source and a long-lasting intangible resource (Jardon & Molodchik, 2017).

Knowledge includes two types in an organizational context: explicit and tacit knowledge (Bulińska-Stangrecka & Bagieńska, 2020). Tacit knowledge embeds in employees' experiences and knowledge and is often non-verbalized and challenging to codify (Q. Li et al., 2019). Tacit knowledge can provide small business auto dealerships a strategic competitive advantage because tacit knowledge is complicated for competitors to replicate and distinct from many other resources (S. Ruel et al., 2019). Tacit knowledge is more difficult to transfer since it needs to be experienced and cannot be fully articulated (Caputo et al., 2019). As the degree of tacit knowledge increases, the knowledge acquisition and transferring processes increase in complexity (S. Ruel et al., 2019). However, explicit knowledge is easily codified, transmitted, and disseminated in writing instructions or documentation (Evans et al., 2015). Small business auto dealership owners should understand explicit and practical knowledge, which can be articulated, documented, stored, and conveyed within organizations (Sun et al., 2021).

Both types of knowledge contribute to small business auto dealerships' development and competitive improvement advantages (Haldin-Herrgard, 2000). Explicit knowledge resources could help solve various organizational issues, reuse significant information, and connect employees with invaluable knowledge-sharing networks (Sun et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners should consider the impact of behavioral norms on explicit knowledge sharing in organizations (Jardon & Molodchik, 2017). Assistance to create, store, and use explicit knowledge by establishing a knowledge system in small business auto dealership owners can encourage knowledge sharing between employees and leaders (Bratianu et al., 2021). Knowledge systems in small business auto dealerships shared between employees and leaders should include ideas, innovation, and managerial capabilities (Ncoyini & Cilliers, 2020). Also including organizational routines (the unique ways people work together), scientific capabilities, the firm's reputation for its goods or services, and how it interacts with people (i.e., employees, customers, and suppliers) are all signs of intangible resources (Ncoyini & Cilliers, 2020).

Knowledge resources are among the most significant contributors to a competitive advantage that small business auto dealership owners can offer supply chain partners (Ujwary-Gil, 2017). The resource is significant to understanding a firm and its value creation for stakeholders, including supply chain partners (Theeke & Lee, 2017). Lichtenthaler (2019) explored how small businesses acquire knowledge from external sources, such as suppliers, customers, and even competitors, to achieve a competitive advantage. The knowledge acquisition of small companies considers a critical source of

explaining new knowledge and creative outcomes in business contexts (Flöthmann et al., 2018). Lichtenthaler (2019) identified three primary features of knowledge acquisition: (1) knowledge resource is created through human interactions, (2) knowledge is dynamic because knowledge is required to create the future but frequently becomes obsolete once created, and (3) knowledge has a social agenda of guiding the firm for what is right to do (Lichtenthaler, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should consider knowledge acquisition that can significantly generate new knowledge and provide innovative ideas (Ferdaous & Rahman, 2019). Knowledge acquisition also creates business outcomes by putting humans at the center of strategy, treating strategy as a dynamic process, and possessing a social agenda (Ferdaous & Rahman, 2019).

The brand is another intangible asset of the RBV theory that contributes to creating firms' value (Ocak & Fındık, 2019). The brand is a resource responsible for determining consumer preference and the perception small business auto dealership owners can develop for the product or service (Gupta et al., 2008). Strong branding can generate superior customer loyalty for the organization, less vulnerability to competitors' marketing actions, and higher profit margins, among other significant consequences (Bhatia & Aggarwal, 2018). Customers can recognize the brand through advertising because the brand creates customers with numerous recognition of products and services (Bhatia & Aggarwal, 2018). It also serves as a tool for small business auto dealership owners to build a strong brand image by calling and displaying the product and service to reach the consumer's attention (Bhatia & Aggarwal, 2018).

Organizational Capabilities

Organizational capabilities mean that firms can deploy their resources, such as tangible resources and intangible resources, to perform an activity to enhance their performance (Rehman et al., 2019). From the perspective of organizational configuration, the organizational capability could understand as clusters of attributes of corporate strategies, structures, and processes (Gao et al., 2020). Organizational capabilities play an important role in increasing organizational performance and understanding how small businesses can achieve and sustain their competitive advantage (Rehman et al., 2019). The internal strengths of small businesses' inner strengths are organizational capabilities, determining how a small business gets a competitive advantage over other small businesses, and the ending result is improved performance (Gao et al., 2020).

In the RBV theory, organizational capabilities are identified and thoroughly articulated regarding how they shape culture, leadership, competencies, training, and performance management (Bhatti et al., 2020). Huang and Huang (2020) stated that small business leaders could use organizational resources to focus on the business's internal capability, determining the extent to which a firm sustains its competitive advantage. Small business leaders can focus on how best to spend resources central to corporate strategy and performance (Bhatti et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can gain a competitive advantage by building organizational resources of business internal capability such as collective skills, abilities, and expertise to compete effectively (Huang & Huang, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should identify their organizational capabilities and define them in behavioral and operational terms (Zhang et

al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners must ensure dedicated time, honest assessments, and spirited debate about the capabilities that will differentiate the organization from the rest, ensure successful market capture, and delight targeted customers (Zhang et al., 2021). Customers make buying decisions based on the firm's capabilities or brand, more so than the product itself (Abdulrahman, 2020). Specifically, consumers purchase vehicles based on emotion, history, and trust much more than anything else (Abdulrahman, 2020).

Organizational capabilities consist of two elements such as dynamic capability and operational capability (Sánchez-Medina, 2020). Small businesses should consider dynamic capabilities as a primary resource of competitive advantage (Akenroye et al., 2020). The dynamic capabilities resources include valuable, scarce, imitative, and irreplaceable resources (Akenroye et al., 2020). Dynamic capabilities define as a series of processes for product development, strategy development, and alliances from the process perspective (X. Liu et al., 2019). Likewise, Furnival et al. (2019) defined dynamic capabilities as a stable collective activity model from the standpoint of knowledge evolution, such as variation, internal selection, replication, and genetics. The concept of dynamic capabilities refers to the firm's ability to integrate, build, and reconfigure external and internal competencies toward environmental change (L. Liu et al., 2019). The critical role of dynamic capabilities of small business auto dealerships is to achieve competitive advantage through integrating, building, and reconstructing internal and external capabilities to adapt to rapidly changing environments (Akenroye et al., 2020). Dynamic capabilities assist small business auto dealerships in effectively responding to

changes in the dynamic environments in which they constantly integrate, reconfigure, renew, and recreate their resources (Akenroye et al., 2020). Most importantly, they can upgrade and reconstruct their core capabilities in response to the changing environment to attain and sustain competitive advantage (Akenroye et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should focus on developing dynamic capabilities to gain a sustained competitive advantage.

Operational capabilities of the RBV theory represent how small businesses operate to make a living in the present and the ability of a small business to accomplish and coordinate the tasks necessary to carry out operational activities, distribution logistics, and marketing campaigns (Takahashi et al., 2017). M. Li et al. (2020) stated that operational capabilities refer to a small business's relative efficacy in transforming various operational resources (e.g., assets, equipment, employees, and capital) into useful organizational outputs. Operational capabilities are the small business auto dealerships' ability effectively deploy heterogeneous resources, skills, processes, and knowledge, enhancing productivity and operational effectiveness (M. Li et al., 2020). In a dynamic business environment, the small business auto dealerships' ability to manage knowledge and information is significant to the competitive advantage of the auto dealerships (M. Li et al., 2020). Operational capabilities represent small business auto dealerships' ability efficiently convey organizational resources into valuable outputs, an abstract and intellectual yet critical managerial competence of small business auto dealerships in a dynamic business and competitive advantage environment (Arvidsson et al., 2019). As a

result, operational capabilities change best represents the possible beneficial outcomes in small business auto dealerships.

Operational capabilities of the RBV theory are particularly important for the high-tech sector of the small business auto dealerships, including dynamism, uncertainty, and competitiveness (Lyu et al., 2019). Specifically, for small business auto dealerships operating in a rapid-changing technology environment, agility, fast adaptation, and quick response are critical for survival and prosperity in a dynamic business environment (M. Li et al., 2020). Operational capabilities as indicators for the overarching efficiency competence of small business auto dealerships can use their assets and resources (Lyu et al., 2019). Operational capabilities include the skills, knowledge, and information necessary to operationalize, maintain, and repair technology (Kim, 2006). Operational capabilities refer to the technology that aids the development and production of technology to rapid changes in the technological environment (Lyu et al., 2019).

Technical capabilities are conceptualized as accumulated knowledge and the ability to make, understand, practice, and develop this knowledge to produce new technologies (Minna et al., 2020).

Competitive Advantage and Sustained Competitive Advantage

Competitive advantage and sustained competitive advantage are core concepts for understanding the RBV theory (Lim et al., 2017). Small business auto dealership owners face business challenges and struggle to gain, achieve, and maintain market share, customers, and competitive advantages in a business dynamic and complex business environment (Rahman et al., 2018). To conduct business challenges, sustain their

organizations, and gain competitive advantages, small business auto dealership owners must respond to the challenges from the market and customers, implementing a value-creating strategy, requiring efficiency, and effectiveness to foster and sustain competitiveness (Suh, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners can focus on improving customer services, reducing costs, increasing productivity, improving production quality, and satisfying customers and other stakeholders (Suh, 2018). Small businesses can optimize resource allocations that align with value-creating and practical business strategies, improve the organization's performance, and integrate the volatility markets and dynamic business environments (Leiblein et al., 2017). Small business auto dealership owners can identify the strength of active business competitions, capabilities, and profitability of the auto dealerships by analyzing, achieving, and improving competitive forces (López-Cabarcos et al., 2015). The competitive details include the threat of new competitors' entry, the intensity of the existing business dynamic competitions, and the bargaining power of suppliers and customers (Suh, 2018).

Competitive Advantage

Competitive advantage refers to a superior position in the marketplace that assists a firm to out-perform its rivals (Chao-Hung, 2019). Proponents of the RBV theory stated that competitive advantage is based on factors within the firm (Wahyono, 2020). In contrast, the industrial-organization view posited that competitive advantage is mainly achieved by positioning the firm in the industry and the environment (Kalaitzi et al., 2019; Wahyono, 2020). O'Shannassy (2008) identified that firms obtain a competitive advantage only to attain positive value and higher performance standards than

competitors. Small business auto dealership owners must create positive value by achieving a competitive advantage that equals or exceeds competitors (Chao-Hung, 2019; Davide et al., 2019). The main objective of the RBV stems from generating a competitive advantage that assists small business auto dealership owners in obtaining better performance levels from their respective combinations of resources and capacities (Bertheussen, 2021). The term competitive advantage is another significant source for academics, business executives, and consultants (X. Liu et al., 2019). Barney (2001) stated that a firm experiences competitive advantages when its actions in an industry or market create economic value, and when competing, a firm engages in similar activities. Competitive advantage could be achieved when a firm implements a value-creating strategy that any firm or potential competitors are not simultaneously implementing (Barney, 1991). Barney also stated that a sustained competitive advantage occurs when the firm implements a value-creating strategy not being implemented simultaneously by rivals or other firms that cannot duplicate the benefits of its business strategy.

The concept of competitive advantage relates to small business auto dealerships maintaining a sustainable edge compared to rivals in a particular organization setting that cannot erode over time (L. Liu et al., 2019). The firm with a competitive advantage pursues a strategy not executed by competing firms (L. Liu et al., 2019). The process implemented by the firm with a competitive advantage provides the opportunity for a reduction in costs (i.e., low cost) in the provision of a product and service that can contribute to providers of the alternative differentiation strategy in a broad market segment (Izaskun & Irune, 2019). Accordingly, small business auto dealership owners

could exploit market opportunities with a product and service with superior attributes (i.e., differentiation) with some proximity to low-cost providers regarding the cost of production or provision of service in a broad market segment (Davide et al., 2019). The low cost and the differentiation strategies can be pursued in a narrow market segment and can be termed cost focus and differentiation focus, respectively (Patricia Ordóñez, 2006). Small business auto dealership owners must decide how to compete in the chosen market and compete on some distinguishing factors (Davidson et al., 2015). Leaders should provide goods and services uniquely or give similar products and services at lower prices than their competitors (Davidson et al., 2015).

A firm might span low cost and differentiation for some time. The firm is still challenging to sustain, with firms at risk of being "stuck in the middle," not executing either generic strategy well, and subsequently not achieving a sustained competitive advantage (Davide et al., 2019). Many industries have several businesses being "stuck in the middle" (Patricia Ordóñez, 2006). A firm with a favorable industry structure seeking to span low cost and differentiation will earn higher profits (Patricia Ordóñez, 2006). Kalaitzi et al. (2019) noted evidence of the firms' performance weakness for being "stuck in the middle," which firms compared with other firms with a clear generic position, tends to occur in a mature industry with a slow industry growth rate. Firms' performance being "stuck in the middle" tend to expose to their poorly conceived positioning strategies, which in the past may be carried by a healthy industry growth rate (Kalaitzi et al., 2019). The achievement of competitive advantage by a firm in an industry is a firm that aids in neutralizing threats from rival firms in the marketplace (Davide et al., 2019;

McClelland, 1994). Competitive strategies can play a significant role in determining the position of small business auto dealerships in their industry (Ferrall et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners establishing and maintaining a clear generic position can play an important role in this desirable set of business circumstances to sustain a competitive advantage (Robert, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should avoid their business being "stuck in the middle" by offering unique features to convince customers to buy their offerings (Ferrall et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners must make a fundamental strategic decision by taking the steps necessary to achieve cost leadership or at least cost parity (Ferrall et al., 2021). In addition, they must orient themselves to a particular target customer or achieve some uniqueness (Banerjee & Feinstein, 2019).

Competitive advantage involves a tendency to evaluate accomplishments, achievement, management, and success of others and standards of excellence and brilliance (Davide et al., 2019). Small global business owners or managers with a highly competitive advantage who determine and measure themselves against the business competition in the market, develop strategic management and competition strategy, seek to improve business performance, and achieve business success in the auto industry (Sun, Wu et al., 2018). Using competitive advantage to determine the business competition in the market, small business auto dealership owners should improve competitive management and strategies to gain a competitive advantage.

Small business leaders use several strategic resources to improve their competitive advantage in the market. Ismail (2016) indicated that operational excellence,

low-cost products, and product leadership are three generic strategic resources to enhance competitive advantage and the business environment. Operational excellence includes reliable, dependable, low-cost products; customer intimacy includes client-specific customized products; and product leadership includes differentiated and innovative products (Ismail, 2016). In competition, organizational leaders should focus on strategic resources to provide more functions and avoid the other non-functional strategies (Dwomoh et al., 2020). Small business leaders should diversify and expand into related products, integrate vertically into other suppliers, or merge with similar firms. Leaders could use the resource of competitive advantage and strategy to satisfy customer needs more effectively by understanding and being close to customers (Gaikwad & Sunnapwar, 2020). In particular, leaders should understand customer value perception, commit to quality, provide a high level of comprehensive service, and provide speedy reactions to competitive opportunities and threats (Dwomoh et al., 2020). Focusing on practical strategic resources, understanding the perception of customer value, providing a commitment to quality, providing a high level of service, and providing a speedy reaction to competitive opportunities and threats are significant components for leaders to take action at the business level of innovative strategies (Dwomoh et al., 2020).

Competitive strategic management is a significant resource that leaders use to improve the organization's mission and goals to sustain a competitive advantage.

Competitive strategic management is the ongoing process of ensuring a competitively superior fit between the organization and its ever-changing environment (Reczey et al., 2017). Small business auto dealership owners can accomplish competitive strategic

management to manage the organization's mission and scan the environment to ascertain opportunities (Ketchen & Craighead, 2020). Leaders can merge this assessment with an evaluation of the organization's strengths and weaknesses to identify an exploitable niche in which the organization will have a competitive advantage (Ketchen & Craighead, 2020). Liozu (2018) noted that business firms could fail if the management team fails to translate strategic management into strategic planning. Strategic planning is the process that leaders can use to set priorities, focus resources, and strengthen operations (Cheung & Yu, 2020). Leaders can achieve strategic planning to ensure employees and other stakeholders work toward common goals, establish agreement around intended outcomes and results, and adjust the organization's direction in response to a changing competitive environment (Nesiba & Cuhlova, 2021). Competitive strategic management of small business auto dealerships should involve awareness of how successful and robust the organization and its strategic management are, how it might improve its effectiveness, and how circumstances are changing (Muneeb et al., 2019; Selyutina et al., 2021). Using competitive strategic management to enhance the organizations' weaknesses, mission, goal, operational plans, structural designs, and control systems are the primary factors of small business auto dealerships' success.

External and internal forces are the business factors of competitive strategic management. Leaders should understand the changing environment's complexity, difficulty, and trends that may include external forces (Vluggen et al., 2019). Other changes will be the internal forces or outcomes of actions taken by the organization itself (Vluggen et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should manage change

successfully, changing technologies, processes, and architecture to maintain a successful match with the environment (Muneeb et al., 2019). Organizations' competitive strategic management should involve a clear awareness of environmental forces and how the firms are changing and appreciate the potential and future threats and opportunities (Cescon et al., 2019). Additional competitive strategic management in the firms also involves the decisions on appropriate products and services for defined markets and the effective management of resources to develop and produce these products for the market—achieving the right quality for the right price at the right time (Denning, 2017). Understanding the changing environment's complexity, difficulty, and trends is significant for leaders (Nastase et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should manage to decide on appropriate services, technologies, management, future threats, and opportunities to maintain a successful business in the competitive environment.

Improving business environments and competitive strategic management are the critical success factors of the business dynamic. Leaders must be strategically aware, conscious, and reactive. Small business auto dealership owners should understand how changes in the competitive environment unfold (Klepić & Madžar, 2017). Small business auto dealership owners should actively look for opportunities to exploit the business's strategic abilities, adapt and seek improvements in every business area, building on awareness and understanding of current strategies, resources, and successes (Nastase et al., 2019). Leaders must act quickly in response to opportunities and barriers Comella et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners operating in organizations perform

some activities, including planning, arranging, and organizing the work of the subordinates by motivating employees, controlling what happens, and evaluating results (Mona et al., 2018; Nastase et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should be responsible for management improvement by exploiting the strategic business abilities, adapting enhancements of the business, building on awareness of current strategies, and improving business activities.

Creating customers' values, achieving the company's goal, and improving the business service environment are the long-term goals for success (Rantala et al., 2019; Weinstein, 2020). Leaders must compete effectively, efficiently, and out-perform their rivals in a dynamic environment to succeed long-term (Mortensen et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should find suitable ways to create and add customer value. Likewise, small business auto dealership owners should understand what the business is about, what business goal is trying to achieve, and which way is an important requirement determining the effectiveness of every member's contribution (Nordgren, 2008; Rantala et al., 2019). Mortensen et al. (2019) identified that every successful small business should have business self-awareness and clarity of vision, even though small business does not arise from a formal planning process. Small business auto dealership owners should have a business plan that shows the company's purpose and what the firm intends to accomplish. Small business auto dealership owners can use the business plan to help an entrepreneurial vision by providing a mechanism that aids owners, managers, and workers in functioning effectively (Caspersz & Thomas, 2015; Tracey et al., 2017).

Creating values for customers, providing business strategies for employees, and planning the business goal can sustain organizations for a long-term goal (Weinstein, 2020).

Sustained Competitive Advantages

Sustained competitive advantages are organizational assets, attributes, or abilities that cannot duplicate or exceed; and provide a superior or favorable long-term position over competitors (Kaleka & Morgan, 2017). The sustained competitive advantage sources include brand loyalty, environmental, innovation, economic, proprietary information scale, network-effect, and social-cultural (Chapman et al., 2018; M. Li et al., 2019). Sustained competitive advantages are significant characteristics that small business auto dealership owners can use to gain a competitive advantage in a volatile, uncertain, complex, and ambiguous environment (Freeman et al., 2021). The potential for sustainability can provide small business auto dealership owners with the flexibility and resilience to react and adjust to a changeable economy (Brockhaus et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should need to attain sustainability. Amoako (2020) stated that identifying the sources facilitating sustainability potential is significant for companies' successful adaptation to a changeable environment. Small business auto dealerships rely on their internal resources to gain a competitive advantage. In the RBV theory, firms' strength depends on their inner resources (Brockhaus et al., 2019). The RBV highlights the impact the internal organization's resources have on companies' output (Assensoh-Kodua, 2019). Proponents of the RBV theory indicated a link between the organization's internal resources and the development of sustained competitive advantage (Brockhaus et al., 2019).

RBV theory focuses on non-observant factors in developing organizational potential (Saqib et al., 2020). It acknowledged that primarily intangible resources such as employee relationships contribute to the organization's performance (Y. Lu et al., 2021; Saqib et al., 2020). The essence of organizational sustainability is strengthening the environmental, societal, and economic systems within business operations (Chapman et al., 2018). This principle is significant since the concept of sustainability will keep small business auto dealerships running by helping organizations prosper without compromising the needs of the future (M. Li et al., 2019).

Small business auto dealership owners can use the business process strategy to create a new customer-oriented value, satisfaction, and fulfillment and the primary judge of enterprises' competitiveness (Cyphert, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners may use resources of the RBV theory to create the relationship and services regarding the primary beneficiaries and other stakeholders, such as the organization through employees, shareholders, and external collaborates (Shibin et al., 2020). Dubey et al. (2019) indicated that firms use resources from RBV theory to innovate employees through new business knowledge and service strategies. New business knowledge and service strategies may include improving business services, creating customer relationships, developing market demand, increasing shareholders' wealth, and enhancing competitive advantages (Bhat & Darzi, 2018). Business leaders in technology computer firms use RBV theory to improve the business environment by producing differentiated, innovative products and services that could increase the organization's competitive advantage and sustainability (Kiewitz et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership

owners can use business improvement to consent a vast majority of small businesses with resources to compete effectively.

Successful technology commercialization is a significant factor in business survival in the competitive market. Inków (2020) indicated that with growing attention, concentration, and awareness of business innovation, small business leaders must pay a small and medium-sized enterprises' technology commercialization capability to facilitate the marketing of technology innovation. Small business auto dealership owners can use technology commercialization to involve business processes requiring business improvement, development, manufacturing, growth, and marketing (Zemlickiene & Turskis, 2020). Series of business processes are follow-up processes leaders can transform various technology improvements, business competitive advantages, and assets, such as designs, patents, and knowledge, into profits (Bammert et al., 2020). From the perspective of business invention, technology commercialization is likely an overarching concept, perception, and theory covering the whole process of the business service concept, including effective marketing and production (Gusberti et al., 2018). In this regard, using successful technology commercialization of business invention may serve as a significant capability to customers by satisfying consumers based on various quality, cost, speed, and technology-related business factors.

Organizational Culture Resource

Organizational culture is an important resource of the RBV theory. Corporate culture is the most significant element in organizational change efforts (Thakur et al., 2018). Organizational cultural involves norms, values, habits, expectations, and new

ways of thinking that relate to a competitive advantage (Francischeto & Neiva, 2019; Fung et al., 2012). Organizational culture affects managerial decision-making and assists managers and leaders in designing more efficient business processes and activities, implementing appropriate business policies, and developing effective business reward systems to support organizations in competitive advantage (Jiao et al., 2019; Walker, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners can use organizational culture resources to create new business ideas of competitive advantage and develop mechanisms for implementing business ideas and transforming them into opportunities to respond to the fast-changing business environment in competitive advantage (He et al., 2020). In the RBV theory, organizational cultural strategy is being a core element of successful business dynamic and drives changes in almost every aspect of organizational performance, including management resources, fundraising strategy, business modeling, marketing resource, and communication process (Lee & Chung, 2020; Walker, 2021).

To be successful, small business auto dealership owners should maintain the organizational focus on the culture, mainly because the corporate culture is the primary resource for building trust, relationships, and value between employees and leaders that can facilitate the organization to become successful (Lee & Chung, 2020). Fatma and Adiguzel (2019) indicated that positive organizational culture in business industries significantly influences the quality of customer services, customer relationships, teamwork between employees and leaders, and innovative development. Employees are more likely to believe in the organization's values, goals, mission, and vision (Fatma & Adiguzel, 2019). Small business leaders should focus on creating a culture of employee

engagement to attract and retain quality employees in an increasingly competitive advantage.

Employee engagement should consider a long-term commitment to the organization and employees, supporting the other in an era of increasing national and international operations (Shuck et al., 2017). Employee engagement is an effective strategy for long-term organizational sustainability in the competitive environment and markets (Hyo et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should consider employee engagement to increase operational performance. Employee engagement includes an organization's expectations, experiences, philosophy, and values that hold together to conduct business, treat employees and customers, and provide value for the wider community (Lee & Chung, 2020). The significance of employee engagement can contribute to the organization's unique social and psychological environment.

The increasing implementation of boundaryless organizations poses a challenge for leaders who strive to create and maintain employee engagement (Piezunka et al., 2018; Tauetsile, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a competitive advantage by effectively increasing the employee engagement strategy (Hyo et al., 2020). For instance, small business auto dealership owners should show respect and recognize employees for their contributions, be visible to employees, encourage upward communication, and inspire confidence in the organization's future (Hyo et al., 2020). Firms should increase the engagement level of employees by communicating clear goals and expectations to their employees (Tauetsile, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners should share information and numbers with employees, encourage open

communication, promote organizational effectiveness, reputation, and values, and increase the motivational level of leaders' success (Tauetsile, 2021). Firms need to achieve high levels of employee engagement in domestic and global firms to promote the retention of talent but also foster customer loyalty and improve organizational performance and stakeholder value, leading to competitive advantage (Duque et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should continually demonstrate their competence, capability, proficiency, influence, and persuade others of the value of their organizational products, services, and ideas (Wilson et al., 2013).

Organizational cultural factors also involve the work environment that leaders can use to cultivate and measure employees based on value creation and competitive differentiation (Walker, 2021). Errichiello and Micera (2018) identified several important dimensions of culture that distinguish highly progressive organizations. Small business auto dealership owners can assess and strengthen the culture perspective strategy within and across their organizations. Firms must demonstrate trust with employees, involve employees with strong capabilities in initiating and managing partnerships, and build strong alliances inside the business (Errichiello & Micera, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should create better conditions for revolution and trust where information from inside and outside the business organization is systematically collected, easily and quickly accessible, and communicated (Errichiello & Micera, 2018). The organization's small business leaders should signal that a competitive advantage strategy is highly desirable by setting ambitious goals in different areas and establishing motivated teams to find ways to implement the vision (Piezunka et al., 2018).

The support for the business competition is the symbols and rituals, whose main objective is to identify a new behavior and an incentive in the completive environment (Ray & Mondal, 2017). Such symbols and rituals refer to employees' internal and individualized motivation (Widmann & Mulder, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should consider building potential and capability in employees to be aware of creative thinking, management, and implementation of ideas (Widmann & Mulder, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should have a dimension of the relationship, which refers to the models of interaction within the organization in innovative ideas that can rarely be the product of a lone genius (Ju et al., 2021). Building a collaborative environment and accepting different ways of thinking, viewpoints, and diversity provide a reasonable basis for a competitive advantage strategy (Irving et al., 2020).

Organizational social competition is the process of developing practical solutions to challenging environmental issues. Corporate social competition is a new solution for business models, services, and projects that facilitate better responsiveness to the different social challenges of the society (Ratten, 2019; Van Wijk et al., 2019). The new solution includes exchanging ideas and values, shifting roles and relationships, and integrating private capital with public support (Ortlieb & Sieben, 2019). The new solution is more effective, efficient, and sustainable for small business auto dealership owners by facilitating better social challenges (Marques et al., 2018). Organizational social competition is a part of a new culture of business empowerment, central to creating appreciable and significant social change in business improvement (Purtik & Arenas,

2019). Small business auto dealership owners should use the value of social competition strategy to generate influential social services that have economic viability to facilitate the organization (Marques et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should contribute to emerging markets through the context of social competition strategy. A corporate process that embeds social impact across the organization should create a social service competition strategy and relationships to engage, develop, and retain talented employees (Ortlieb & Sieben, 2019).

Organizational Economy Performance

The organizational economy performance of the RBV theory is an economic doctrine that can reformulate the traditional model of economic growth (Maletič et al., 2015). The organizational economy performance is associated with environmentally friendly management, ranging from internal performance benefits to external marketing benefits (Maletič et al., 2015). Small business auto dealership owners can build competitive resources in their operating system using an environmental management system standard associated with the triple bottom line performance benefits (Njoroge et al., 2019). These performance benefits include environmental, social, and market benefits to achieve a competitive advantage (Maletič et al., 2015; Njoroge et al., 2019). The organizational economy is defined as a new economic resource that introduces new goods and production methods (Costa et al., 2019). It also includes conquering a new source of supply of raw materials or half-manufactured goods, opening a new market, and carrying out the new organization of any industry (Costa et al., 2019). According to the RBV theory, the economic condition competitiveness of industrial enterprises is based on

proactive, active, reactive, and passive that ensure an increase in the quality of the manufactured products and the efficiency of the used resources (Carrera-Portugal, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should focus on the organizational economy necessary for successful competitive development based on economic resource competitiveness.

Because of the organizational economy performance, small business auto dealership owners should decrease expenses and increase workforce productivity; the firm leaders can ensure the market's competitiveness (Ofem et al., 2020). The current organizational economy is the critical stimulus for the civilized development of the World System's evolution (R. Li et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should manage and implement business development and solutions to increase the organization's survival, competitiveness, and future success factors (Bystrov et al., 2021). The organizational economy is among such factors that include implementing new materials, technologies, types of products, and organizational sustainability (Ofem et al., 2020; Omonov & Veretennikova, 2016). The factor of the organizational economy is a dominant factor of stable development, taking into account the restrictions in the inner and outer environment of business and corporate entities (Bystrov et al., 2021). The organizational economy is an important resource of stable development for small business auto dealership owners because economic growth in highly industrialized countries and international competitiveness are driven by competitive advantage and technological change (Maletič et al., 2015).

In the RBV theory, the organizational economy typically implements a new organizational method in the undertaking's business practice and competitive advantage (Dentoni et al., 2020). The organizational economy is necessary to increase operational efficiency, customer relationship, and employee satisfaction, improve and develop a firm's innovativeness, organizational improvement, and sustainability (Saha et al., 2020; YuSheng & Ibrahim, 2020). The organizational economy is often necessary for small business auto dealerships to succeed. Leaders can employ the organizational economy to create long-term competitive advantages and generate new management methods and business models, such as organizational sustainability (Dentoni et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can use organizational sustainability to manage a business with new business ideas and practices for sustaining and expanding the business into the global market. Nur Fadiah and Sazali (2019) explored the case of a Brazilian family-owned company of rubber products operating in health, education, and coatings based on organizational sustainability of business knowledge to develop and manage a business in the competitive environment. As a result, organizational sustainability has become a significant factor of the new millennium that leaders use for corporate social responsibility in business to enhance the long-term dynamic economic and environmental business performance (Nur Fadiah & Sazali, 2019).

Market Development and Relationships

Market development and relationships of the RBV theory involve implementing a new marketing resource that can create a new value for customers and shareholders (Muharam et al., 2019). Market development and relationships are components of the

competitive economic strategy that represent a business strategic plan to incorporate the advances in business technology marketing and increase the effectiveness and efficiency of marketing (Quaye & Mensah, 2019). In small business auto dealerships, market development and relationships are significant resources that they can use to gain a competitive advantage for the organizations, create new value for customers, and increase shareholder value (Quaye & Mensah, 2019). Market development and relationships are the generation and implementation of new business ideas and competitive advantages that leaders use to create, communicate, and deliver value to customers in the small business auto dealerships to compete with competitors (Muharam et al., 2019). Using market development and relationships strategy may increase customer marketing efficiency, gain an organization's competitive advantage, and create customer value and relationships (Alomari et al., 2019).

Market development and relationships also involve significant changes in product design and pricing. As a competitive market develops, new market resources become more critical (Krasnov et al., 2018). Developing new market resources helps managers improve their firm's competitive advantage and expand business opportunities (Gibb, 2006). Competitive market development is implementing a newly developing market resource involving significant changes in product design or packaging, product placement, product promotion, or pricing (Krasnov et al., 2018). The strategic implementation of competitive marketing can lengthen the revenue stream from new and existing products by extending their marketplace lifespan (Alomari et al., 2019). In small business auto dealerships, market development and relationships are significant

marketing resources of production design, promotion, and pricing that can lengthen the stream of production (Alomari et al., 2019). Competitive market conceptualization might provide value by incorporating radical and incremental activities, distinguishing it from product and process innovation, maintaining the current or prospective customer as the primary stakeholder, creating a distinction between improvements and inventions, and embracing the boundary spanning perspective (Chou & Kimbrough, 2016). Market development and relationships also involve business products and services that can distinguish business improvement and maintain prospective customers as a primary stakeholders and value (Cave et al., 2019).

Small business leaders are the critical success factors for competitive market development and relationships strategy to find new marketing methods to sustain the organizations (Cave et al., 2019). Influential leaders who focus on competitive marketing and relationship could drive organizations to find new, innovative, and better methods of convincing existing and prospective customers of the value of the organization's products and services (Quaye & Mensah, 2019). Small businesses will succeed in a competitive advantage if leaders employ market development and relationship resources (Hoque & Yakob, 2017). Some valuable marketing resources include virtuous quality service and acceptable prices that leaders can use to achieve superior value (Sedunova & Golichenko, 2020). Quality service and affordable prices are the primary strategies business leaders use to improve organizational success in the competitive environment, maintain a sustainable competitive advantage, and increase profitability and long-term economic competitiveness (Shayestehfar & Yazdani, 2019). Providing quality service and fair

prices may result in repeat sales, improve positive word-of-mouth referrals, increase product differentiation, increase customer satisfaction, strengthen loyalty, and create trust (Shayestehfar & Yazdani, 2019). Leaders should develop customer focus on technology development, good price promotions to perform competitive transactions, and good aftersales service to avoid customer dissatisfaction (Sedunova & Golichenko, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should improve the development of high levels of competitive marketing and its practical implementation to provide direct benefits to firm performance.

Competitive Service and Relationships

Competitive service and relationships of the RBV theory involve an intentional change in the new business services to customers (Syapsan, 2019). Competitive service and relationships are a significant resource of growth in firms that relates to the organizational economy by providing an intentional change in the business services, providing new benefits to the customer, and improving the service firm's profitability with business practice and financial management (Asgher & Hanif, 2018). Service firms innovate by changing the service or the companies' new services (Hosseini et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should change the service delivery processes or provide new service processes to meet customers' needs. New service processes include new or improved production, delivery, or distribution methods, often involving new information technologies (Syapsan, 2019). Competitive service and relationships may affect significant relationship roles of staff, strategic partners, and customers (Gomes et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should change the organizational and

managerial structure, service provider that supports service provision benefits and services to customers, and build customer relationships through service competition strategy (Gomes et al., 2018).

Leaders' ability in competitive service and relationships is the critical source for applying new service strategies to customers' needs (Gomes et al., 2018). As service firms, leaders' competitive edge lies in their ability and capability to acquire, absorb, and apply new information to the needs and frustrations of customers, competitors' service offerings, customers' service priorities, and the technologies available to support service delivery (Kwon et al., 2020). Export and import profitability is frequently linked to the service competitions that offer customers a new or innovative service in the market (Taghreed et al., 2019). Blinda et al. (2019) indicated that customers would pay up to a 10% premium for new services that address a previously unmet need. The premium services may consent firms to recover the extra costs of developing and servicing an import market without jeopardizing profitability (Taghreed et al., 2019).

Importing and exporting competitive services and relationships are significant for small business auto dealership owners to facilitate their organizations to increase high profits. Beynon et al. (2020) noted that several ways link competitive service and relationships to export and import readiness. To effectively resource a firm's export and import initiative, leaders should introduce internal organizational competitions to handle different customer demands (García-Sánchez et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should find the most profitable products in an export and import market if they offer a high-quality service or service delivery process new to the target market (García-

Sánchez et al., 2018). To adapt to the cultural norms of a firm's target market, small business auto dealership owners should change the features of their organizations' service or the assistance they may deliver to customers (Beynon et al., 2020). Using high-quality, competitive service that links to import and export readiness may include handling different demands, finding the most valuable products, and changing service manners to help the organizations increase profits and growth (García-Sánchez et al., 2018; Masoomzadeh et al., 2019).

Improving competitive service and relationships may increase customer satisfaction and loyalty. Martin-Rios et al. (2019) noted that competitive service and relationships focus on competing by changing the rules and making competitors irrelevant. Small business auto dealership owners can achieve competitive service and connections to increase customer satisfaction and strengthen customer loyalty, translating into increased repeat purchases, cross-selling related services, and recommendations to others (Martin-Rios et al., 2019). Heng et al. (2020) discussed how firms could benefit from competitive service and relationships by improving operational efficiency—well-chosen organizational competition can help decrease production costs and increase profitability. Firms also benefit by increasing staff retention—finding appropriately skilled staff is often challenging for service firms. The challenge of generating new ideas and the satisfaction of contributing to success can motivate the team and help attract and retain skilled persons (Heng et al., 2020).

An additional benefit, customers are more likely to be loyal to a service firm with low staff turnover (Abdi et al., 2018). Enhancing staff skills—one unexpected benefit that

service firms report from competitive service and relationships is that their staff can learn new ways of collaborating and interacting with customers through the business process (Abdi et al., 2018; Freixanet et al., 2021). Enhancing staff skills often includes heightened respect for different perspectives, which translates into greater customer satisfaction. Increasing marketplace recognition—as the competition becomes visible to customers, the reputation of the innovative firm is enhanced, and the likelihood of being viewed as a market leader increases (Heng et al., 2020). Improving operational efficiency, increasing staff retention, increasing marketplace recognition, and enhancing employees' skills are significant factors of competitive service and relationships that can help leaders increase profitability.

Competitive service and relationships also involve customers' needs and management of the business process. Manca et al. (2018) indicated the success or failure of competitive service and relationships linked to two primary factors: correct reading of the market and what matters to customers and appropriate management of the business process. While firms usually give explicit attention to the market factors, they are much less likely to manage the business process (Manca et al., 2018). Robbins and O'Gorman (2016) indicated some principles that may facilitate leaders to manage the business process successfully. Small business auto dealership owners should ensure that the business delights customers while meeting the needs of all stakeholders and remaining financially viable (H. Li et al., 2020). Leaders should consider introducing a new performance measure of the return on innovation investment (H. Li et al., 2020).

Providing a vision to drive the change process is an effective strategy for firms. Leaders should think about competition in the company and then change the physical environment to reflect that vision (Lysek et al., 2019). For example, if leaders want employees to brainstorm implementation ideas, create a space where the challenge can be posted, and employees can add their thoughts (Lysek et al., 2019). Firms should provide a risk-tolerant environment where one does not expect always to succeed (Lysek et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should find a way to recognize the creative work of employees that does not result in an adaptive competition, such as circulating a list of ideas proposed, with the names of the proposers, or creating an excellent try award (Gharleghi et al., 2018). Using principles to manage the competition process, small business auto dealership owners should make sure the business delights customers, introduce new services, and change the physical environment to reflect the organization's visions. Small business auto dealership owners should provide risk-tolerant environmental work and find a new way to recognize employees' creative work (Anning-Dorson et al., 2017).

Establishing a lifelong learning orientation for employees is the factor of service development and relationship that can improve an organization's success. Small business auto dealership owners should select a lifelong learning orientation that involves all organization members (Hsieh et al., 2019). Leaders should build choice and ongoing learning into employees' work-life by letting employees choose what projects to work on or allocating time each week to work on their ideas (Lian & Ling, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should support creative thinking in a diverse, information-rich

environment (Weinberger et al., 2016). Small business auto dealership owners should establish a lifelong learning orientation to improve business successes and growth, including letting employees choose what project to work on, allocating time for employees to work, and supporting creative thinking in a diverse (Pigozne et al., 2019; Rowland et al., 2017).

The creative process may require some inputs to stimulate new concepts (Reibenspiess et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should ensure that employees are exposed to new ideas through techniques (Reibenspiess et al., 2020). For example, they ask employees to report on the implications of a new trend, encourage employees to report on their training implications, subscribe to a range of journals for employees, and arrange staff interchange with sister organizations (Reibenspiess et al., 2020). Firms should provide a cross-functional systems perspective to analyze the impact of change and oversee implementation (Wegman et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should build multiple perspectives using cross-sector teams to brainstorm new ideas or encourage staff to role-play different customer and staff perspectives and resolve differences.

Organizational Business Mode Strategy

Organizational business mode strategy is the sum of the actions that an organization intends to achieve long-term goals by using the resources of production, marketing, inventory, and other business activities to gain a competitive advantage (Nadeem et al., 2018). Organizational business mode strategy must be compatible with other factors to improve business performance (Yuliansyah et al., 2017). Therefore, to

make small business auto dealerships continuously increase business performance, it is necessary to have organizational structures and work processes align with their business resources and strategy (Nadeem et al., 2018). Organizational business mode strategy is about the competitive advantage that small business auto dealership owners can use to facilitate organizations' goals of long-term prosperity, success, and affluence (Verma & Sharma, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should need business resources and strategy to allocate resources most effectively and successfully.

The business strategy is particularly significant in resource allocation decisions (Al-Omoush et al., 2018). The business resources and strategy are concerned with doing an individual business to survive, grow, and be profitable long-term (Al-Omoush et al., 2018). The three modes of business resources and strategy are planning, entrepreneurial, and adaptive, which can be useful for leaders to achieve competitive advantage and maintain the organizations (Cavaleri & Shabana, 2018). Planning mode is one of the most significant strategies of management processes leaders use to ensure sufficient resources and stability to conduct a comprehensive organizational goal and sustain business in competitive advantage (Li, 2021). In the entrepreneurial mode, strategy is developed mainly by a strong visionary leader who actively searches for new business opportunities, is growth-oriented, and is willing to make bold decisions or shift strategies whenever necessary (Kissi et al., 2020; Zhou et al., 2018). An adaptive mode is an approach to strategy formulation in which leaders emphasize taking small, incremental steps and reacting to problems rather than seeking opportunities and attempting to satisfy several organizational power groups (Deng et al., 2018; Lei & Liao, 2019). The right choice

depends on contingency variables such as the size, volume, and age of the business firms and decision-makers power (Eggert et al., 2017). As a result, organizational business mode strategy, including business planning, entrepreneurship, and adaptive modes, are the practical implementations of the primary goals that small business auto dealership owners can use to sustain organizations' performance and gain competitive advantage (Stosic-Panic, 2019).

Planning mode strategies are the factors of organizational management activities that leaders use to set priorities, focus energy and resources, strengthen operations, and ensure employees work toward the organization's goal (Santana-Sarmiento & Velázquez-Medina, 2021). Business leaders worldwide are adopting strategic planning to face business challenges in a highly competitive and rapidly changing business environment (Jamali et al., 2017). Effective business planning modes are critical to an entrepreneurial company's long-term success and the ability to raise capital and grow successfully in the competitive environment (Guerry & De Feyter, 2012). Influential small business auto dealership owners who prepare business plans should tell a story, make an argument and conservatively predict the future. Breeze and Pamala (2020) indicated that all business leaders have different stories to tell, distant views to make, goals to achieve, and unlike futures to predict. Leaders should resist the temptation to copy others or follow a rigid outline (Arriagada-Benítez et al., 2017).

Planning mode strategies are a strategic approach that includes a clear statement of objectives, a plan of action to reach those objectives, and a systematic analysis of the organization and the environment (Breeze & Pamala, 2020). Small business auto

dealership owners should achieve and follow the business strategy of planning mode when the organization is mature and well established (Koronis & Ponis, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should agree with the organization's objectives, have adequate resources to engage in opportunity analysis, and have low environmental uncertainty (Koronis & Ponis, 2018). The business-planning mode is significant to an organization's long-term success and the ability to raise capital successfully in the competitive environment.

Entrepreneurial and adaptive modes are significant factors that leaders use to gain a competitive advantage in the market. In the entrepreneurial mode strategy, small organizations with a strong leader take full responsibility for planning on behalf of the production department with entrepreneurial skills, good in planning, organizing, and motivation to sustain business in the competitive environment (Harrison et al., 2018; Kissi et al., 2020). The business strategy of the adaptive mode is a strategic approach characterized by the organization's objectives, and the means to achieve these are continually adjusted (Breeze & Pamala, 2020; Lei & Liao, 2019). The adaptive model of strategy making is the most effective strategy when environmental uncertainty is very high (Kyobe, 2008). Small business auto dealership owners should use adaptive strategy mode and focus management's attention on the short-term when internal power struggles make it impossible for senior management to agree on where the organization should be going (Kyobe, 2008; Shu, 2017). Leaders should use adaptive strategy mode to gain a competitive advantage (Koronis & Ponis, 2018).

The business strategy of the entrepreneurial mode presents a strategic approach in which a strong leader, usually the organization's founder, draws on personal judgment, decision, and experience to form an intuitive image of the organization's direction (VilaLopez & White, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should realize the business strategy of the entrepreneurial mode characterized by bold decision-making in which periods of pause are followed by periods of sprinting (Harrison et al., 2018). They should understand the entrepreneurial mode strategy that is more likely to be effective when the organization is young and small, when a single, influential leader has an intimate knowledge of the business, or when crises occur (Breeze & Pamala, 2020; Harrison et al., 2018). The entrepreneurial mode focuses on opportunities more than problems, but the adaptive mode is characterized by reactive solutions to existing problems rather than a proactive search for new opportunities (Capello & Lenzi, 2016).

Small Businesses

Small businesses create most of the jobs in the United States. Small businesses play an instrumental role in the U.S. economy, produce most of the nation's new jobs, employ half of the private sector workforce, and provide half of the personal actual gross domestic product (Blankson et al., 2018; Downie, 2017). Small businesses that innovate are most likely to grow and expand the firms into large businesses and become a source of highly technologically advanced, high-quality productions and services and high-paying jobs in the future (Galan-Mashenene & Kumburu, 2020; Jones & Graham, 2018). The trend of small businesses, especially patenting, is becoming a focal point in applied economics, management principles, and policymaking (Galan-Mashenene & P.

Kumburu, 2020). U.S. Small Business Administration (2016) indicated that small businesses represented 99.7% of all the U.S. employer firms, and approximately 80% of small businesses create new jobs. Roughly 9,500 entrepreneurs start new businesses each year, of which nearly 26 new businesses start daily (Coetzer et al., 2017; Dele-Ijagbulu et al., 2020; U.S. Small Business Administration, 2016). As a result, small businesses are drivers of the U.S. economy that can give small business owners entrepreneurial spirits and create more jobs for the communities.

Small businesses are a necessity for adapting to changes in the competitive business environment. Small businesses generate economic value in employment, goods and services, exports, taxation income, and innovation (Dreyer et al., 2017). Small businesses also operate more efficiently than large firms but are more vulnerable to failure because leaders lack business resources and strategies (Simsek et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners may require flexibility in operations to assist businesses in responding to changes in the business climate, product, and business life cycles (Coetzer et al., 2017; Dele-Ijagbulu et al., 2020). Outcomes from small businesses depend on internal and external factors in the broad environment in which they operate (Dele-Ijagbulu et al., 2020). Internal and external factors include capabilities, resources, and competitive strategies (Vatuiu & Lazaroiu, 2019). Lyu et al. (2019) stated organizational leaders use resources, abilities, and competitive approaches to determine organization performance. Small business auto dealership owners can use internal and external factors to achieve company performance, operational business services, and

competitive advantages to sustain a business in the competitive environment (Lyu et al., 2019).

Small Businesses Failure

Small business failure involves many reasons that can affect the organization. Kücher et al. (2018) clarified the primary cause of small business failure. Small business owners that start with undercapitalized or insufficient capital may have a potential or higher chance of failure in the business industry (Blankson et al., 2018; Kücher et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should understand the effect of small business owners' failure because they are not keep updated information or accurate records (Yang & Del-Carmen, 2019). They do not use adequate financial controls, do not develop specific business plans, and do not use professional advisors (Yang & Del-Carmen, 2019). Small businesses managed by managers without previous industry experience, without management experience, without any college education, and marketing skills may have a higher chance of business failure (Amankwah-Amoah et al., 2018; Yang & Del-Carmen, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should recognize those small businesses operated by leaders without experience, capabilities, and education, who select products/services that are too new or old, start during a recession, and may have a higher chance of failure (Schwarz et al., 2021).

Small businesses that provide products that cannot attract and retain quality employees may have a higher chance of failure than firms operated by leaders who select products/services in the growth stage and at the right time (Schwarz et al., 2021; Vivel-Búa & Lado-Sestayo, 2021). Younger people start a business, a business started by one

person, and business owners whose parents did not own a company have a higher chance of failure (Vivel-Búa & Lado-Sestayo, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners should identify leaders who lack business resources, planning, capabilities, and insufficient capital, start the business for the wrong reasons, and poor location may have a higher chance of increasing business failure (Eskreis-Winkler & Fishbach, 2019; Raynard, 2017).

Business strategic planning involves business success and growth. Leaders lacking proper planning is one reason small businesses fail, are unsuccessful, and go out of business (Van Al-Shami et al., 2019). Entrepreneurs fail to create strategic business plans, such as workforce needs, analysis of competitors, sales and expense forecasts, and marketing budgets (Ajayi & Olaniyan, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should have a strategic business plan (Souza et al., 2019). The business plan should include where the business will be in the next few months to the next few years, contain measurable goals and results, and have specific lists with dates and deadlines (Souza et al., 2019). Nizaeva and Coskun (2019) identified that business entrepreneurs expand more than one firm that has experienced bankruptcy. Small business auto dealership owners should decide about expansion only after carefully reviewing, researching, and analyzing what they should need to increase new employees, facilities, and systems (Souza et al., 2019; Wapshott & Mallett, 2018). Business planning is necessary for company growth and success (Van Trang et al., 2019). Using business plans can let companies track growth, establish a budget, and prepare for unforeseen changes in the marketplace (Van Trang et al., 2019).

Networking is an effective strategy that business owners can use to advertise their products to attract customers. While traditional advertising methods are still helpful, networking is the best way to market the business, such as Google, Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn (McCorkle & Alexander, 2019; Ter Wal et al., 2020). According to the research firm Clutch, Shafi et al. (2019) identified that nearly 46% of all small businesses do not have one network. Small business auto dealership owners should create one of the network sites by using any number of self-service platforms to promote the business so customers can perceive, recognize, and observe (Wapshott & Mallett, 2018). YuSheng and Ibrahim (2020) indicated that lack of product differentiation is a small business problem. Product differentiation is a marketing process that displays product differences (Ghosh, 2021). Ghosh (2021) stated that product differentiation makes a product more attractive, good-looking, and gorgeous by contrasting its unique qualities with similar effects.

Successful product differentiation creates a competitive advantage for the product's owner, as customers view the products as unique or better (Puzio et al., 2020). Small business owners of auto dealerships must build a strong product differentiation plan to compete effectively, such as a unique value proposition (UVP); without UVP, the organization will get lost in the competition (Puzio et al., 2020; Sherman, 2017). Networking is an important personal skill for business people and necessary for entrepreneurs (McCorkle & Alexander, 2019). Networking in the entrepreneurial ecosystem is a productive approach that can help small business owners of auto

dealerships build strong relationships with other entrepreneurs from different nationalities and fields of interest (McCorkle & Alexander, 2019).

The Key Constructs of Business Models

The fundamental constructs of business models are creating new business models that better satisfy customers' needs than existing ones (Aversa et al., 2019). The fundamental constructs of business models are related to strategic management, administration, and marketing decision-making process in organizations (Du et al., 2020). In the auto industry, the basic constructs of business models include small businesses, strategic marketing decisions, business processes, business methods, internal contextual factors, and external contextual factors (Schneider & Clauß, 2020). Strategic marketing decisions are significant factors for small business auto dealerships regarding business function and financial performance (Dadzie et al., 2021). The important elements in strategic marketing decisions influence most functional areas of business management and decision-making (Dadzie et al., 2021).

Small business auto dealerships are significant independent organizations, and the principal power of decision-making exists in particular individuals with ownerships (Truong et al., 2017). The business process is the category of business concepts or variables throughout the appearance of the need for strategic marketing decisions and the final obligation and commitment (Sun, Xiao, et al., 2018). The business method represents how each phase or step of the strategic decision-making process that small business operators or leaders of auto dealerships can conduct those procedures (Truong et al., 2017). Internal contextual factors are significant characteristics associated with the

manager's decision-making process and the organization itself, affecting how they perform the strategic marketing decision (Love et al., 2021). External contextual factors are the fundamental forces external to the business, influencing how they conduct the strategic marketing decision or decision-making (R. Kumar et al., 2019). The business model innovations are strategic management, administration, and marketing decision-making processes (Chattopadhyay, 2018; Love et al., 2021). With these business models, small business auto dealership owners can solve the business problem by identifying the customers, engaging with customers' needs, delivering customer satisfaction, and monetizing the customers' value (Schneider & Clauß, 2020).

Competitive Business Model

The business model has become a strong competitive advantage in the marketplace. The business model is a critical resource to success with the current globalization of economic activities (Akmaeva et al., 2020). The business model is a multi-dimensional concept, which goes beyond, knowledge, expertise, skills, and technology competition to include new means of distribution, advertising, promotion, marketing, or design (Kang & Na, 2020). The business model is the driver for business growth in the high-tech sectors of the economy. Organizational leaders can apply the business model as a differentiator to conceive, visualize, distribute, and deliver novelty to the marketplace (Saravia-Matus et al., 2018). The business model includes new products and unique concepts supporting financial sustainability, viability, and capability (Kang & Na, 2020). Organizational leaders can apply the business model to strengthen the corporate mission and the processes for developing and implementing new concepts

(Kang & Na, 2020). The business model is the significant driver of business growth and success that can develop new products, create new market systems and rules, and provide new concepts for administrative practicability and sustainability (Aversa et al., 2019; Kang & Na, 2020).

The business model is important in a time of instability, which provides the small business firm with a way to break out of the intense competition (Desyllas et al., 2020). The primary goal of the business model is to realize new revenue sources by improving service and product value to meet customer needs (Kang & Na, 2020). The digital age has become an impetus for business models, as technology has dramatically changed how companies operate innovative productions and deliver to customers (Aversa et al., 2019). The global marketplace has further driven the need for the business model, as companies must react to stiffer international competition and the increased potential for systemic risk (Kazmane, 2018). The international competition and systemic risk force companies to turn to business models to stay competitive and foster growth in the competitive global marketplace (Kazmane, 2018).

Using the business model to create a sustainable competitive advantage, business environment, and differentiation is significant for organizations in the marketplaces (Aversa et al., 2019; Eckhardt, 2013). Small business auto dealership owners use the business model to improve the effectiveness, competence, capability, ability, and efficiency of business core processes and functions (Kazmane, 2018). They use the business model to provide opportunities for organizations to specialize, focus, and shift quickly to seize business growth by helping the organizations to become more nimble,

dexterous, reactive, responsive, sociable, and approachable in the business industry (Jose et al., 2020). Innovating on business models and operations can create opportunities for cost savings and lead to additional revenue generation opportunities (Aversa et al., 2019). Using the business model to create new paths to growth is the most important for organizations (Aversa et al., 2019). The business model includes choices for the mission, vision, core values, brand identity, preferences for core competencies, processes, strategic partners, options for managing customer relationships, and choices for products and services (Pattinson, 2020).

Another significant strategic management and practice business model is the powerhouse (Agathokleous, 2021). The powerhouse is the Best Management Practices Institute (BMPI) which aspires to support small business individuals, groups, and organizations in the community at large that aids them in achieving business excellence and outstanding through the best management strategies and practices (Shutt & Liddle, 2020). The powerhouse concept is based on the three methods: superior strategy, middle strategy, and inferior strategy (Borjalilu & Ghambari, 2018). Borjalilu and Ghambari (2018) stated that it is also based on the six focuses: customer focus, process focus, human capital, competition capital, power leadership, and power performance. Small business auto dealership owners can use the powerhouse concept of three methods, and six focus on sustaining a competitive advantage (Agathokleous, 2021; Shutt & Liddle, 2020). Morales et al. (2019) noted that organizational leaders could use the six strategic drivers to achieve continuous improvements, developments, and enhancements in enterprises at different levels with the application, function, and relevance of the best

management models and advanced information technology. Small business auto dealership owners could apply the six strategic drivers as best practices to sustain their competitive advantage and market status (McMillan, 2019).

Small business auto dealership owners can establish a powerhouse to develop small businesses into a regional technology and service center (Liddle, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners integrate facilities to help organizations use the latest management tools to improve and build their competitive advantage (Liddle, 2019; McMillan, 2019). Powerhouse's initiatives plan to create images for small business auto dealerships as a regional service center (Shutt & Liddle, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can build a culture of service productivity and quality in the organizations and improve competitive advantage by developing, improving, and disseminating effective business practices or good service practices (Borjalilu & Ghambari, 2018; McMillan, 2019).

Value Creation and Resource Integration

Customer value creation is significant for firms to gain a competitive advantage (Kim, 2019). Meng et al. (2020) stated that customers' roles are a source of firms' performance that are considered value creators (Leroi-Werelds et al., 2017). On the other hand, firms consider service providers where service could be the use of resources to support customers' everyday practices, physical, mental, virtual, and possessive, thereby facilitating their value creation (Taheri et al., 2017). Firms thus act as value facilitators by providing resources representing potential value to customers, such as goods, services, and information (Leroi-Werelds et al., 2017). One of the firm's critical supportive roles is

offering and communicating compelling value propositions to current and potential customers (Cambra-Fierro et al., 2018; Oyner & Korelina, 2016).

Value propositions are often treated as a firm's promise about the potential value of an offering (Oyner & Korelina, 2016). Value propositions should also acknowledge the customer's role in value creation (Oyner & Korelina, 2016). More specifically, value propositions should communicate the potential value of the offering and the customer's resource-integrated position, which is required to transform this potential value into real value (Cambra-Fierro et al., 2018; Mahmoud et al., 2018). From small business auto dealerships' viewpoint, their roles in value creation are to propose value propositions, contribute resources and places, and provide primary conditions for customers' creation behavior (Leroi-Werelds et al., 2017). Small business auto dealership owners and customers should achieve mutual assistance and cooperation in creating value and achieving "win-win" benefits (Mahmoud et al., 2018). Value creation emphasizes collaboration between small business auto dealership owners and customers (Cambra-Fierro et al., 2018). The focus is on improving enterprise production efficiency and enhancing customer participation in organizational processes (Hariyati et al., 2019; Meng et al., 2020). Small auto dealership owners need to support a product or service's lifecycle to create more value for customers (Meng et al., 2020).

Customers and small business auto dealership owners interact through customer resource integrations (France et al., 2020). Value creation is an activity in which participants collaborate through direct customer resource interactions to promote one or both (customers and small business auto dealerships) parties' value contributions (France

et al., 2020). Customer resources are the key to revealing the value creation mechanism (Bu et al., 2020; France et al., 2020). If value creation is easily understood comprehensively, it will inevitably involve a deep understanding of customer resources' influence on customer value in the creation process (Bu et al., 2020). Customer resources include intelligence, experience, physical strength, emotions, physics, finances, time, behavior, relationships, society, culture, roles, customers' abilities, and wishes (Meng et al., 2020). Customer resources in value creation are the factors acquired or controlled by customers who can create value (Åslund & Bäckström, 2017; Leroi-Werelds et al., 2017). Customers obtain value creation through interaction with small business auto dealerships.

Customer focus is another resource that considers a solid contributor to the business's success that involves ensuring all aspects of the organization by putting customer satisfaction first (France et al., 2020; X. Luo et al., 2018). Customer focus means that the activities of the companies intend to benefit the customer, but the customer is seen from the companies' perspective (Goyal et al., 2017). Efforts are usually made to gain information about the customers' needs and want, although always in a framework that originates in the companies' view of the product and its features (Islamgaleyev et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners need to gain entry into the customers' perspective and adopt the customers' viewing of the product (Lesakova & Rehak, 2020). To fully develop the potential quality, small business auto dealerships need to move beyond simple customer focus and create a more profound customer understanding (Lesakova & Rehak, 2020). Customers can use advanced information

technology to access small business auto dealerships' websites and obtain product information online before they enter the store (Duan et al., 2018).

Owing to the widespread of using the Internet, many small businesses of the market environment and customer demands are undergoing, experiencing, and suffering drastic changes (Lesakova & Rehak, 2020; Luo & Homburg, 2007). Based on this circumstance, to win over the market, small business auto dealership owners should promote customer-oriented marketing strategies and service qualities, enhance customers' satisfaction with their needs, and use state-of-the-art technologies (Cayre et al., 2018; Duan et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should improve customer relations by understanding market realities, market situations, customer expectations, customer fulfillment, and customer satisfaction (Duan et al., 2018; Lim et al., 2020).

High customer fulfillment and satisfaction are about organizations building business relationships with customers and transferring to loyal, long-term customers (Lim et al., 2020; Yang & Zhang, 2018). By building relationships with customers, small business auto dealership owners should provide, create, direct, and sustain high function and performance business services through the identification, classification, operation, deployment, consumption, alignment, implementation, and execution of marketing strategies, business plans, and business objectives (Mirarab et al., 2019; Yang & Zhang, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should ensure that business processes, procedures, practices, and methods used to design, develop, deliver, distribute, support, and provide business services to customers continue to function and performance

efficiently and effectively (Goyal et al., 2017; Mirarab et al., 2019). The significant resource of customer focus is to improve customer relationships, understand customer expectations, customer fulfillment, and customer satisfaction, and efficiently provide business services to customers (Yang & Zhang, 2018).

Business Process Management and Performance

Business process management (BPM) involves managing business activities of organizations' performances and competitive advantages (Djedovic et al., 2018). The BPM is defined as a discipline supporting business processes using methods, techniques, and software to design, enact, control, and analyze operational processes involving humans, organizations, applications, documents, and other sources of information (Bucher & Winter, 2009; Djedovic et al., 2018). Using BPM can provide high-quality customer service to achieve total customer satisfaction and fulfillment (Zelt et al., 2019). The management team of auto dealerships should have the high technology of streamlined systems and efficient business processes that aid in quickly responding to customers (Bressolles & Lang, 2020; Zelt et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should develop business process management, enhance cross-functional cooperation systems in control, increase staff communication, and improve work efficiency, keys or factors to business excellence and outstanding performance (Yang & Zhang, 2018).

The business function information should show business health and support daily operational business processes (Balashov et al., 2018; Giacosa et al., 2018). Each business service should have its important function and performance indicators, which

must meet customer needs and ensure that best practices could implement to avoid and stay away from common business service issues (S. Lee et al., 2021). Small business auto dealership owners should ensure that all the employees are trained, motivated, responsible, capable, knowledgeable, and competent to constant customer expectations.

Small business management faces uncertainty because of changes in market demands. To overcome these problems, leadership must design and develop the desired strategy for future adaptation to achieve a sustainable competitive advantage in the market era (Guangxi et al., 2020). Leadership power could influence others through the ability of leaders (B. Kumar et al., 2019). Leadership power can attain new heights in business achievement, accomplishment, success, and competitive advantage (B. Kumar et al., 2019). Small business firms should need strong leaders to apply talented staff to successfully implement innovative customers and marketing strategies through an effective working process in the business industry (Stead & Elliott, 2019). The management team of auto dealerships should provide leadership development, enhance the leadership system, and implement strategic management to help organizations establish strong leadership (Stead & Elliott, 2019).

The firm can create sustainable bridges in the different functional areas to develop, increase, and improve process capability, competence, and profit and loss (P&L) (Schwarzmüller et al., 2017; Sperber & Linder, 2018). Small business leaders can build strong process managers, supervisors, and P&L business ownership; consolidate and combine process execution, achievement, and implementation of operations over time (Sperber & Linder, 2018). The management team of auto dealerships should elevate the

relationship profile of the operations workforce within the firms regarding business process management (Jayaraman et al., 2018; Sulieman, 2017). Small business auto dealership owners should use the power of leadership to achieve an organizational goal and a competitive advantage (Sulieman, 2017). Improving and managing power leadership can help small auto dealership owners increase an effective working process and gain a competitive advantage.

Performance measurement systems (PMS) involve achieving excellent business results, increasing a high profit in the market, and gaining a competitive advantage (Waqar et al., 2020). The PMS of marketing competition is fiercer than ever in the business environment because the competition is flowing, circulating, and exceeding at a frantic pace (Jin & Smith, 2020; Waqar et al., 2020). Even when small businesses have achieved high profitability in the market and gained a competitive advantage, small business auto dealership owners should still attempt their best to strengthen their management and competitive strategies (Batko, 2017). Specific in customer services, streamlined business process, human capital, innovation capital, and effective leadership to achieve outstanding PMS in the industry (Batko, 2017). The management team of auto dealerships should assist their organizations in developing a balanced PMS in business, thoroughly assessing their organizational performance, and classify the business performance gap between competitors and organizations so that continuous improvements and developments can occur in the future (Maestrini et al., 2018).

The PMS also involves improving business dynamics and organizations' performances to attain a competitive advantage (Elgazzar et al., 2019). The PMS is a set

of business performance indicators that can reflect, replicate, and imitate organizations' key value-adding activities, actions, and functions (Elgazzar et al., 2019; Lisi, 2018). An effective PMS plays an important part in supporting managers in tracking organizational performance to determine the degree to which strategic objectives have been met (Asiaei & Bontis, 2020). Companies fail to fully reap their benefits if their underlying resources and capacities, mainly knowledge resources, are not appropriately managed (Asiaei & Bontis, 2020). Small business auto dealership owners can use organizational control systems, such as PMS, to control, influence, and influence employees to complete tasks and exert efforts in confident, positive, and specific ways to increase organizational performance and sustain competitive advantage (Jha et al., 2017).

Asiaei and Bontis (2020) noted that the design of organizational control systems, like PMS, must be a sufficiently innovative strategy to attain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners could benefit from knowledge-related capacities and creativity, such as knowledge management (Asiaei & Bontis, 2020). The PMS can play a role as a lever to facilitate the management of small business auto dealerships' knowledge-based functions by providing relevant information on the firm's strategic resources to customers (Asiaei & Bontis, 2020; Couturier & Sklavounos, 2019). Couturier and Sklavounos (2019) also indicated that some advantages of knowledge management factors, such as improved communication and relationship with customers, supported employee growth and development, and enhanced organizational agility, might indirectly affect organizations' performance through the mediating effect of PMS.

Transition

Section 1 introduced the core of the doctoral study, including (a) the background of the study, (b) the problem statement, (c) the purpose statement, (d) the nature of study, (e) the research question, (f) interview questions, and (g) conceptual framework. The purpose of this qualitative case study is to explore business strategies in the small business auto dealership owners used the management skills, knowledge, and practices to sustain their organizations for more than 5 years in the competitive environment. The nature of the study includes the qualitative method and case study design in the research study. The conceptual framework of theory innovation is related to the business problem, as well as the business innovation, management strategies, business strategies of competitive advantages, and the research method. Section 1 also included the definition of terms, the significance of the study, the assumptions, limitations, delimitations, and the literature review. The literature review included information regarding business strategies and knowledge that influence management decisions and choices made by small business owners.

In Section 2, I describe the data collection section of the information criteria in detail to offer data collection instrument, technique, and analysis process regarding how to collect and analyze data, validate, and reliable instruments. Section 2 also explains the research method and design, followed by a description of the target population, sample size, and sampling methods. A detailed description of the data collection instrument, data collection technique, data analysis plan, confidentiality procedures, and the validity and reliability of the study instrument is in section 2. Section 3 may include an introduction

including the purpose statement, research question, findings, application to professional practice, implications for social change/behaviors, recommendations for action and further study, and concludes with researcher reflections.

Section 2: The Project

Small business leaders have been experiencing the effects and the consequences of business competition to gain a competitive advantage. Gaining a competitive advantage is a significant issue for many small business owners to sustain their organizations' competitive market (Gorynia, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should use competitive resources to develop the business skills, management, performance, strategies, and practices required for business success (Abu-Rumman, 2018; Sołoducho-Pelc & Sulich, 2020). In Section 2, I describe the components of my study, which include: (a) the purpose statement, (b) the role of the researcher, (c) participants, (d) research method and design, (e) population and sampling, (f) ethical research, (g) data collection instruments, (h) data collection technique, (i) data organization technique, (j) data analysis, and (k) reliability and validity.

Purpose Statement

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain organizations beyond 5 years. The targeted population was three small business auto dealership owners in Sacramento, California who used strategies to sustain business operations beyond 5 years. The study results may contribute to social change by reducing business failures and improving organizational practices in the small business automobile industry. Leaders may use the findings to create additional jobs for local communities using and implementing a data-driven strategic plan for new auto dealerships startups.

Role of the Researcher

I was the primary instrument for data collection in the research study (see Ajumobi et al., 2018). The role of a researcher is to formulate the research question, select an appropriate research method and design, collect the data, and analyze the data (Ajumobi et al., 2018; Suh, 2018). I conducted semistructured interviews with each of the study participants. A researcher may collect data through personal interviews or focus groups, conducting in-depth interviews, making observations and recording notes, and taking photographs (Nelliot et al., 2019). Conducting qualitative interviews is a challenging research activity for researchers (Frew & Breheny, 2020). My role as a qualitative researcher entailed participating in all phases of this research study by recruiting potential participants, selecting an appropriate research method, collecting data, transcribing recordings, and analyzing data.

My relationship with the topic of small auto dealership sustainability derived from being an emerging small business auto dealer since 2008. My work experience was as a professional car salesperson for 5 years in the automobile industry. As a professional car salesperson for 5 years, I had experienced the struggles of small business auto dealerships in my community that struggled with decreased profitability and had difficulty sustaining their organizations.

Researchers should follow the principles of the Belmont Report while conducting a research study to achieve research goals and objectives (Favaretto et al., 2020). The Belmont Report summarizes the basic ethical principles and guidelines for protecting human subjects of research identified by the National Commission (Adashi et al., 2018;

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 2016). The Belmont Report includes the differences between research and practice and addresses three basic ethical principles: respect for persons, beneficence, and justice (Favaretto et al., 2020). To ensure that all human subjects are unharmed, researchers should respect all participants by treating everyone as an autonomous person and approaching them in a just manner. In my role as a researcher, I purposefully selected participants to eliminate vulnerable humans in line with Belmont guidelines and principles. The use of the Belmont Report protocol included obtaining informed consent from willing participants and maintaining their confidentiality. The Belmont Report also recognizes the personal dignity and special protection of participants with diminished autonomy (Adashi et al., 2018). I kept participants' information secure and ensured adherence to ethical limitations by following the Belmont Report's principles and guidelines for protecting human subjects within the research protocol.

The experiences of previous researchers are critical to a research study. Kishishita et al. (2019) described how bias can occur in any research phase, including study design or data collection, as well as in the data analysis process. Bias management is a significant challenge for qualitative researchers who use interviews to collect data (Prater et al., 2017). During every research study stage, researchers must be mindful of possible biases and deliberate on strategies to mitigate biases (Ayorinde et al., 2020). To reduce bias, researchers should reduce nonverbal expressions during the interview process (Ayorinde et al., 2020). While researchers cannot eliminate the research study process in their experiences, they can take measures to mitigate these influences' effect on the

research findings (Suh, 2018). In this study, I reduced bias by maintaining a high ethical standard through honesty, professional competence, and reading articles related to the research study. Marino (2020) stated that researchers can focus on self-understanding of the topic area and the impact of their expectations. I mitigated bias by focusing on understanding the topic research area and my expectations as a qualitative researcher.

I also used reflective journaling to ensure that my actions were ethical manner during the interview process. Werner et al. (2018) recommended implementing a journaling process to ensure the exclusion of personal bias, morals, or beliefs when researchers conduct qualitative research. Researchers should use reflective journaling as a resource to ensure the mitigation of personal bias (Geibel et al., 2021). I maintained a journal to manage, determine, and reduce any potential bias that could affect the data collection in the research study. To avoid a personal preference, ethical protection for each participant is significant during the study (Richardson et al., 2017). I provided trustworthiness by informing participants that their confidential information would remain secure, thereby minimizing risks and maximizing their benefits. Participants received assurance that their personal identity would be strictly protected and that only I could listen to their interview audio recordings and interpret their verbatim transcriptions.

The interview protocol is the foundation of qualitative interviews. An interview protocol increases the reliability and consistency of a research study, as researchers are bound to follow the study process of data collection (Wright et al., 2018; Yin, 2016).

Researchers ask exploratory research questions that assist participants in providing data

and carefully listen to the responses from participants to get a deeper understanding (Saddour, 2020). As a qualitative researcher, I conducted face-to-face interviews using semistructured interview questions to encourage the exchange of follow-up questions to understand participants' responses better. I planned to use the interview protocol as a guideline to keep the participants gathering relevant information in the allotted timeframe. Qualitative researchers rely on interview protocols to achieve research commonality, consistency, and reliability (Hollin et al., 2020). The interview protocol is an instrument of inquiry describing the interview process related to the aims of a study and as an instrument for a conversation about a particular topic (Hollin et al., 2020). An interview protocol (see Appendix A) was used to ensure that the same procedures were followed with each participant during the interviews.

Participants

Researchers use eligibility criteria to select participants for their study (Oczkowski et al., 2017). Qualitative researchers recruit participants with in-depth knowledge and expertise on the phenomenon of interest (Kwok, 2020; Lindstrom et al., 2020). In this study, the eligibility criteria for participants were used to select owners of auto dealerships in Sacramento, California, who had successfully used business strategies to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years. I recruited knowledgeable participants who had implemented business strategies by contacting owners of small auto dealerships in Sacramento, California via the LinkedIn social media platform. I contacted responding managers, introduced myself, explained the purpose of the study, and asked for a referral of candidates who could participate in the study by email. Obtaining nominations from

small auto dealership managers increased the chances of candidates with the required business implementation experience aligned with the overarching research question.

Researchers use purposeful sampling to select participants with business experiences and knowledge (Ahmad, 2019; Jacobs et al., 2020). To eliminate vulnerable human research subjects in the study in line with the *Belmont Report* and establish alignment between the participants' characteristics and the overarching research question, I purposefully selected participants who met the inclusion criteria with adequate experiences regarding the phenomenon under study. Researchers should select participants who can demonstrate the ability to succeed in the business of a competitive environment while making profits (Wolff et al., 2020). Each selected participant possessed the necessary insights, capabilities, and experience in implementing strategies to succeed in business.

Researchers should use specific criteria to gain access to desired participants (Routhier et al., 2019). Owners and managers are responsible for guiding, monitoring, and controlling researchers' access to the information within an organization (Gretenkord et al., 2019). Researchers should get permission to perform research studies from owners and managers (Gretenkord et al., 2019). I requested and gained access to participants through owners and managers after receiving Walden University Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval for the study. For the interviews to occur, I must receive permission from owners and managers to discuss business information on how they used capabilities, resources, and strategies to sustain their businesses and gain a competitive advantage. Kaufmann and Tzanetakis (2020) indicated that researchers can send a letter inviting eligible participants to participate in a study by email or person. I emailed an

invitation letter to eligible participants after receiving permission from owners and managers to conduct the study. The selected participants received an invitation letter by email to participate in the interview. The invitation letters included clarification of the research study and an explanation of the inclusion criteria for the study. It also consisted of the interview confirmation regarding the date and time and a description of the confidentiality and informed consent process. Katainen and Heikkilä (2020) indicated that participants invited to participate in an interview must voluntarily agree and sign a consent form before the study begins. Those who agreed to participate received an informed consent form in a subsequent email and signed and returned the form to me, indicating their agreement to participate.

Researchers should establish a working relationship with participants before conducting a study (Hyun-Hee et al., 2020). The relationship between participants and researchers should be energetic, and the consequence of the relationship should be overtly stated (Civaner et al., 2017; Hyun-Hee et al., 2020). I established working relationships via email with the participants by building confidence. Researchers should make personal contact with participants to develop working relationships with them (Bashir, 2020). The relationship between a researcher and participants is important to build an environment of trust (Mukumbang et al., 2020). Participants who agreed to participate in the study met the established criteria and signed a consent form. A consent form could provide information relating to the purpose of the research, and should indicate that the information provided regarding the participant's identity, individuality, and confidentiality will not be compromised (Suh, 2018). The consent form also included

information indicating that participation in the study was voluntary. I clarified the purpose of the research study, the procedures for data collection, and the risks and benefits of participating in the research study. I clarified that the study would not involve collecting any personally identifying information from the study participants.

Research Method and Design

Research Method

The qualitative research method was most suitable to explore the participants' experiences in the study in-depth. The use of the qualitative research method is the most appropriate technique for researchers to study the meaning that people attribute to lived experiences (Kawulich & D'Alba, 2019). I used the qualitative method to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years. Bravington and King (2019) indicated that researchers can use the qualitative method to explore small business owners' experiences in greater depth using semistructured interviews to understand a phenomenon. I used semistructured interviews to understand how to build a sustainable business operation in a competitive environment. Using semistructured interviews helped me concentrate on the how and why of the particular business issue. Researchers use the qualitative method to ask what, where, and how questions of participants who have experienced the phenomenon under study (Toews et al., 2017).

Researchers use the quantitative method to analyze results and problems based on statistical data and inferential statistics (Crowe et al., 2017). Quantitative research typically involves testing, measuring, and verifying numerical data, while qualitative

research involves words or consideration of experiential narrative data (Natow, 2020; Xu, 2021). A researcher using the quantitative research method may apply objective measurements and conduct mathematical and statistical analyses of data collected through polls and surveys (Apuke, 2017; Natow, 2020). Researchers use quantitative approaches to examine correlations between two variables (i.e., independent and dependent variables) through numerical data and statistical analysis (Yue & Xu, 2019). A quantitative research method was not appropriate for this study because numerical data and statistical analysis relating to the variable were unnecessary.

A mixed-method involves a combination of both qualitative and quantitative methods in a study. Researchers use the mixed-method approach to explore problems and solutions instead of understanding the cause of issues (Chan, 2019). The mixed-methods process was not suitable for this research study because I did not need the quantitative aspects of the methodology.

Research Design

Researchers employ a research design to integrate the different components of a study. A multiple case study is an empirical inquiry that researchers use to explore a contemporary, specific, and complex phenomenon within humans' real-life context (Runfola et al., 2017). In this study, the selected research design was a descriptive, multiple case study design used in conducting semistructured, face-to-face interviews with the participants. A multiple case study is an in-depth investigation of a particular person, group, or community (Chung & Byrom, 2021). A multiple case study design can incorporate a variety of data sources, leading to in-depth qualitative findings. Haven and

Van Grootel (2019) noted that the research design involves exploring research questions, interpreting results, and drawing conclusions to prepare a model for others. A multiple case study was the most appropriate design for this study. I used a multiple case study to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners and managers used to remain profitable, gain a competitive advantage, and sustain their organizations.

Besides using a multiple case study, researchers may use other research designs for a qualitative study, including phenomenology, ethnography, and narrative design (Islam & Akagi, 2018). Researchers use the phenomenological design to understand the person experiencing the phenomenon under study or the interpretations of the lived experiences of individuals (Winter, 2019). Islam and Akagi (2018) indicated that researchers use phenomenological design to gain insights into participants' experiences, attitudes, behaviors, processes, and opinions. A phenomenological study was not suitable because the goal of the research study was not to explore how individuals situate themselves in the world based on their experiences. An ethnographic design is a traditional approach that researchers use to analyze the daily lives, beliefs, behaviors, and activities of an entire cultural group or community over a specific period (Mink et al., 2018). An ethnographic research design was not appropriate for this study because I did not explore cultural phenomena' daily lives and practices. I did not study each participant for extended periods to analyze the data thoroughly. In this study, I explored business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years.

The narrative design involves the participant providing details from their personal life to form a narrative (Visser et al., 2019). The narrative design helps identify individuals' experiences and life stories and develops a core focus on studying the living experiences (Pathiranage et al., 2020). Researchers use a narrative design to identify individuals' life stories and experiences (Nigar, 2020). The narrative design was unsuitable for the study because it did not involve gathering individuals' life stories and experiences.

Data saturation is a significant factor in collecting data when considering qualitative research. In qualitative research, saturation is reached when the data collection process no longer offers new information (Gill, 2020). I ensured data saturation by continuously interviewing participants until no further information was obtained. If data were not replicated from the interviews initially planned, I used snowball sampling to recruit additional participants to gain information until data saturation was reached.

Population and Sampling

The population for the study included six participants of small business owners and managers from the three small auto dealerships located in Sacramento, California, who have developed successful strategies to remain profitable and sustain their organizations for at least 5 years. The selected participants would have experiences, capabilities, and knowledge of business strategies to maintain their organizations' survival in the competitive environment (see Edward et al., 2018). Sourinejad et al. (2020) indicated that researchers use a purposeful sampling strategy to select participants who understand the research problem and generate dense information that is unique to

fulfill the research question. Purposeful sampling is the technique used to obtain a representative subset of a small population to serve a specific purpose for the research study (Chikowore & Kerr, 2020). Collecting data using purposeful sampling can help filter data for a larger population (Walton et al., 2019). Purposeful sampling is the most appropriate strategy for identifying and accessing prospective participants with the business experience and knowledge to contribute to the study by providing information-rich data (Chikowore & Kerr, 2020). The data collected from this study could aid in the research area of business management strategies—the purposeful population sampling for this study aligned with the research question. The central research question of this qualitative study was the following: What business strategies do small business auto dealership owners use to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years?

Researchers use purposeful sampling, a non-random process to represent particular categories of participants in the final sample study (Creed, 2017; Muafi & Kusumawati, 2020). The sample size must be large enough to gather the information to address the research question but small enough to contain data saturation (Gill, 2020). I selected the number of participants for this study by examining the sample sizes in three studies with a similar context that generated the necessary information to achieve data saturation and answered the overarching research question. Researchers select sample size based on participants' knowledge, capability, experiences, and expertise required to contribute to the study (Ali et al., 2019). The purposive sampling strategy aids researchers in selecting individuals who represent an adequate sampling for conducting a qualitative multiple case study (Smart et al., 2019). Researchers use purposive sampling

strategies to select potential participants with unique and valuable perspectives on the phenomenon in question and specific criteria for inclusion in the study (Fang-He et al., 2019). Lee et al. (2017) used three participants in a qualitative case study to explore the adjustment strategies employed by an underrepresented group of female business owners of small firms and compare their adjustment strategies with their male business counterparts. Waller et al. (2017) conducted a qualitative case study with five participants to successfully explore entrepreneurs' business strategies to market their mobile game application development businesses. In this study, I used purposive sampling to select six participants of owners and managers of the three small auto dealerships who have experience, capability, and knowledge in implementing successful strategies to remain profitable, gain a competitive advantage and sustain their organizations.

Data saturation is the conceptual standard for estimating and assessing qualitative sample sizes (Kim et al., 2020). Data saturation refers to the degree of information redundancy that researchers collect and encounter in interview-based research (Guest et al., 2020; Hadavimoghaddam et al., 2021). I collected the richness and depth of the data during interviews to determine when I reached data saturation. Researchers can use member checking to elicit data-rich responses from the selected participants (Brear, 2019). Member checking is the term that implies an opportunity for participants to approve particular aspects of the interpretation of the data they provided in the interview-based study (Carlson, 2014). I used member checking to gain more in-depth responses from participants and ensure data saturation. The research process for transferability and transparency of member checking for this study was to summarize one page transcripts of

data collected from each interview, including key points and themes. I emailed the transcripts to participants for 15 minutes review and asked participants to provide feedback and respond to whether the transcripts were accurate or needed revisions. Data saturation can reach the point when researchers collect enough information to replicate the study, when researchers no longer obtain additional new information and when further coding is no longer feasible (Fofana et al., 2020). Hancock et al. (2016) reached data saturation after the first six participants completed the interview questions and responded to two fellow participants in the study (Hancock et al., 2016). The sample size of this study was six owners and managers from three small auto dealerships in Sacramento, California. To ensure data saturation, I continued interviewing participants until the information became redundant.

The selected participants for this research study should meet the inclusion criteria, answer the research question, and participate in the interview (Watt et al., 2020).

Participants who did not meet the requirements would be excluded from participating in the study (Ekirapa-Kiracho et al., 2017). I selected participants who met the criteria and had experience implementing successful strategies to remain competitive and answer the research question. Participants who agreed to participate in the study received an informed consent form from me through email and returned a consent form by replying, "I consent," as an electronic signature via email. Evered (2021) identified that an informed consent form is significant for adequate information transfer between researchers and participants. An interview setting can decrease or increase the quality of the information provided by participants (Rostami et al., 2018). The interview setting

should occur at the most suitable location for the participant, at a place of their choice, in a private room that can minimize interruptions (Mengoni et al., 2017). To avoid interruptions, I conducted in-person interviews with participants at the three small business auto dealership owners' offices in a private room. Distractions can affect participant concentration and interfere with the flow of an interview and the data collected (Skingley et al., 2018). Participants can share relevant information related to the research questions when they feel more comfortable during an in-person interview process (Sheikh & Hoeyer, 2019).

Ethical Research

The informed consent process is a significant part of the study and involves providing the participation details to ensure each participant is fully aware of the purpose research (Villamañán et al., 2020). Informed consent is a central tenet of research that protects participants' contributions to the study (Hohl et al., 2019). Using a consent form may attract potential participants to make the proper decision regarding their participation in the research study (Grady et al., 2017). My initial email invitation letter to the participants included the informed consent form outlining pertinent details of the study. The informed consent form included: (a) the objectives of the study, (b) the research question, (c) the IRB approval number, (d) my contact information, (e) potential study risks, (f) their rights as participants, (g) extent of their involvement as a participant, (h) participant withdrawal information, and (i) compensation (see Matlock, 2017). As a result, participants at the three small auto dealerships confirmed full acknowledgment of their intention to participate in the study.

The informed consent form includes the information that participants can refuse to participate in the interview without penalty and with no further obligation (Gesualdo et al., 2021). Researchers must respect participants' decision to withdraw from a study (Gesualdo et al., 2021). I informed participants that they could withdraw from the study through email communication. Consequently, no participants at the three small auto dealerships withdrew from the interviews during my study process. Further, I ensured participants understood that their involvement in the study was voluntary, and I did not offer incentives or compensation to participate in the research. Offering an incentive for participation in a qualitative research case study is not common (Ali-Khan et al., 2017).

Researchers should convert the real individuality of participants into fake identities to protect participants' confidentiality (Wolf & Beskow, 2018). I labeled all participants of the three small auto dealerships to protect their confidentiality, such as PSAD1, PSAD2, and PSAD3. During the study, I protected the information of participants as confidential and anonymous as required by the IRB regulations. I did not start my research until I had an Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval number from Walden University. The IRB is an institutional committee that reviews all research to ensure it complies with the university's ethical standards, including that participants' rights are protected and that the researcher adheres to the regulations set forth by Walden University (Folkers & Bateman-House, 2018). I strictly adhered to Walden University's ethical guidelines for the research process for protecting human subjects. I included the Walden IRB approval number before recruiting participants. The documents in the

appendices used in the study included: (a) an interview protocol in Appendix A, (b) interview questions in Appendix B, and (c) an informed consent form in Appendix C.

Once I received IRB approval number 02-15-22-0587401 to begin my research, I sent an email invitation letter to each participant that included the informed consent form and an outline of the research study, as shown in Appendix C. Once participants received the informed consent forms, I asked them to return the consent form through subsequent email within a week, replying, "I consent to the interview," as an electronic signature. Participants' information will remain protected without any accident revealing or disclosing information during the interview process, as recommended by Solomon and Bronstein (2021). As mentioned in the participants' informed consent form, participants would be aware of their anonymity in the study before recruitment. I ensured information was protected by labeling each participant with a number (PSAD1, PSAD2, and PSAD3) instead of the business or individual's name. Researchers should protect participants' personal information rights and respect their privacy during the research process (Ebadi et al., 2019; Luamba, 2019). To protect the confidentiality, all information, including electronic files of interview transcripts, records, and paper data, will be stored in a privately locked cabinet in my office for 5 years. I would use a shredder to shred all the paper data and destroy all the electronic information using KillDisk® software to delete all research interview files, transcripts, and raw data after 5 years. Archibald et al. (2019) noted that all data are secure, kept for 5 years, and only the researcher can access the participant's personal information. I kept the participants and organizations confidential;

the study's publication did not include the names of the individuals or the terms of businesses and precise geographic locations.

Data Collection Instruments

I was the primary data collection instrument for this case study (see Tjaden et al., 2019). Data collection in qualitative research can involve direct interactions in a group or an individual setting (Roberts et al., 2020). In the case study, data can potentially have six origins, and it is recommended to collect from at least three sources: documentation, direct observations, archival records, participant observation, website visits, and interviews (Koduah et al., 2018). In this study, the primary data collection instruments were semistructured interviews, a review of company documents about multigenerational workplace strategies, company websites, and member checking.

I used semistructured interviews regarding the strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their organizations to address the research question. Eret (2017) indicated that researchers use semistructured interviews to standardize questions within an interview protocol for consistency, stability, and reliability. To generate responses appropriate, applicable, and relevant to research problems, I used semistructured face-to-face interviews with open-ended questions within an interview protocol (see Appendix A) to standardize the interview questions (see Appendix B). The interview protocol addressed my interview process and aided me in keeping the focus on the research topic, lending to research reliability (see Whitmore et al., 2018). Researchers use an interview protocol with open-ended questions to gather data regarding a phenomenon to ensure data saturation (DeJonckheere & Vaughn, 2019). Having an

interview protocol with open-ended questions was significant not to cause bias to answer a certain way, which helped me emphasize the meaning of questions rather than the wordings, making an interview interactive and free from mining participants for facts (see Sidenius et al., 2017). I recorded my interviews through a digital Searick voice recorder after participants consented to be recorded to enhance the accuracy of the data collection (see Whitmore et al., 2018). Along with semistructured interviews, I collected the small auto dealerships' documentation about management strategies to analyze as well. I reviewed company documents to identify management procedures, business strategies, and resources regarding multigenerational workplace strategies that leaders used to sustain their businesses. I also collected the company documents and searched company websites, including their management strategies, profit reports, and cash flow statements, to show how they can maintain a competitive advantage and gain profits.

I used member checking to enhance the data collection instrument's validity and reliability and ensured that my research study findings aligned with participants' intentions. Member checking is a technique for establishing credibility in a study (Caretta & Pérez, 2019; Miller & Andrew, 2020). Member checking is a form of validation to seek participants' views on the accuracy of data gathered, descriptions, or even interpretations (Brear, 2019). To enhance the credibility of this study, participants had the opportunity to confirm responses they shared during the interview process through member checking to ensure data collected accuracy. Each participant received an email interpretation of the transcript and was given a week to request any changes.

Data Collection Technique

Researchers can use multiple techniques for qualitative data collection, such as observation, website visits, semistructured interviews, documents, and archival data collection (Hennessey & Rehman, 2020; Richter et al., 2020; Rostami et al., 2018). The data collection techniques for this study included conducting in-person semistructured interviews, company website visits, documentation reviews, archival records, and Skype as an optional interview method. Using multiple methods for data collection can provide researchers with numerous data sources and provide for methodological triangulation, creating a convergence of evidence (Green et al., 2015; Yin, 2018). Researchers can use multiple sources of a systematic data collection technique to collect and examine data from various perspectives and ensure validity and rigor (Homayuni et al., 2021; Yin, 2018).

The interview setting, including a convenient location, date, and time, was the choice of participants. The interview occurs in the participants' workplaces (Canét-Wittkampf et al., 2020; Lindgren et al., 2011). For this study, I made phone calls once I obtained participants' contact information on my list by researching the internet through Linkedin platforms. I also emailed an invitation letter and a consent form to recruit potential participants at the five small auto dealerships in Sacramento, California, that met the established criteria to participate in the study. Three small auto dealerships, including owners and managers, replied and agreed to participate in the interviews. Once the participant consented, I emailed to confirm each small auto dealership owner's

interview location, date, and time before the scheduled interviews. All my interviews had done in the participants' private offices at their workplaces.

Before the interviews begin, researchers should give a brief introduction explaining the general conditions of the research study, the voluntary participation, content, and aim of the study, the permission to record the interview for the transcript, and the anonymity of stored data (Wendt et al., 2021). The data collection process for this study began with introductions to explain the purpose of the study, clarify the study procedures, explain the withdrawal process through phone calls, and offer an opportunity for participants to ask questions. I asked participants who met the established criteria and agreed to participate in the study to sign and return a consent form by replaying "I consent" as an electronic signature through email. Interviewees must sign and return the consent form before conducting the interviews (Bergen & Labonté, 2020; Tessema et al., 2021). The consent form included the purpose study, stating that the researcher did not compromise the participant's identity and confidentiality. Participation in the study was voluntary, and I did not offer any incentives to participants. Researchers should not offer participants an incentive; participants are asked to voluntarily provide their experiences and perspectives (Thomas et al., 2021).

For this study process, I attempted three interviews with six participants, including owners and managers at the three small auto dealerships. I conducted each interview, including a sales manager and an owner of each small auto dealership, to participate in the interview process. Each interview did not last longer than 20 minutes with a digital Searick voice recorder. I preferred to use a digital Searick voice recorder

instead other devices because of the quality of the voice recording, and the dynamic noise cancellation microphone was crystal clear audio. Each interview began with an introduction and study purpose, followed by approval from the participants to be recorded. The introduction included questions regarding personal background and education, and I then moved to the interview questions. The introductory questions linked to the primary questions of the interview process (Scribner & Harris, 2020). The interview questions were asked about business strategies, capabilities, and knowledge they used for business sustainability in the competitive environment. Following the interview, participants asked questions and replied with personal reflections.

In the qualitative case study design, researchers determine the most effective approach and method to gather data from the study participants using semistructured interviews (Anselmi et al., 2018; Viergever, 2019). The semistructured interview method was the most appropriate for the qualitative research study. Viergever (2019) gained insight into researching the study using the semistructured interviews method.

Researchers should use the semistructured interviews method to encourage participants and expand the interview into new topics (Barbic et al., 2019; Jimenez et al., 2019). For this study, the data collection technique included conducting in-person semistructured interviews with six participants, including managers and owners from the three small business auto dealerships in Sacramento, California. I conducted semistructured face-to-face interviews with open-ended questions and documentary evidence regarding the participants' views of business experience with an interview protocol (see Appendix A).

The documentary evidence included multigenerational workplace strategies, yearly

company income, and cash flow statements provided by small business auto dealership owners to support my study findings. The collected information applied to the study findings how small business auto dealership owners used business strategies to gain profits, achieve business performance, and sustain their organizations in the competitive environment. An interview protocol is a practical guide to direct one question to another through the interview process (Lum, 2017; Saddour, 2020). Cho et al. (2017) conducted individual, semistructured interviews to understand interviewees' perspectives and experiences related to the study following the interview protocol.

While in-person semistructured interviews are often the preferred method for interviewing because of observing physical and verbal cues and establishing personal rapport and comfort in familiar surroundings, many researchers stated that using data collection techniques such as Skype is equally valuable as an alternative to telephonic means (Crusoe & Ahlin, 2019; Krouwel et al., 2019). Using Skype can provide researchers with the limited ability to observe physical and verbal cues while allowing both researcher and participant to remain in comfortable surroundings (Krouwel et al., 2019; Reñosa et al., 2021). Skype is an alternative option for researchers when in-person semistructured interviews cannot be used because of time and travel constraints (Krouwel et al., 2019; Pasquini et al., 2021; Reñosa et al., 2021). Skype was the optional data collection method that I could use instead of in-person semistructured interviews for this qualitative study because of the pandemic. In the pandemic situation, in-person semistructured interviews are not considered necessary. Taba et al. (2020) identified that Skype interviews afford researchers a degree of safety during the pandemic, compared

with meeting the participant in person. Giannakopoulos et al. (2021) indicated that Skype allows both parties to stay safe and not invade each other's personal space. Consequently, I conducted only semistructured face-to-face interviews with open-ended questions instead of Skype interviews for this study. I established and facilitated a collaborative environment to ensure the participants that I engaged and listened to them while still maintaining the researcher's role in collecting data. I used an interview protocol (see Appendix A) to manage the interview direction, and the data collection supported my research efforts.

Researchers can review the firm's relevant organizational documentation (Miller & Andrew, 2020). Organizational documentation includes business strategies, firm resources, profit and loss reports, and cash flow statements (Miller & Andrew, 2020). For this study, I emailed participants requesting access to the documents that I wanted to review, explained how I planned to use the information, how I would safeguard the documents during the research, and how I would handle the disposal of the documents once I extract the data. The documentation of small business auto dealerships that I needed to review were documents about multigenerational workplace strategies, yearly company income, and cash flow statements. I also reviewed various corporate documents of participants' websites, the websites themselves, and archival records by using the information as data collection and affirmation. Supporting documents about multigenerational workplace strategies is significant for researchers in the study (Coventry & Hays, 2021). The documentation should consist of human resource

practices, firm resources, and standard operating procedure strategies that leaders use in a multigenerational workplace (Miller & Andrew, 2020; Schatz, 2009).

I conducted documentary evidence to explore strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain business operations beyond 5 years. Qualitative researchers can use the data collection techniques to explore the strategies firms use to remain profitable in the competitive market (Wiseman et al., 2019). The document reviews regarding multigenerational workplace strategies and archival records are excellent sources of information that researchers can use to support the result findings (Coventry & Hays, 2021; Nkholedzeni, 2020). My primary focus was to collect data through in-person semistructured interviews, documents, archival records, and internet sources. I reassured participants that all information was confidential and discussed how the information was relevant to my data collection. The collected information, including the interview data, documentation, and internet sources, applied to the concept of the RBV theory of how small business auto dealership owners used business strategies to achieve business performance and sustain competitive advantages.

Researchers maintain journals to record observations during the interview process that a recording does not record, such as nonverbal cues and body posture (Annink, 2017). I used a journal to record observations from the interview in the unlikely event that the recording failed or demonstrated poor quality. Journaling provides researchers with additional means for data collection methods to increase interview and research accuracy (Phillippi & Lauderdale, 2018).

The advantage of using semistructured interviews with open-ended questions as the data collection technique may allow me to (a) identify participants' beliefs, attitudes, and habits; (b) gain a deeper understanding of the strategies of the small business owner; and (c) gain more clarity regarding a particular response to the follow-up questions (see Davies et al., 2020). An additional advantage of using open-ended questions may allow me to ask further questions and assist participants in expressing thoughts freely during the interview process (Cardullo et al., 2021). Reviewing the company documentation about multigenerational workplace strategies, yearly company income, and cash flow statements was another source of information that provided me with additional accuracy and may strengthen the study's validity. Conversely, the disadvantage of using semistructured interviews included (a) interviews require more time, (b) less information collected during each interview, and (c) participants may have less interest in discussing the topics or the interview questions (Miguel et al., 2021; Zarhin, 2018). Another disadvantage of requesting documentation about multigenerational workplace strategies, yearly company income, and cash flow statements was that participants might be unwilling to share the information.

Qualitative researchers can enhance the accuracy of data collected from participants by using member checking of the data interpretation (Candela, 2019; Iivari, 2018). Using member checking can assist researchers in decreasing the incidence of incorrect data by supporting participants to approve particular aspects of the interpretation of the original findings (Brear, 2019; Candela, 2019; Iivari, 2018). Member checking is a participant validation technique for improving the information's accuracy

and the study's credibility (Leask et al., 2019; Rose & Johnson, 2020). For this study, member checking provided participants with a one page summary of transcripts to verify that my interpretations of their responses were accurate and relevant. Participants would be asked to review the transcripts, provide feedback, and make corrections to the transcriptions. Member checking is the most suitable, appropriate, and effective way of eliminating the possibility of misrepresentation (Leask et al., 2019).

Data Organization Technique

Researchers use data organization techniques to track and identify data collected for the study (Campion et al., 2018). Researchers use data organization techniques to reduce the risk of misinterpreting data collected from each participant (Zhai et al., 2020). Clark et al. (2017) noted that researchers must use an appropriate data storage strategy to maintain the transcribed interviews, notes, and audio recordings. I used an electronic filing system to store all the information from the study. Clark et al. (2017) identified that researchers could use an electronic filing system to manage and store digital files, including photographs and documents. I also used a labeling system to organize all the electronic data and hard copies of data to ensure the accuracy of the information and data alignment with the correct participants. Gallaway and Hines (2012) stated that librarians use labeling systems and spine labels to organize and identify library resources by call number to help patrons locate general subject areas, specific fiction, non-fiction, reference, audiovisual, and other items. As a part of my organization technique, I used a label heading containing individual participants' numbers (i.e., PSAD1, PSAD2, and PSAD3). Creating labels could help me reference a particular part of an interview without locating the data collected. Zhai et al. (2020) indicated that personal information should be secured by password protection. All electronic data from the study, including emails, consent forms, notes, audio recordings, and transcribed interviews, would be stored on my personal computer's hard drive, protected with a security password. A flash drive with password protection would be an additional storage device. The use of password protection helps ensure the confidentiality of all information (Salles-Loustau et al., 2018). All the study information, including the electronic data on the computer's hard drive, external flash drive, and hard copies, would be stored safely in my office for 5 years.

Data Analysis

Data analysis in qualitative research involves systematically searching and arranging the interview transcripts and observation notes that the researcher accumulates to increase the understanding of the phenomenon (M. Ruel et al., 2020; Shafiq et al., 2021). Analyzing qualitative data involves organizing the data into themes by coding, condensing the codes, and making sense of the information through figures and tables (Zhai et al., 2020). Researchers should interpret and analyze data to generate relevant information and meaningful findings (Allen et al., 2019). In this qualitative study, methodological triangulation was the primary method to interpret and analyze data. Abdalla et al. (2018) suggested four types of triangulation for qualitative researchers to enhance reliability and validity. The four types of triangulation included data, theoretical, researcher, and methodological triangulation (Abdalla et al., 2018). Methodological triangulation refers to using multiple methods to obtain detailed data about the phenomenon (Abdalla et al., 2018). Researchers use methodological triangulation to

overcome the flaws of an investigation, correlate data from multiple data collection methods, and explore different theoretical perspectives and points of the same phenomenon (Cao, 2012; Cárdenas et al., 2018). I used methodological triangulation for this study to collect data and validate the results obtained with individual methods, ensuring a deeper understanding of the investigated phenomenon (Cárdenas et al., 2018). I conducted face-to-face interviews using semistructured interview research questions, documentary evidence, audio recordings, and note-takings to enhance the reliability and validity of the study findings.

Data collection and analysis should coincide as one part cannot be strictly separated from the other (Mahlamäki & Nieminen, 2020). Qualitative data analysis is a form of knowledge management that manages analytical processes to transform data into information, and information into knowledge, and knowledge into wisdom (Chenail, 2015; Taboada & Han, 2020). Researchers should interpret and analyze data systematically by providing a detailed explanation of the data analysis process (Zennaro et al., 2018). The process of data analysis should start immediacy after researchers conduct the first interview, perform the second interview, and continue until data saturation has been reached (Zennaro et al., 2018). Researchers should capture the rich insights of qualitative interview data and make sense of the relevant data to the research question (Taboada & Han, 2020). In the data analysis process, I analyzed the data collected from the interview by reading the data collection to reflect on what I have read to grasp the general themes from the transcripts. I transcribed every interview information and organized the data by using NVivo software 12th version. Qualitative

researchers can use computer-assisted qualitative data analysis software (CAQDAS), like NVivo, as tools to store, manage, code, and interact with the data (Barros, 2020; Maher et al., 2018). Researchers must use familiar software to manage the entire original data as researchers perform as the primary analytical instrument (Barros, 2020; Chenail, 2015). I read the transcripts of data collected and notes to become familiar while identifying codes and linking significant segments to appropriate themes. I used member checking to review themes with each participant and adjust the themes based on the participant's responses and feedback. Researchers conduct member checking with the participants to ensure an accurate understanding of the data collected to address the dependency of the research results (Candela, 2019).

I transcribed and analyzed the data immediately after collecting all primary and secondary data from interviews, organizational documents, company websites, and observational notes. In the next phase of the data analysis process, I reviewed the collected data transcripts and applied codes to the transcripts as concepts became apparent. Data analysis can perform through open coding (Leeson et al., 2019; Zeldenryk et al., 2014). Open coding is where raw data are analyzed through a detailed line-by-line review of the transcripts to identify themes or phenomena of interest and then ascribe codes (Leeson et al., 2019; Zeldenryk et al., 2014). Codes for common themes are generated, allowing themes across transcripts to be collated (Feng & Behar-Horenstein, 2019; Zeldenryk et al., 2014). I combined related concepts into categories and common themes. Researchers can combine related concepts into categories and common themes to condense participants' key ideas and experiences (Skolarus et al., 2019). After coding

narrative fragments into themes, I followed up with participants via email to check for discrepancies in the data collected to ensure validity and validate the key concepts and themes emerging from the open coding. Researchers can create meaning from the data collected by interpreting and analyzing the data (Skolarus et al., 2019). Mutlu (2019) proposed that theme building, rival theme perspectives, pattern matching, and logical models are appropriate to ensure validity in the data analysis process. I sent my transcripts to each participant to adjust the themes based on the participant's responses and feedback to ensure validity through member checking by email. Researchers can use member checking to confirm the research findings' accuracy and validity (Candela, 2019). Using member checking ensures that the proper interpretations of the data and word choice are transcribed in the interview data (Candela, 2019). I made sure to exercise precautions of using member checking in my data analysis to reduce bias from affecting the data analysis process. Last, I concluded the results of this qualitative case study.

Researchers use computer software to analyze data (Xu et al., 2021). Qualitative researchers can use data analysis software to facilitate and analyze the data collected (Liang et al., 2018; Wang, 2021). Qualitative data analysis software is significant for researchers to bring consistency to the data analysis process. I used a qualitative data analysis software program to help with the coding and organizing of data analysis. The data analysis software can support qualitative researchers in systematically coding, organizing data, and managing the development of categories and themes (Wang, 2021; Zhu et al., 2021). Qualitative data analysis software includes NVivo, SPSS, Sphinx, Dedoose, ATLAS.ti, and others (Baharuddin et al., 2021; Mozzato et al., 2016; Tapera et

al., 2021). Some qualitative researchers can use Dedoose or ATLAS.ti to organize and analyze data. For example, Kingsbury and Chatfield (2019) used Dedoose qualitative data analysis software to manage the process of extracting and condensing data from primary sources of pregnancy among resettled refugee women. Afriansyah et al. (2019) used ATLAS.ti software as a tool for data analysis, which assisted researchers in managing all various data of the problem-posing skill of prospective teachers regarding their teaching and learning process.

In my personal experience, I preferred to use NVivo software to analyze data in this qualitative study. Researchers use NVivo software to analyze, store, manage, and code data to make qualitative data analysis more efficient (Herranz & Machado, 2019). The NVivo software is user-friendly, so researchers can use it to collect, organize, and analyze different data types for patterns and themes (Maher et al., 2018). Using the NVivo software is important for simplifying the process of identifying themes and pattern recognition as part of a repetitive data analysis process (Palmer & Baker, 2021). I used NVivo software 12th version to organize, manage, and analyze the qualitative data after the interview. I chose to use Nvivo software 12th version over other software because it was a familiar tool for organizing data. I had experience using it to manage, collect, and analyze data for personal services regarding business proposals and financial consultants. NVivo software can assist researchers in interpreting and coding the text, organizing the data, and performing keyword searches (Palmer & Baker, 2021). Using the NVivo program, researchers can code the data by tagging and naming text selections within each data item (Dalkin et al., 2021). I identified codes throughout the analysis until no new

unique codes were identified. Joubert and Van der Merwe (2020) indicated that researchers should work systematically through the whole data set. Researchers should give full and equal attention to each data item and identify exciting aspects in the data items that may form the basis of repeated patterns (themes) across the data set (Lien & Harvie, 2018).

The process of identifying themes includes using the NVivo program helps to ensure the reliability and validity of the findings (Brynne et al., 2019). Themes are the confirmations of observable patterns identifiable by analyzing transcribed interview data elements (Raffing et al., 2017). According to Yin (2016), researchers use coding to discover themes contained within transcripts and include data to reach saturation to ensure reliability, validity, and creditability. I also used visual representations by writing the name of each code on a separate piece of paper to aid in sorting the different codes into themes. Alexander et al. (2021) identified that researchers could use visual representations to help sorting the other codes into themes by using tables or writing the name of each code on a separate piece of paper and organize into theme piles. During the data analysis process, I carefully analyzed the data sequentially and logically to identify the findings, interpreted the data to produce the conclusions relating to the overarching research question, and concluded the research study.

Reliability and Validity

Reliability and validity are important concepts in research and demonstrate the accuracy of research processes and the trustworthiness of research findings (Norin et al., 2019). Wong-Riff et al. (2017) indicated that validity and reliability are common

concepts in qualitative research that researchers use when discussing data collected. Researchers use the validity and reliability of the study to achieve the highest quality of research, and peers perceive the findings as trustworthy (Rose & Johnson, 2020). In the qualitative study, the most commonly used to establish the trustworthiness of the results and determine reliability and validity are included dependability, credibility, transferability, and conformability (Connolly et al., 2019). Validity and reliability are the two significant concepts that measure bias and distortion (Rose & Johnson, 2020). Researchers use validity to address the degree of accuracy to which a measurement measures what is intended, whereas reliability addresses the consistency of measurement in the study (Rose & Johnson, 2020). Researchers can use member checking in the research process to manage, achieve, and establish the reliability and validity of study findings (Candela, 2019). Therefore, I used member checking to develop self-confidence and establish reliability and validity in the study findings.

Reliability and Validity

Reliability

In qualitative research, the term reliability is synonymous with dependability.

Dependability is the established process in the research study's findings as consistent and repeatable (Holstein et al., 2019). For this study, I followed the interview protocol (see Appendix A) to conduct the interviews and collect company documents from each participant in the same manner. After completing an interview, I transcribed the data collected from my notes and the audio recording of the interviews. I conducted member checking with each participant by emailing interview transcripts to review to ensure the

data collected are accurate and consent to check for discrepancies or errors. Connolly et al. (2019) indicated that researchers benefit from the data analysis process of the research study through member checking to strengthen the study's dependability. I also used the NVivo data analysis software to enhance the study's reliability.

Validity

Credibility Credibility is a significant aspect in establishing trustworthiness and linking the study's findings with reality to demonstrate the truth of the results (Pjesivac et al., 2018). Credibility is the degree to provide interview transcripts to participants and receive feedback; therefore, researchers can add credibility and validity to study findings (Tremayne et al., 2021). Tremayne et al. (2021) indicated that member checking is the most appropriate way to ensure credibility in a study. To enhance the credibility of this study, I used member checking to improve the credibility of the research findings. I sent interview transcripts to each participant and adjusted the themes based on participant responses and feedback. Each participant received the interview transcripts through email. Participants reviewed the interview transcripts from the interpretations of data collected to ensure credibility and accuracy.

Transferability represents the degree to the findings that generalize into different contexts, circumstances, situations, and settings (Dobrow et al., 2017). Research findings are transferable to a new context when other researchers perceive and realize that the results are practical and have usefulness, empirical applicability, and theoretical generalizability (Rose & Johnson, 2020; Tomaszewski et al., 2020). Employees, vendors, customers, and stakeholders can use the research findings of this study because they

would be affected by small businesses that lack sustainable strategies. This study's individuals and readers can apply the research findings to small companies to strengthen their strategies for sustainability. Transferability is an important matter of circumstance because individuals and readers who are not part of the study can gain a meaningful study through the research findings. For instance, other vendors, such as small auto part business owners who lack business sustainability strategies, may use the research findings from this study to sustain their organizations. Future researchers may use this study as an instrument and tool to build upon further research to explore business strategies uncovered in a similar topic.

Confirmability is the degree to which others can confirm the study results (Naz et al., 2019). Confirmability is similar to dependability in that it refers to the neutrality and accuracy of the data in the study findings (Soroush et al., 2018). The findings are based on participants' responses rather than potential researchers' biases (Wassermann et al., 2018). To eliminate bias, I implemented member checking with each participant to confirm the findings from the interpretations of data collected were accurate.

To ensure data saturation, I continued interviewing participants until they could no longer provide new information on the topic. Data saturation is the process of gathering data until no more patterns or themes emerge from the data (Fofana et al., 2020). In this study, conducting a sample size of six participants and member checking helped to ensure data saturation and improve the credibility of the research study.

Transition and Summary

The objective of this qualitative case study was to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain their business in a competitive environment. Section 2 included a description of (a) the purpose statement, (b) the role of the researcher, (c) the selected participants, (d) the research method and design, (e) the population and sampling, (f) ethical research, (g) data collection, (h), data analysis technique, and (i) the reliability and validity. Section 3 will include a presentation of the findings, a discussion of their application to professional practice, and implications for social change, my recommendations for action and further research, reflections, and a conclusion.

Section 3

Application for Professional Practice and Implications for Social Change

Introduction

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain organizations beyond 5 years. The population for this study was three small auto dealerships including owners and managers in Sacramento, California who used strategies to sustain business operations beyond 5 years. Through an analysis of data collected through interviews, company website visits, documentation reviews, and field notes, five main themes emerged. The five main themes were internet marketing, customer satisfaction, effective supervision, business knowledge, and human capital. This section includes a comprehensive presentation of findings as well as applications to professional practice. In

this section, I also discuss the study's implications for social change, recommendations for action, recommendations for further research, and reflections ending with a conclusion.

Presentation of Findings

The overarching research question of this qualitative study was the following: What business strategies do small business auto dealership owners use to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years? To answer this overarching research question, I used semistructured interviews to gain insight into business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to maintain their organizations. Participants in this study were three small business auto dealership owners (PSAD1, PSAD2, and PSAD3) who had been in business for more than 5 years in Sacramento, California.

Data collection included semistructured interviews, company website visits, documentation reviews, and field notes. Each semistructured interview consisted of five interview questions and lasted no more than 20 minutes with audio recording. After completing the interviews with the participants, I organized the data collected into thematic groups. I used NVivo software to analyze, manage, and organize themes. Researchers identify themes by using the NVivo program to ensure the reliability and validity of the findings (Brynne et al., 2019). I identified emergent themes from each interview and their relationships to form central themes. I used NVivo software to code narrative segments into themes and presented a one page summary of transcripts from data collection of each interview, including key points and themes, through email to participants to validate themes through member checking. A researcher can email

interpretation of the data to participants to confirm the accuracy and validity of the research findings through member checking (Candela, 2019). Lastly, I revised my interpretation of the themes based on remarks from each participant to ensure accuracy. Then, I proceeded to a final review of the findings of this qualitative study.

The conceptual framework for this qualitative multiple case study was the RBV theory developed in 1991 by Barney. The RBV theory created a lens for interpreting data collected from participants and further supported the development of themes. I developed themes from the interview transcripts, company websites, documentation reviews, and field notes. The themes indicated business strategies that small business owners and managers used to sustain their business operations beyond 5 years. Using NVivo software to code narrative segments, the research findings of themes included customer satisfaction, internet marketing, business knowledge, human capital, and effective supervision. As shown in Table 2 to Table 6, five themes emerged from the content analysis process of the data. Table 2 shows emergent theme, subthemes, number of responses, and percentage of respondents.

Table 2Customer Satisfaction

Theme and subthemes	Number of responses	% of respondent agreement
Customer satisfaction	8	36.36%
• Quality customer service	6	27.27%
• Customer relationship	3	13.63%
• Customer loyalty	3	13.64%

Emergent Theme: Customer Satisfaction

Responses for customer satisfaction originated from most interview questions, which explored the strategies that contributed to the success of small business auto dealership owners. During the interview, all participants indicated that customer satisfaction is essential for small business auto dealership owners to sustain operations and profits. Small business owners can maintain their business operations and profitability by providing quality customer service and products in an exceptional manner that surpasses customer needs, leads to increased customer satisfaction, develops customer loyalty, and enhances competitiveness (Ullah et al., 2020). Participants acknowledged the significance of building relationships with customers, improving customer retention, and delivering superior customer service and products to increase customer satisfaction, customer loyalty, and sales, thereby maximizing profits and sustaining businesses in a competitive advantage. Small business owners with a large pool of satisfied customers tend to have a long-term competitive advantage and are more likely to maintain their profitability over a more extended period (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019).

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by recognizing customer satisfaction, including services and capabilities, as an essential intangible resource and products as a valuable tangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a competitive advantage by using customer satisfaction as a resource to compete on having the best customer service, capabilities,

and quality products of automobiles to increase customer relationships, satisfaction, and loyalty. Customer satisfaction themes included quality customer service, customer relationship, customer loyalty, and customer retention.

Subtheme 1: Quality Customer Service

Small business auto dealership owners can differentiate themselves from competitors by having the best quality customer service. Small businesses can achieve a competitive advantage by investing in products and services that offer unique qualities desirable to their customers (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019). Firms can promote and reward employees and train their staff to provide exceptional quality services to customers (Ullah et al., 2020). For example, PSAD3 stated,

The manufacturer provides metrics for sales and customer satisfaction. We provide the metrics for employee satisfaction through surveys. We train employees, and then the manufacturer and our company constantly offer that training for employees to improve customer service. We manage the percentage of customer issues resolved to customer satisfaction and a way to measure progress throughout customer surveys.

Participants noted that small business auto dealership owners should provide a convenient service to customers to maintain their business. PSAD2 stated,

In the early part of the market, earlier parts of last year when the supply chain got tight, we just tried to get people out of leases early so that we would have some used inventory to sell when there was no inventory work well. The findings supported the RBV concept by indicating the use of quality customer service as an essential intangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. Leaders can achieve a competitive advantage to sustain their organization in the competitive environment by using quality customer service as a resource to provide efficient, quick, and friendly service to customers and build strong relationships with customers (Ullah et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should respond to customers' issues in time and handle any complaints from their customers swiftly. Small business auto dealership owners also promote free quality services to their customers to increase customer satisfaction, relationships, and loyalty, such as free car inspection services and oil changes to satisfy existing customers and attract new customers.

Subtheme 2: Customer Relationships

Participants also noted that leaders currently build customer relationships and manage customer retention through communication technology outlets. Managing customer relationships on a personal level and managing the organization toward a more efficient response to their needs can be achieved using information communication technology (ElFarmawi, 2020). For example, PSAD1 stated,

We evaluate the number of phone calls that remain daily by specific cells clientele to see what kind of answers are getting as far as appointments, whether they have service appointments or vehicle sales appointments. Phone, email, text, or video marketing are what we are doing to communicate and build a relationship with our customers. Video marketing is more proven and very effective than email or text. More people will watch a video versus reading an email. Therefore, the

video has worked very well because it is authentic; it is not commercial audio or video.

PSAD1 and PSAD3 explained that small business auto dealership owners should be presentable, and each staff member should be focused on helping customers find answers to questions to increase customer relationships. For example, PSAD3 stated,

We are not just going to sell you one car or service your car wants. We are going to be here for anything that you may need, whether it's parts, service, your next vehicle, or a car for the family.

The findings supported the RBV concept by recognizing customer relationships as an essential intangible resource that small business auto dealership owners can use to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a competitive advantage by using customer relationships as a resource to build trust and loyalty with their customers. Leaders can also promote free quality services to their customers, such as free car inspection services and oil changes, to increase customer relationships and loyalty.

Subtheme 3: Customer Loyalty

Participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners should provide quality services and products to their existing and potential new customers by focusing on customers' needs and preferences to increase customer loyalty. Firms can benefit from long-term relationships with their customers by putting customers' needs first, thereby improving customer loyalty and future sales (Majukwa et al., 2020). Participants revealed that when small business auto dealership owners focus on customer satisfaction and

provide exceptional customer service, they can increase customer loyalty and a positive reputation as a competitive advantage. A business strategy that focuses on providing exceptional customer service is essential for firms to retain existing customers, attract new customers, and gain a competitive advantage over rivals (Ullah et al., 2020). Participants acknowledged the importance of receiving customer feedback through surveys and encouraging effective communication within the organization and with customers. Leaders can encourage new customers to buy cars while enriching their long-term relationships with existing customers (Majukwa et al., 2020). Participants also noted that effective communication is essential to provide excellent customer service to increase customer loyalty.

The findings supported the RBV concept by identifying customer loyalty, including quality brand products and values of automobiles, as an essential tangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a competitive advantage by using customer loyalty as a resource to build a positive relationship, promote their brand products to customers, and send relevant campaigns to increase retention for purchasing. Customer loyalty is the intention of continuing the relationship and repeating their purchase of the company brand products and services that they are familiar with (Majukwa et al., 2020). Customers who are loyal to a specific brand are willing to pay more if they get the same quality product or service (Ullah et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should strive to improve customer loyalty to keep clients purchasing and make customers promote the company's brand products and services to new audiences.

Subtheme 4: Customer Retention

For small business owners, retaining customers in highly competitive environments is significant for a firm's survival (Majukwa et al., 2020). Customer retention is a process in which small business auto dealership owners can manage activities and interactions related to customer purchases in a manner designed to minimize attrition (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019). Customer retention involves business leaders seeking to retain existing and new customers by establishing, maintaining, and maximizing mutual long-term benefits that strengthen and extend the cooperative relationship between two parties (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019). Small business auto dealership owners can develop ad-hoc capabilities that integrate their knowledge and business skills with one emerging through consumer interactions to create and implement new customized services. By providing quality car sales and services, leaders should improve customer satisfaction, increase customer retention, build customer trust, and create loyalty (Majukwa et al., 2020). Small businesses' key to long-term profitability and survival is anchored in building long-term relationships, increasing customer satisfaction, and managing successful customer retention (Hawkins & Hoon, 2019).

Participants stated that small business auto dealership owners should focus on customer satisfaction, retention, and relationships to improve company growth. PSAD2 and PSAD1 emphasized the significance of building customer relationships, customer loyalty, and a positive reputation for their companies. For example, PSAD2 explained,

First, you should get to know your customers. If you keep your customers happy, they will tell others, and then that is the best way to grow your work. Nowadays,

word of mouth is the best way to grow your business because there are many places to go. However, if you have decent experience, you will share that with your friends and families. Referrals are worth, and repeat businesses are worth more than new businesses. Overall sales, growth, and customer satisfaction are three important things. I will tell you that you are doing what you need to be doing to help your customers.

Two participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners should maintain customer communication to promote their products and services to increase sales. For example, PSAD1 indicated,

We use a customer retention management tool called "solutions." We keep track of all outgoing, incoming emails, text messages, and phone calls. We provide guest service and treatment, respecting the fact that they come to visit you.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by classifying customer retention as an essential intangible resource that leaders can use to manage activities and interactions related to customer purchases to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners can achieve a competitive advantage by using customer retention as a resource to deliver promotional advertising, including brand names and pricing on cars, to increase customers' intention to purchase their vehicles.

Table 3

Internet Marketing

Theme and subthemes	Number of responses	% of respondent agreement
Internet marketing	5	50%

Digital technology	2	20%
• Social network	3	30%

Emergent Theme: Internet Marketing

The theme of internet marketing emerged from the answers to most interview questions, particularly Questions 1, 3, and 5, on participants' insights about strategies for sustainability required by small business auto dealership owners for success and sustenance. Participants acknowledged that using the internet is essential to market products, advertise vehicles, increase market outreach, and meet new customers. Participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners use internet marketing for advertising vehicles by using technological capabilities, such as online tools, newspapers, and exhibitions, to enhance access to potential buyers. Every business depends on the level of internet marketing to build a relationship with customers and conduct attractive promotions to increase sales (Nasution et al., 2020). Participants disclosed that internet marketing had become a trend in implementing marketing strategies to encourage their customers. Internet marketing can promote vehicles and services through social media and networks such as YouTube, Facebook, and websites, facilitating access between buyer and seller (Yau & Tang, 2018). Internet marketing is the key to firms reaching many customers and increasing market share (Yau & Tang, 2018). Participants noted that small business auto dealership owners use internet marketing as a tool for their business activities. It became a transitional power from traditional to modern business and simplified promotion, sales, and payment (Nasution et al., 2020). PSAD1 stated that small business auto dealership owners use internet

marketing to attract consumers' interest to do transactions and communications. PSAD1 explained,

We used marketing strategies for business sustainability through internet marketing and direct phone calls to current clients. You can call it cold calling, but we do not see it that way because there are people who have already done business with us, whether it is in service or they have bought vehicles from us. Our website has new and used cars from which they can choose to buy. We also offer services, parts, and financing options that make it convenient for them.

PSAD1 and PSAD2 acknowledged that small business auto dealership owners should understand how to focus marketing toward particular groups of buyers and give them the information they want to increase sales. For instance, PSAD2 stated,

We use internet marketing to deliver promotional messages to our customers. We quickly respond to help customers to find what they need.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by determining internet marketing as an essential valuable tangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. The findings also supported the social network theory that leaders can use to develop relationships with other individuals based on mutual interests, friendship, information, interdisciplinary, and other beneficial reasons (Sachpazidu-Wojcicka, 2021). Small business auto dealership owners can use internet marketing as a strategic resource to advertise the company products through technological capabilities, such as online tools and exhibitions, to promote their products increasing retention and enhancing access to potential buyers.

Subtheme 1: Digital Technology Marketing

Participants noted that digital technology provided a platform where they could efficiently market products and services and gather customer feedback. Participants acknowledged that internet marketing and other information technology outlets are more appropriate for targeting demographics and customer desires. The findings of this study supported the RBV concept of using digital technology as a valuable tangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. Marcinkowski and Gawin (2019) noted that information technology outlets could support customers' agility would enhance customers' community to gather feedback. Small businesses operating in competitive environments should have the ability to respond quickly to market changes, support customer needs, and share information effectively with customers by using information technology (Jiang et al., 2019). Participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners use the internet to create links, build customer relationships, and construct a relationship with other stakeholders by predicting customer preferences, thereby increasing their company's competitive power in the marketplace (Jiang et al., 2019). PSAD2 further stated,

We are just moving a little bit more digital than before. Our website is a fast and convenient way to find the right vehicle, so you can spend less time researching and more time enjoying your purchase. Whether looking for a new or used car, you can find it here at comparable prices. We know that customers are extremely well educated when researching their next vehicle. Nowadays, I tell you, internet marketing is working great.

Participants noted that small business auto dealership owners should go digital to educate and inform customers about their cars because customers buy cars online more than ever in traditional marketing. Small business owners can use digital factors in their marketing to reach customers to achieve a competitive advantage (Marcinkowski & Gawin, 2019). PSAD1 stated,

Most buyers who purchase a car likely see our dealership online because they conduct research online before buying a vehicle from us.

The findings supported the assertion of Hua et al. (2019) that small business auto dealership owners can enhance their network marketing capabilities by employing information technologies to achieve a more significant value chain for auto sales. Leaders can use their network marketing capabilities to increase the efficiency of marketing operations, maintain supply chain operations, and optimize the customer experience (Wamba-Taguimdje et al., 2020). In addition, leaders can introduce a greater variety of quality products and services to attract new customers with various tastes and encourage customers to switch from competitors (Hua et al., 2019).

Subtheme 2: Social Network

Participants highlighted the need to form alliances with other auto industry stakeholders, which can support the assertion of social network theory. Stakeholders of the auto industry include existing customers, potential new customers, suppliers, government and non-government agencies, regulatory bodies, advocacy groups, foundations, and the communities they operate (González-Pérez & Ramírez-Montoya, 2022). Small business auto dealership owners who have a secure network will be able to

obtain critical market information cost-effectively. Participants admitted that corporating with other stakeholders can help them increase access to auctions, advertising, market information, trade fairs, and product exhibitions (González-Pérez & Ramírez-Montoya, 2022).

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept of using strategic network resources to gain a competitive advantage. The findings also supported the social network theory for small business auto dealership owners to cultivate relationships, create opportunities, and obtain critical information from stakeholders.

Table 4

Business Knowledge

Theme and subthemes	Number of responses	% of respondent agreement
Business knowledge	6	37.5%
• Sharing information	5	31.25%
Management and		
Organizational culture	2	12.5%
 Customer needs and 		
preferences	3	18.75%

Emergent Theme: Business Knowledge

The theme of business knowledge originated from Interview Questions 1, 2, 3, and mainly Question 5, in which I explored the participants' insight into improving skills to manage a small business industry in a competitive advantage. Business knowledge included tacit knowledge sharing, knowledge management, organizational culture, and

customer needs and preferences. During the interview, participants noted that having virtuous business knowledge in the auto industry was significant resource because business knowledge directly affects business performance. Business knowledge represents a significant resource to create value and sustain competitive advantages (Rua et al., 2018). Business knowledge is a firm's extensive reservoir of understanding of customer needs and preferences, business environments and dynamics, staff skills, experiences and potentials, and business overall foreseeable direction (Aureli et al., 2019). Participants expressed the need for small business auto dealership owners to understand the trends in the auto industry, including stakeholders, consumers, and customers trends to grow their business. Participants' responses supported the findings of Amelia and Syukmayettil (2021) noted that in the current knowledge-based economy, tacit knowledge sharing, knowledge management, intangible resources of knowledge, organizational culture, market analysis, and business efficiency are some of the most valuable and competitive resources.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by using business knowledge as an essential intangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. In the perspective of the RBV theory, the intangible resource of knowledge is a significant source of competitive advantage, increases firm performance, and can consequently create sustainable value (Rua et al., 2018). Participants highlighted that small business auto dealership owners could use the intangible resource of knowledge to gain from their experiences and skills to create value that is hard for competitors to imitate. Participants indicated that the most important resource that small business auto dealership owners use

as a source of sustainable competitive advantage is business knowledge of the automobile dealerships. PSAD3 identified,

We listen to our employees and customers, and they will provide the information that needs to be improved to meet their needs. We have business knowledge and experience managing the company, what cars we will buy from auctions, and what prices we can sell to customers. Nowadays, having business knowledge is the most important.

Participants noted that small business auto dealership owners could integrate knowledge management with their customer relationship management software and other business intelligence tools, like inventory management software used in the automotive sales industry, to manage customer needs. In-depth product knowledge of vehicle inventory and the services offered by the service department is an important factor in improving communications between the sales team and customers (Aureli et al., 2019). PSAD1 stated,

When train our sales team members to focus on what customers need in a vehicle; therefore, customers can pinpoint features and performance capacity from the right car that meets their current needs, budget, and lifestyle.

Subtheme 1: Sharing Information

Participants noted that with knowledge sharing information, leaders and employees could mutually benefit from each other's knowledge and expertise in daily business operations, leading to a more significant competitive advantage (Aureli et al., 2019). Participants highlighted that leaders should continue enriching employees' best

practices through knowledge sharing, resulting in better processes, increasing quality products and services, and improving the speedy realization of all business objectives. Leaders should offer incentives and rewards to employees and staff who supply practical market developments to enhance customer services to gain a competitive advantage (Shoaib & Baruch, 2019). Leaders should utilize market news to upgrade the current line of products and services or design new ones to respond to market demands and developments to increase competitive advantage (Shoaib & Baruch, 2019). For instance, PSAD1 stated,

We share information and experience with employees and customers through employees training and customer survey to improve management skills. You do not know how or what needs to be improved if you do not share information and experiences with your staff, employees, and customers.

PSAD2 and PSAD3 noted that small business auto dealership owners should share important information and experience of services to increase business achievement through employee training. Sharing information can be enhanced business performance and customer satisfaction (Aureli et al., 2019). PSAD3 stated,

We provide every member access to the same information through staff training to ensure everyone is on the same page.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by recognizing sharing information with employees as an essential intangible resource to gain business achievement. In the RBV theory, sharing information is a significant source of competitive advantage that includes creating a strong relationship with employees and

gaining knowledge for both managers and employees to support small businesses' sustainable competitive advantage and performance (Aureli et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners should build relationships, share knowledge through employee training, and offer incentives to their employees who supply practical market developments to enhance customer services to gain a competitive advantage.

Subtheme 2: Management and Organizational Culture

Knowledge management is the systemic and organizational process of acquiring, organizing, and communicating knowledge for firms to use more effectively and be productive (Aviv et al., 2021; Razzaq et al., 2019). Participants recognized that small business auto dealership owners should use knowledge management to improve quality customer services, decision-making, problem-solving, adaptability to change, and increased customer satisfaction (Aureli et al., 2019). Participants also expressed that leaders should understand the implementation of knowledge practices in different cultures. García-Fernández et al. (2018) stated that organizational culture strongly influences employees' behaviors beyond formal control systems. Small business auto dealership owners should be capable of shaping strong organizational culture to fit the effective anticipated strategies (Li-Fan et al., 2019). Once employees recognize the organizational culture, the work setting appears to be more pleasant, improving the employees' morale, teamwork, information sharing, and accepting fresh ideas (Colnar & Dimovski, 2020). Following the findings of this qualitative study, Zieba and Kończyński (2020) highlighted the importance of organizational culture, which presents employees as strategic partners that can improve employees' effectiveness through human capital, communication, and teamwork. For example, PSAD3 stated,

We treat customers with respect, emphasize customer loyalty and experience, and then you know, we encourage employees and others to represent good dealership culture. We train them well on how they can implement dealership culture. We remind them of the values and attitudes they should hold when talking with prospective customers.

A small auto dealership with a strong culture can position itself to protect its existing market share against conquest and grow even in a flat sales marketplace through effective service (Zieba & Kończyński, 2020). Participants stated that the essential element of small auto dealership culture is giving sales team members the power, responsibility, and authority to do what needs to be done to help their customers. The sales team members can build trust with customers and help create an environment where they want to work because they're allowed to do good work (Zieba & Kończyński, 2020). Participants acknowledged that the sales team members are the top driver of buyer satisfaction with the dealership experience. PSAD2 stated,

We have a great culture because we have great people in my company. You know, one of the best ways to create a positive culture in the workplace is to listen to your employees.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by identifying management and organizational culture as essential inimitable resources to gain a competitive advantage, including the company brand products and services that obtain valuable and

rare resources that competitors cannot duplicate. Small business auto dealership owners must establish virtuous quality services for other firms seeking innovation, capabilities, and capacities for solutions to the challenges in the marketplace.

Subtheme 3: Customer Needs and Preferences

Participants also stated that small business auto dealership owners could use market analysis of business knowledge to expand the knowledge pool of small auto dealerships, improve business operations, and clarify the business' long-term objectives to increase customer needs and preferences. Leaders should understand current and potential customers' needs, wants, and purchasing tendencies will lead to a more accessible adaptation of products and services to ensure customer satisfaction (Zieba & Kończyński, 2020). For example, PSAD3 stated,

We use our internal measurements to decide what market strategies need to be enhanced and when they should be enhanced and with whom. There should be enhanced or just it, and that is done with market analysis.

Following the findings of this qualitative study, Aviv et al. (2021) explained that environment and dynamic strategies are other significant sources of business knowledge to gain a competitive advantage that includes developments in local and international politics and economy, technology, and society, affecting business goals and growth. Participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners could use dynamic business strategies to ensure that a business can respond appropriately to changes that may represent both potential opportunities and new threats to its effective operations (Tomé & Gromova, 2021). Leaders can create their business effectiveness strategies

accordingly by adjusting to their markets to remain dynamic and change their strategies as changes in their environment advantage (Aviv et al., 2021). Business efficiency is significant that business owners will be able to intensify and strengthen their business efficiency using their expertise as reflected in better business standards, processes, products, and services (Nurjaman et al., 2021; Tomé & Gromova, 2021).

PSAD2 explained that small business auto dealership owners should utilize their business knowledge to efficiently bring products and services closer to their customers and target market to increase sales and gain a competitive advantage. A firm needs to align its process, products, and services by building strong customer relationship management to increase sales (Ernawati et al., 2021). For example, PSAD2 stated,

Currently, with the way the market is, people are doing enormous markups and things like that; we're not doing any markups. We're just trying to basically be here for customers because we want them to come back to us in the future. We want them to be satisfied with our services in our dealership, and they get cars of their needs.

Mona and Asarian (2019) explained how important of small businesses to align their business knowledge resources with the changes that occur in the marketplace. PSAD1, PSAD2, and PSAD3 acknowledged that small business auto dealership owners should understand how to manage knowledge capabilities to deploy resources efficiently and grow their businesses in value. The conceptual framework for this qualitative study was the RBV theory, with the general systems theory and social network theory as alternative theories. Small auto dealership managers and owners can use these theories to

understand how to employ business knowledge resources effectively and how to use networks to obtain important market information cost-effectively to gain a competitive advantage and sustain their organizations.

The findings of this study supported the assertation of Harindranath et al. (2019) that small business auto dealership owners need the knowledge and skills of car salespersons as valuable resources to deliver quality customer services and increase market share. The findings also supported the RBV concept of using the knowledge and skills of car salespersons to present customized solutions to individual customers to gain a sustainable competitive advantage.

Table 5Human Capital

Theme and subthemes	Number of responses	% of respondent agreement
Human capital: Hiring, training,	7	100%
and selling strategy		

Emergent Theme: Human Capital

The theme of human capital originated from Interview Questions 1, 2, 4, and mainly Questions 1 and 2, in which I explored the participants' insight about strategies and methods that small business auto dealership owners used for business sustainability in the competitive advantage. Human capital management is defined as a process in which small businesses hire the right employee who has the knowledge and capabilities to retain the organization for gaining profits and sustaining a competitive advantage (Popkova, 2021). Hiring the right employee for the proper position can lead to positive

organizational outcomes such as reducing employee turnover, achieving productivity, improving the cost-benefit ratio, and increasing customer satisfaction (Rabiei & Arias-Aranda, 2021). Participants recognized the importance of developing human capital that contributes to competitive advantage resulting from the quality of the knowledge and skills of car salespersons.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by using human capital as essential valuable resources to gain a competitive advantage, such as hiring the right employee who has capabilities to retain the organization for achieving profits and sustaining their organization in the competitive environment. Participants discussed how human capital management is an essential valuable resource in business activities and the value chain of small auto dealerships. Leaders should enlist the talents of the firm's human resources to develop and deploy a strategy for improving workforce productivity to drive higher value for the firms to become an important focus throughout the organization (Gruzina et al., 2021; Rabiei & Arias-Aranda, 2021). Participants stated that small business auto dealership owners should optimize their workforce through comprehensive human capital development to achieve business goals, long-term survival, and sustainability. To accomplish this undertaking, leaders need to invest human resources to ensure that employees have the necessary knowledge, skills, and competencies to work effectively in a rapidly changing and complex environment (Amaratunga et al., 2018).

Subtheme 1: Hiring, Training, and Selling

Participants identified that small business auto dealership owners should invest in human resources, including hiring the right employees, providing quality employee training, and sharing the experience of selling strategies with their employees.

Participants acknowledged that retaining the knowledge and skills of car salespersons in the automobile industry is important for firms to gain profits and maintain a competitive advantage. According to the RBV concept, knowledge and skills are central to small businesses' success that leaders use to sustain their organizations in the competitive environment and that leaders must acquire from the internal development of their employees (Amaratunga et al., 2018). For instance, PSAD3 stated,

First, we would start with hiring, then it would be training, and that it would be selling. The manufacturer and our company constantly provide that training to our staff and employees to ensure they receive good knowledge and skills results.

The findings of this study supported the assertion by Rabiei and Arias-Aranda (2021) that when the human resource is valuable, rare, non-imitable, and nonsubstitutable, the human capital pool of a firm may contribute to sustainable competitive advantage. Participants emphasized that small business auto dealership owners need to invest in human resources by improving staff and employee knowledge and skills through training. Employees are human resources in whom small business leaders invest through the knowledge and skills development by training to improve their abilities to perform tasks effectively, thereby adding value and enabling the firm to achieve a sustainable competitive advantage (Muhammad et al., 2018; Rabiei & Arias-

Aranda, 2021). Firms should implement service strategies for their employees by providing clear information and adequate training to ensure consistency in the delivery systems and enhance customer service (Stefaniuk, 2020).

The findings of this study contributed to RBV theory by highlighting the significance of human capital development as a relevant valuable resource and other business resources that can enhance firm performance and achieve a sustained competitive advantage (Hutahayan, 2020). Participants indicated that small business auto dealership owners should optimize access to human capital and have the ability to respond quickly to new opportunities. Participants also stated that small business auto dealership owners should provide online training courses for the sales team members or require them to participate in training meetings held by the auto manufacturers for inventory sold at the dealership. The sales team members should take training courses to improve their overall understanding of the workings of the dealership and apply that experience to enhancing product knowledge and recognizing their essential role as sales team members (Hutahayan, 2020). The sales team members should educate on vehicle performance capabilities, features, and tips to share with customers. PSAD2 stated,

Selling cars requires in-depth knowledge and understanding of the auto market. We train our employees well with knowledge and skills on how to take care of customers, so they have the opportunity to grow the business. We want customers to be satisfied with our services and find the vehicle their needs. We do not want customers to see us as somebody is out for the quick buck. Customers want to come back only if you can make them feel comfortable and satisfied, where your

people are helpful, knowledgeable, and polite. If you are grumbling, unfriendly, and unwelcome, customers will certainly not return.

The findings of this study supported the assertation of Nguyen et al. (2018) that firms can create sustainable intangible values of the RBV theory by implementing human resources actions that develop human capital and improve business performance. Participants highlighted the significant role of small business auto dealership owners in developing dynamic capabilities and implementing human resource development actions to align with organizational goals, thereby gaining a sustainable competitive advantage.

Table 6 *Effective Supervision*

Theme and subthemes	Number of responses	% of respondent agreement
Effective supervision	6	66.67%
• Employees loyalty and	3	33.33%
communication		

Emergent Theme: Effective Supervision

The theme of effective supervision originated from Interview Questions 1, 2, 3, 5, and mainly Question 2 asked participants to provide the effectiveness of their strategies to improve business skills to maintain business operations. Participants acknowledged the importance of effective communication with customers to ensure employees have the knowledge and skills to serve customers well and provide them with pleasant car buying. The finding corroborated assertions by Rafi and Saeed (2019) that customers perceive car salespersons as not trustworthy and believe sellers routinely take advantage of customers.

Participants discussed how being a professional and effective supervisor and leading by example is essential to motivate employees to work harder and treat customers with respect. Participants also stated that leaders need active supervisors who are effective facilitators to utilize interpersonal skills to encourage employees to achieve business goals and sustain a competitive advantage. Leaders should understand such a relationship and how they can work together with their employees because employees are considered a vital success for the organization (Geil & Greenwald, 2020).

Effective supervisory leadership and supervisors should have individual characteristics, such as problem-solving skills, fairness, production concentration, recognizing of other works, taking positive action, and giving feedback to employees (Geil & Greenwald, 2020). Participants stated that effective supervisors should be energetic, create new ideas, and be confident to help their employees, allowing them to perform the job well. Chatman et al. (2020) added that an effective leader encourages free and open communication and trains team members in the best possible way to guarantee effective performance. PSAD3 stated,

If you build loyalty with your employees, they will provide excellent customer service to customers and create a positive atmosphere at the dealership. They know what to do and what needs to be done and are willing to step up and do well to take care of customers, and then this can create customers loyalty and satisfaction.

Participants stated that small business auto dealership owners should motivate employees to treat customers with care and respect. PSAD2 stated,

We provide guest service and treatment and respect customers who visit our dealership. Therefore, we can build trust with customers and maintain a good relationship with our customers.

The findings of this study supported the RBV concept by identifying effective supervision as an essential valuable resource to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners should use adequate supervision as a resource to build relationships with employees and how they can work together with their employees to encourage employees to achieve business goals and sustain a competitive advantage.

Subtheme 1: Employees Loyalty and Communication

Chatman et al. (2020) identified that an effective leader should be able to determine how to lead depending on their employees and the situation to improve business and gain a competitive advantage. Leaders should know how to react to the complex situational context that organizations face by having a sense of work, analyzing situations, and responding to them (Chatman et al., 2020). Participants explained that the success of small business auto dealership owners comes from motivated, committed, skilled employees with positive attitudes towards their organizations. Gupta and Sharma (2018) stated that effective supervisors should have capable skills by maintaining open communications with employees and employing management techniques, including fairness, honesty, supportiveness, and accessibility. For exemple, PSAD1 stated,

Employees are significant because how they are treated can directly affect business. If you want to encourage others and employees within the dealership to

grow the business, you must be positive behaviors, be able to take charge, and be effective in solving the problem.

Participants explained that small business auto dealership owners should encourage employees to communicate and provide feedback freely to improve work achievement. PSAD2 stated,

When we have any work-related issues with employees, I encourage them to freely communicate with me and address the problem.

The findings of this study supported the assertation of Ciftgul and Cetinkanat (2021) that the most significant responsibility of effective leadership is to play a decisive role in creating loyalty with employees, maintaining business issues, training employees well, and developing the culture in an organization. From the perspective of the RBV theory, participants' responses supported the findings by Umanto and Andreo (2018) that organizational culture is an intangible resource that leaders use to influence group members for achieving their goals to gain a competitive advantage and improve business performance. Participants acknowledged that the accountability of effective leadership is the ability to influence their employees and build customer loyalty. Small business auto dealership owners should understand the targeted audience, build a relationship with others, and present the content effectively in real-time to influence others (Ciftgul & Cetinkanat, 2021). Participants also described that when influential leaders encourage employees to communicate freely, that can increase employee commitment to work harder, translating to the quality of customer service. The findings of this study indicated that small business auto dealership owners benefit from creating lasting relationships

with their employees and building customers loyalty because customer and employee satisfaction will directly influence their business and future sales.

Applications to Professional Practice

The findings of this study are relevant to the professional practice of business that business leaders could potentially use the findings to improve sales and achieve competitive advantages. Participants provided additional information on small business auto dealership owners used business strategies to sustain organizations and gain competitive advantages. The specific business problem was that some small business auto dealership owners lack business strategies to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years. Small business leaders can respond to the challenges of the competitive market environment and customers to maintain competitiveness (Dunay & Nosratabadi, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners may consider the quality of customer service and business strategies to sustain their organization and gain competition in the marketplace (Fasika & Alemayehu, 2020). The findings may provide small business auto dealership owners with information on developing and implementing business strategies to safeguard firm resources and sustained profitability.

Small business auto dealership owners can focus on reducing costs, increasing productivity, creating employee loyalty, building customer relationships, and improving customer services to satisfy customers and other stakeholders (Fasika & Alemayehu, 2020). Leaders can optimize resource allocations that align with practical strategies, improve business performance, and integrate the volatility of the competitive market environment (Tzavlopoulos et al., 2019). The findings of this study concurred with the

RBV theory because small business auto dealership owners can use the theory to identify, evaluate, and manage the resources to maintain operations and sustain competitive advantages. Leaders can use the RBV theory to analyze significant resources as valuable sources of competitive advantages to maintain business and improve sales (Tzavlopoulos et al., 2019). The findings are relevant to professional practice, and small business leaders may obtain the information of results to employ resources efficiently in business to improve business performance, achieve a competitive advantage, and sustain business growth.

The findings of this study might serve as basic information for small business auto dealership owners to improve business practices, increase business performance, and sustain a competitive advantage. This study showed that customer satisfaction, internet marketing, business knowledge, influential leaders, and human capital resources are effective strategies for small auto dealerships to succeed in the competitive marketplace. The results of this study may assist small business auto dealership owners in using and identifying the resources to remain competitive advantages. This study is significant to professional business practice in that the results may provide leaders with knowledge management to assist them in managing their businesses better and enhancing business growth. The results could enable small business auto dealership owners to gain insights into successful strategies and practices that may improve the effectiveness of using tangible and intangible resources. Leaders may use the findings of this study to develop and implement strategies to reduce business failures, improve organizational practices, and increase profits.

Implications for Social Change

The results from this study could beneficially affect business individuals, communities, organizations, institutions, cultures, and societies by adding to the strategies that small business auto dealership owners use to maintain a competitive advantage and sustain business growth. Small business auto dealership owners could increase their success rate and improve communities' economic well-being by developing and implementing value-added strategies. Small auto dealerships' successes could positively affect other small businesses in the community by increasing foot traffic, thereby attracting new customers and enabling enterprises to advertise to potential buyers. Increasing small auto dealerships' success rate may increase employment opportunities in their communities, thereby positively affecting individuals' employment. High success rates for small auto dealerships may create more jobs, achieve employment opportunities, and increase firm profitability. The findings of this study could enable small business leaders to recognize the importance of training, relationships, customer loyalty, and retaining experienced employees.

Some small auto dealerships could benefit from the findings of this study to adopt business cultures to encourage others with positive behaviors towards customers. Small business leaders manage, motivate, and encourage employees with positive behaviors that can be a significant competitive advantage of an enterprise (Hitka et al., 2019). Small business auto dealership owners might gain knowledge by implementing adaptive and agile customer strategies and behaviors to respond to market volatility and customer needs promptly. Small business leaders might acquire knowledge and learn the

experience of meeting varied customer requirements regarding prices, specification of models, quality of vehicles, and delivery. Encouraging employees and salespersons with positive behaviors might develop loyalty and trust in customers in the purchasing process, thereby enriching relationships with existing and potential customers. Positive behaviors of employees and salespersons will improve customer loyalty and increase business profitability (Langerud & Jordan, 2020). Therefore, small auto dealerships could expand employment opportunities, allowing local communities to grow through increased tax revenues and contributions to local nonprofit organizations.

Recommendations for Action

The findings of this study may provide small auto dealerships within highly competitive market environments with business strategies that increase small business success. Small auto dealerships may consider the information in the study's findings for maintaining an existing business, starting a new business, and increasing business productivity and sales. Using the information as resources by successful small business auto dealership owners may prove inspirational to entrepreneurial success. The participants provided valuable insights into their knowledge management processes, strategic resources, and business practices, including their perceptions regarding the significant capabilities needed for future business success. The recommendations from the study's findings are consistent with the RBV theory of the small business, meaning implementation is mindful of the business resources, strategic resources, and capabilities limitations of small business enterprises. The results from this study provided small business auto dealership owners' insights to determine business strategies to increase the

success rate of small businesses. With the study's findings, I recommended that small business auto dealership owners use the information of the study, including some significant intangible and tangible resources, to maintain their business operations and gain a competitive advantage. The following recommendations for business actions identified from the study's findings should benefit current and future small auto dealerships for business sustainability and future growth. The existing and aspiring small business auto dealership owners should focus on quality customer satisfaction, internet marketing, business knowledge, human capital, and effective supervision strategies.

The findings of this study revealed that the theme of customer satisfaction was an essential valuable resource that leaders can use to gain a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners should provide exceptional quality customer services and products to customers and potential customers by focusing on their needs and preferences, which will enhance customer satisfaction, loyalty, and competitiveness.

Quality customer service is vital to delivering a differentiating advantage to businesses and achieving customer satisfaction and loyalty (Slack & Singh, 2020). Some participants noted that providing quality services and products to customers enables small auto dealerships to experience increased customer satisfaction, loyalty, and a positive reputation. Therefore, small business auto dealership owners should focus on a service strategy that delivers exceptional quality services to customers to retain existing customers, attract new customers, and gain a competitive advantage over the competitive market environment. Small business auto dealership owners should reward employees who provide exceptional quality services to customers and receive positive feedback.

Another relevant theme recommendation for business action identified from the study's findings was internet marketing of products and services. Internet marketing was an essential valuable tangible resource to gain a competitive advantage. The internet and technology have changed the way people shop to buy cars. Therefore, small business auto dealership owners should market their strategy of selling vehicles by using marketing tools, strategic networks, newspapers, and exhibitions to enhance access to potential buyers. Leaders should implement marketing strategies that include customer relationships, extensive marketing research, and market segmentation to identify premium target markets, selective distribution, and intensive advertising. Marketing strategy has always been an essential resource for a firm because it is closely related to solid product sales, market share, and future development (Wang et al., 2021). Using internet marketing to advertise products and services to reach new customers will enable small business auto dealerships to gain market share in a way that rivals cannot imitate easily. Small business auto dealership owners should form alliances with other stakeholders in the automobile industry to increase a strong network marketing that includes cultivating business relationships, creating opportunities, and obtaining critical information. Small business owners with a strong network will get essential information cost-effectively, thereby increasing access to auctions, market advertising and communication, trade fairs, product exhibitions, and online marketing.

The findings showed that the theme of business knowledge was an essential intangible resource to gain a competitive advantage that leaders can use to create value and sustain competitive advantages. Small business auto dealership owners should have

business knowledge in the automobile industry to maintain business operations and gain a competitive advantage. Knowledge intends to provide considerable impact to the organizations, mainly assisting in developing corporate strategy and business process engineering and attaining a competitive edge (Aviv et al., 2021; Wamba-Taguimdje et al., 2020). Small business auto dealership owners should understand the industry and consumer trends to grow their business in the competitive environment by using business knowledge to develop business strategies to achieve a competitive advantage. Small business auto dealership owners should align their business knowledge resources with the changes in the marketplace to create business value to gain effectiveness for their businesses. Small business auto dealership owners use business knowledge and experience to maintain existing customers and develop business strategies to attract new customers to compete with other competitors in the market. Small business auto dealership owners should use relevant information and skilled employees to deliver quality customer services to increase market share, improve customer relationships, and achieve customer loyalty. Small business auto dealership owners should use the knowledge and skills they gained from their experiences in the automobile industry as a strategic intangible resource to create customer value to increase profit and growth for their companies.

The findings indicated that the theme of human capital was an essential valuable resource to gain a competitive advantage that leaders can use for hiring employees who have the capabilities to achieve and sustain their organization in the competitive environment. Small business auto dealership owners should develop human capital by

providing and implementing mandatory employee training related to customer services, relationships, and loyalty. Implementing employee-training activities is another skill-enhancing human resource management practice that firms can promote to increase their capabilities and become more confident in their knowledge and skills to improve business performance to sustain a competitive advantage (Natalicchio et al., 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should treat their employees as human resources by investing in knowledge development and management training to improve their abilities to perform tasks effectively, thereby adding value and retaining experienced employees while competing with rivals. Small business auto dealership owners should develop and implement human resource development actions that align with their organizational goals to gain a sustainable competitive advantage.

The findings disclosed that the theme of effective supervision was an essential valuable resource to gain a competitive advantage that leaders can use to build relationships and work together with their employees to encourage employees to achieve business goals. Small business auto dealership owners should provide effective leadership in business to encourage employees to practice a corporate culture, improve customer loyalty and satisfaction, and promote open communication between employees and customers. Small business auto dealership owners should have individual characteristics, such as solving problem skills, creating employee loyalty, recognizing work, taking positive action, being confident to help their employees, and giving feedback to employees. Influential leaders should open communication between leaders and employees' feedback to improve business performance, and thereby employees can

deliver quality service to increase customer satisfaction (Gupta & Sharma, 2018). Small business auto dealership owners should provide the dealership culture to encourage employees to communicate freely, thereby increasing employee commitment to improving customer service quality that enhances customer satisfaction and loyalty. Increasing customer loyalty, thereby building trust and reducing the negative reputation of car salespersons. Small business auto dealership owners should immediately address any negative feedback or complaints from customers and suppliers related to the unprofessional behaviors of car salespersons in the company to maintain the integrity and reputation of the organization. Small business auto dealership owners should encourage skilled employees with positive attitudes towards their organizations, create lasting relationships with their employees, and build customers loyalty because customer and employee satisfaction will directly influence business and future sales.

Recommendations for Further Research

The findings of this study indicated that some business strategies were essential to succeed in a competitive business environment. Researchers may use the findings of this study as a foundation for further research to explore other business strategies, resources, and knowledge management that are not covered in this study. The recommendation for further research is to explore the education level of small business owners affects the success of small businesses in the competitive environment. Participants in this study consisted of three small business auto dealership owners in Sacramento, California. The geographic location of the study is limited; therefore, the results of the study may not apply to other States. Thus, further research could expand to different geographical

locations in the United States of America and other countries. Subsequent researchers should analyze and consider the findings of this study to further research to gain knowledge of small business success to achieve performance, gain a competitive advantage, and sustain growth.

Reflections

My doctoral study at Walden University was a long journey, but I gained knowledge from my study in exploring strategies for completing the doctoral study process. I had an opportunity to interview small business auto dealership owners in business for more than five years in Sacramento. Conducting the study has increased my knowledge of small business auto dealership owners used to maintain the organizations and my understanding of the doctoral study. My initial attempt to recruit and obtain participants' commitment was seemingly challenging, even though I sent them my introductory letters and informed consent forms.

To mitigate the risk of bias in collecting and interpreting data, I was mindful of possible tendencies in every interview of my study and deliberated on strategies to minimize biases. I followed the interview protocol to ensure that I applied the same procedures to each participant and took some measures to reduce bias as the researcher of this study. As the interview progressed, I was comfortable with all participants who shared their business knowledge, experience, and success to sustain operations. The data collections for this study were through semistructured interviews with participants who have succeeded in business. From my discussions with the participants of this study, I realized how they spend so much time working hard to grow and succeed in business.

This study enhanced my understanding of how small auto dealerships can sustain their businesses and stimulated my interest in establishing a small auto dealership after graduation.

Conclusion

The specific business problem was that some small business auto dealership owners lacked business strategies to sustain their organizations beyond 5 years in a competitive environment. This qualitative multiple case study aimed to explore business strategies that small business auto dealership owners used to sustain organizations beyond 5 years. The conceptual framework for this study was the RBV theory created by Barney (1991). The data collection methods of this study were semistructured interviews, document reviews, field notes, and website visits.

The five main themes identified through data analysis included (a) customer satisfaction, (b) internet marketing, (c) business knowledge, (d) human capital, and (e) effective supervision. The study results may contribute to social change by reducing business failures and improving small business automobile industry organizational practices. Small business leaders may use the findings to create additional jobs for local communities, which could increase the economic well-being of communities through an increase in tax revenues by using and implementing a data-driven strategic plan for new auto dealerships startups. The findings from this study could help small business auto dealership owners to understand the importance of developing business resources and implementing strategies that safeguard to improve quality of customer service, increase market share, and gain competitiveness.

References

- Abdalla, M., Oliveira, L. G. L., Azevedo, C. E. F., & Gonzalez, R. K. (2018). Quality in qualitative organizational research: Type of triangulation as a methodological alternative. *Administração: Ensino e Pesquisa, 19*(1), 66-98.

 https://doi.org/10.13058/raep.2018.v19n1.578
- Abdi, F., Khalili-Damghani, K., & Abolmakarem, S. (2018). Solving customer insurance coverage sales plan problem using a multi-stage data mining approach.

 *Kybernetes, 47(1), 2-19. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-07-2017-0244
- Abdulrahman, A. A. (2020). The impact of human resource management practices, organizational learning, organizational culture and knowledge management capabilities on organizational performance in Saudi organizations: A conceptual framework. *Revista Argentina De Clínica Psicológica*, 29(4), 714-721. https://doi.org/10.24205/03276716.2020.876
- Abel, D. A., & Bressan, A. (2016). A resource-based view of the firm and micro and small Italian wine firms. *International Journal of Wine Business Research*, 28(4), 349-368. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJWBR-12-2015-0051
- Abel, D. A., Bressan, A., & Sakellarios, N. (2016). A resource based approach in the context of the emerging craft brewing industry. *European Business Review*, 28(5), 560-582. https://doi.org/10.1108/EBR-12-2015-0176
- Abel, D. A., & O'Brien, S. (2017). Family firms' management decision to export/not to export: A resource-based view. *Journal of Advances in Management**Research, 14(3), 270-287. https://doi.org/10.1108/JAMR-06-2016-0053

- Aboramadan, M., Albashiti, B., Alharazin, H., & Khalid, A. D. (2020). Human resources management practices and organizational commitment in higher education: The mediating role of work engagement. *The International Journal of Educational Management*, 34(1), 154-174. https://doi.org.org/10.1108/IJEM-04-2019-0160
- Abu-Rumman, A. (2018). Gaining competitive advantage through intellectual capital and knowledge management: An exploration of inhibitors and enablers in Jordanian universities. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 16(3), 259-268. https://doi.org/10.21511/ppm.16(3).2018.21
- Adashi, E. Y., Walters, L. B., & Menikoff, J. A. (2018). The Belmont Report at 40:

 Reckoning with time. *American Journal of Public Health*, 108(10), 1345–1348.

 https://doi.org/10.2105/ajph.2018.304580
- Afriansyah, E. A., Puspitasari, N., Luritawaty, I. P., Mardiani, D., & Sundayana, R. (2019). The analysis of mathematics with ATLAS.ti. *Journal of Physics:*Conference Series, 1402(7). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1402/7/077097
- Agathokleous, E. (2021). China: The new powerhouse of hormesis research? *Dose-Response*, 19(1). https://doi.org/10.1177/1559325821995655
- Agostini, L., Nosella, A., & Venturini, K. (2019). Toward increasing affective commitment in SME strategic networks. *Business Process Management Journal*, 25(7), 1822-1840. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-02-2018-0035
- Ahmad, M. (2019). An empirical study of the challenges facing zakat and waqf institutions in northern Nigeria. *ISRA International Journal of Islamic Finance*, 11(2), 338-356. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJIF-04-2018-0044

- Ajayi, O. A., & Olaniyan, T. A. (2019). Contextual understanding and utilization of entrepreneurial leadership in business development. *American Journal of Management*, 19(3), 11–18. https://doi.org/10.33423/ajm.v19i3.2186
- Ajumobi, O., Uhomoibhi, P., Onyiah, P., Babalola, O., Sharafadeen, S., Ughasoro, M. D., & Umoette, N. (2018). Setting a Nigeria national malaria operational research agenda: The process. *BMC Health Services Research*, *18*(1), Article 459

 https://doi.org/10.1186/s12913-018-3224-5
- Akbari, M., Azbari, M. E., & Chaijani, M. H. (2019). Performance of the firms in a free-trade zone: The role of institutional factors and resources. *European Management Review*, 16(2), 363–378. https://doi.org/10.1111/emre.12163
- Akenroye, T. O., Owens, J. D., Elbaz, J., & Durowoju, O. A. (2020). Dynamic capabilities for SME participation in public procurement. *Business Process Management Journal*, 26(4), 857-888. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-10-2019-0447
- Akmaeva, R., Arykbaev, R., Epifanova, N., & Glinchevskiy, E. (2020). Influence of digitalization upon formation of corporate strategy and new business models of modern organizations. *SHS Web of Conferences*, 89, Article 03003. https://doi.org/10.1051/shsconf/20208903003
- Albrecht, S., Breidahl, E., & Marty, A. (2018). Organizational resources, organizational engagement climate, and employee engagement. *Career Development International*, 23(1), 67-85. https://doi.org/10.1108/CDI-04-2017-0064

- Alexander, E., Eppler, M. J., & Comi, A. (2021). Data integration: A real-time, participant-driven, and visually supported method. *Journal of Mixed Methods**Research*, 15(1), 87–113. https://doi.org/10.1177/1558689820902294
- Ali, A., Ali, S., Sajjad, A. K., Dost, M. K., Abbas, K., Khalil, A., & Khalil, U. (2019).

 Sample size issues in multilevel logistic regression models. *PLoS One*, *14*(11).

 https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0225427
- Ali-Khan, S., Harris, L. W., & Richard, G. E. (2017). Motivating participation in open science by examining researcher incentives. *ELife*, 6, Article 29319. https://doi.org/10.7554/eLife.29319
- Allen, B. L., Lees, J., Cohen, A. K., & Jeanjean, M. (2019). Collaborative workshops for community meaning making and data analyses: How focus groups strengthen data by enhancing understanding and promoting use. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 16(18).

 https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph16183352
- Alomari, M. W., Marashdeh, Z., & Bashayreh, A. G. (2019). Contribution of financial market development in competitiveness growth. *Cogent Economics & Finance*, 7(1). https://doi.org/10.1080/23322039.2019.1622483
- Al-Omoush, K. S., Al-Qirem, R. M., & Al Hawatmah, Z. M. (2018). The degree of e-business entrepreneurship and long-term sustainability: An institutional perspective. *Information Systems and e-Business Management*, 16(1), 29-56. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10257-017-0340-4

- Alonso, A. D. (2019). Resources, competitiveness, and socioeconomic development: The case of a South American emerging economy. *Local Economy*, *34*(1), 68–87. https://doi.org/10.1177/0269094219829717
- Al-Shami, S., Mamun, A. A., Sidek, S., & Rashid, N. (2019). Causes of failure among Malaysian female entrepreneurs. *Qualitative Research in Financial Markets*, 12(1), 43-71. https://doi.org/10.1108/QRFM-12-2018-0142
- Amankwah-Amoah, J., Boso, N., & Antwi-Agyei, I. (2018). The effects of business failure experience on successive entrepreneurial engagements: An evolutionary phase model. *Group & Organization Management*, *43*(4), 648–682. https://doi.org/10.1177/1059601116643447
- Amaratunga, D., Chamindi, I. M., & Keraminiyage, K. (2018). Contextualising mainstreaming of disaster resilience concepts in the construction process.

 *International Journal of Disaster Resilience in the Built Environment, 9(4), 348-367. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJDRBE-10-2017-0057
- Amelia, D., & Syukmayettil, L. (2021). The effect of business knowledge, business skill, self-confidence and innovation on business performance of small and medium industry in the city of bukittinggi. *IOP Conference Series.Earth and Environmental Science*, 747(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/747/1/012084
- Amoako, G. K. (2020). A conceptual framework: Corporate environmental management activities and sustainable competitive advantage. *Management of Environmental Quality*, 31(2), 331-347. https://doi.org/10.1108/MEQ-09-2019-0187

- Anning-Dorson, T., Nyamekye, M. B., & Odoom, R. (2017). Effects of regulations and competition on the innovativeness-performance relationship: Evidence from the financial services industry. *The International Journal of Bank Marketing*, *35*(6), 925-943. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJBM-06-2016-0079
- Annink, A. (2017). Using the research journal during qualitative data collection in a cross-cultural context. *Entrepreneurship Research Journal*, 7(1), 1–17. https://doi.org/10.1515/erj-2015-0063
- Anselmi, P., Fabbris, L., Maria, C. M., & Robusto, E. (2018). Comparison of four common data collection techniques to elicit preferences. *Quality and Quantity*, 52(3), 1227-1239. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11135-017-0514-7
- Apuke, O. D. (2017). Quantitative research methods a synopsis approach. *Kuwait*Chapter of the Arabian Journal of Business and Management Review, 6(11), 4047. https://doi.org/10.12816/0040336
- Archibald, M. M., Ambagtsheer, R. C., Casey, M. G., & Lawless, M. (2019). Using zoom video conferencing for qualitative data collection: Perceptions and experiences of researchers and participants. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 18, 160940691987459. https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406919874596
- Arriagada-Benítez, M., Sepúlveda, M., Munoz-Gama, J., & Joos, C. A. M. (2017).

 Strategies to automatically derive a process model from a configurable process model based on event data. *Applied Sciences*, 7(10), 1023.

 https://doi.org/10.3390/app7101023

- Arvidsson, N., Jonsson, S., & Lotta, K. S. (2019). The transaction-relationship paradox: Effects of bank operational capabilities on bank performance throughout a shift from relationship lending to transaction. *Managerial Finance*, 45(9), 1253-1271. https://doi.org/10.1108/MF-01-2019-0024
- Asgher, M. U., & Hanif, M. I. (2018). Impact of multi-dimensional service innovation on performance of the banking services. *Paradigms*, *12*(1), 103-111. https://doi.org/10.24312/paradigms120115
- Ashby, B., Watkins, E., Lourenço, J., Gupta, S., & Foster, K. R. (2017). Competing species leave many potential niches unfilled. *Nature Ecology & Evolution*, 1(10), 1495-1501. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41559-017-0295-3
- Asiaei, K., & Bontis, N. (2020). Translating knowledge management into performance:

 The role of performance measurement systems. *Management Research*Review, 43(1), 113-132. https://doi.org/10.1108/MRR-10-2018-0395
- Åslund, A., & Bäckström, I. (2017). Management processes and management's role in customer value creation. *International Journal of Quality and Service*Sciences, 9(2), 148-164. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQSS-11-2015-0074
- Assensoh-Kodua, A. (2019). The resource-based view: A tool of key competency for competitive advantage. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 17(3), 143-152. https://doi.org/10.21511/ppm.17(3).2019.12
- Audretsch, D. B., & Link, A. N. (2018). Innovation capital. *Journal of Technology Transfer*, 43(6), 1760-1767. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10961-018-9700-6

- Aureli, S., Giampaoli, D., Ciambotti, M., & Bontis, N. (2019). Key factors that improve knowledge-intensive business processes, which lead to competitive advantage. *Business Process Management Journal*, 25(1), 126-143. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-06-2017-0168
- Aversa, P., Hervas-Drane, A., & Evenou, M. (2019). Business model responses to digital piracy. *California Management Review*, 61(2), 30–58. https://doi.org/10.1177/0008125618818841
- Aviv, I., Hadar, I., & Levy, M. (2021). Knowledge management infrastructure framework for enhancing knowledge-intensive business processes. *Sustainability*, *13*(20), 11387. https://doi.org/10.3390/su132011387
- Ayorinde, A. A., Williams, I., Mannion, R., Song, F., Skrybant, M., Lilford, R. J., & Yen-Fu, C. (2020). Assessment of publication bias and outcome reporting bias in systematic reviews of health services and delivery research: A meta-epidemiological study. *PLoS One*, *15*(1). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0227580
- Baharuddin, T., Sairin, S., Jubba, H., Qodir, Z., Nurmandi, A., & Hidayati, M. (2021).

 Social capital and social trust: The state's response to the spread of COVID-19 in Indonesia. *Sociology and Technoscience*, 11(2), 23-47.

 https://doi.org/10.24197/st2.2021.23-47
- Balashov, V. M., Batkovskiy, A. M., Semenova, E. G., Trofimets, V. Y., & Fomina, A.

- V. (2018). Improvement of operational management of innovative production processes based on the implementation of MES. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 16(4), 1-12. https://doi.org/10.21511/ppm.16(4).2018.01
- Bammert, S., König, U. M., Roeglinger, M., & Wruck, T. (2020). Exploring potentials of digital nudging for business processes. *Business Process Management Journal*, 26(6), 1329–1347. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-07-2019-0281
- Banerjee, T., & Feinstein, Z. (2019). Impact of contingent payments on systemic risk in financial networks. *Mathematics and Financial Economics*, 13(4), 617-636. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11579-019-00239-9
- Barbic, S. P., Chan, N., Rangi, A., Bradley, J., Pattison, R., Brockmeyer, K., & Mathias, S. (2019). Health provider and service-user experiences of sensory modulation rooms in an acute inpatient psychiatry setting. *PLoS One*, 14(11). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0225238
- Barney, J. B. (1991). Firm resources and sustained competitive advantage. *Journal of Management*, 17(1), 99-120. https://doi.org/10.1177/014920639101700108
- Barney, J. B. (2001). Resource-based theories of competitive advantage: A ten-year retrospective on the resource-based view. *Journal of Management*, 27(6), 643-650. https://doi.org/10.1177/014920630102700602
- Barra, C., & Zotti, R. (2017). Investigating the human capital development–growth nexus: Does the efficiency of universities matter? *International Regional Science Review*, 40(6), 638–678. https://doi.org/10.1177/0160017615626215

- Barros, A. T. (2020). Parliamentary speeches on the Amazon: About what Brazilian deputies say. *Politics & Society*, 19(46), 299-331. https://doi.org/10.5007/2175-7984.2020.e66962
- Barua, A., & Ioanid, A. (2020). Country brand equity: The decision making of corporate brand architecture in cross-border mergers and acquisitions. *Sustainability*, 12(18), 7373. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12187373
- Bashir, N. (2020). The qualitative researcher: The flip side of the research encounter with vulnerable people. *Qualitative Research*, 20(5), 667–683. https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794119884805
- Batko, K. (2017). Relation between dynamic analytical capabilities and competitive advantage: Theoretical approach. *Ekonomia i Prawo*, 16(3), 259-273. https://doi.org/10.12775/EiP.2017.018
- Behnke, A., Krings, A., Comfort, M. W., Dunyo, P., Kaufmann, A. M., & Amuah, J. E. (2020). Female health-care providers' advocacy of self-sampling after participating in a workplace program for cervical cancer screening in Ghana: A mixed-methods study. *Global Health Action*, *13*(1). https://doi.org/10.1080/16549716.2020.1838240
- Benoliel, P., Shaked, H., Nadav, N., & Schechter, C. (2019). School principals' systems thinking: Antecedents and consequences. *Journal of Educational Administration*, 57(2), 167-184. https://doi.org/10.1108/JEA-08-2018-0144

- Bergen, N., & Labonté, R. (2020). "Everything is perfect, and we have no problems": detecting and limiting social desirability bias in qualitative research. *Qualitative Health Research*, 30(5), 783–792. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732319889354
- Bertheussen, B. A. (2021). Sustained competitive advantage based on industry-specific institutional frameworks. *Frontiers in Marine Science*, 8, Article 697936. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.697936
- Beynon, M. J., Jones, P., & Pickernell, D. (2020). SME development strategy and product/ service innovation intention: A NCaRBS analysis of the role of uncertainty. *The International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation*, 21(1), 3–16. https://doi.org/10.1177/1465750318807401
- Bhandari, S., Showers, V., & Johnson-Snyder, A. J. (2019). A comparison: Accrual versus cash flow based financial measures' performance in predicting business failure. *Journal of Accounting & Finance* (2158-3625), 19(6), 11–25. https://doi.org/10.33423/jaf.v19i6.2313
- Bhat, S. A., & Darzi, M. A. (2018). Service, people and customer orientation: A capability view to CRM and sustainable competitive advantage. *Vision*, 22(2), 163–173. https://doi.org/10.1177/0972262918766132
- Bhatia, A., & Aggarwal, K. (2018). Impact of investment in intangible assets on corporate performance in India. *International Journal of Law and Management*, 60(5), 1058-1073. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJLMA-05-2017-0127
- Bhatti, A., Rehman, S. U., & Rumman, J. B. A. (2020). Organizational capabilities mediates between organizational culture, entrepreneurial orientation, and

- organizational performance of SMEs in Pakistan. *Entrepreneurial Business and Economics Review*, 8(4), 85-103. https://doi.org/10.15678/EBER.2020.080405
- Biloshapka, V., & Osiyevskyy, O. (2018). Value creation mechanisms of business models: Proposition, targeting, appropriation, and delivery. *The International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation*, 19(3), 166–176. https://doi.org/10.1177/1465750318782774
- Blankson, C., Cowan, K., & Darley, W. K. (2018). Marketing practices of rural micro and small businesses in Ghana: The role of public policy. *Journal of Macro marketing*, 38(1), 29–56. https://doi.org/10.1177/0276146717741067
- Blinda, K., Schnittka, O., Sattler, H., & Jan-Frederik, G. (2019). Implementing effective customer participation for hedonic and utilitarian services. *The Journal of Services Marketing*, 33(3), 316-330. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSM-07-2018-0196
- Bloodgood, J. M. (2019). Knowledge acquisition and firm competitiveness: The role of complements and knowledge source. *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 23(1), 46-66. https://doi.org/10.1108/JKM-09-2017-0430
- Borchardt, M., Souza, M., Pereira, G. M., & Viegas, C. V. (2018). Achieving better revenue and customers' satisfaction with after-sales services. *The International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management*, 35(9), 1686-1708.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQRM-01-2017-0016
- Borjalilu, N., & Ghambari, M. (2018). Optimal maintenance strategy selection based on a fuzzy analytical network process: A case study on a 5-MW powerhouse.

- International Journal of Engineering Business Management. 10, Article 1847979018776172. https://doi.org/10.1177/1847979018776172
- Borza, P., Arbačiauskas, K., & Zettler, M. L. (2021). Multidimensional niche differentiation might buffer invasion impacts: The case of oligohaline corophiids (Crustacea: Amphipoda) in the Baltic Sea. *Biological Invasions*, 23(6), 1891–1900. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10530-021-02479-7
- Bosquetti, M. A., Fiates, G. G. S., & Ponting, J. (2017). Strategic management at

 Mormaii the Brazilian surf industry leader. *Brazilian Business Review, especial*14(1), 110-129. https://doi.org/10.15728/edicaoesp.2017.6
- Bratianu, C., Stanescu, D. F., & Mocanu, R. (2021). Exploring the knowledge management impact on business education. *Sustainability*, *13*(4), 2313. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13042313
- Bravington, A., & King, N. (2019). Putting graphic elicitation into practice: Tools and typologies for the use of participant-led diagrams in qualitative research interviews. *Qualitative Research*, 19(5), 506–523.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794118781718
- Brear, M. (2019). Process and outcomes of a recursive, dialogic member checking approach: A project ethnography. *Qualitative Health Research*, 29(7), 944–957. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732318812448
- Breeze, B., & Pamala, W. (2020). Different drivers: Exploring employee involvement in corporate philanthropy: JBE. *Journal of Business Ethics*, *165*(3), 453-467. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-018-4093-x

- Bressolles, G., & Lang, G. (2020). KPIs for performance measurement of e-fulfillment systems in multi-channel retailing. *International Journal of Retail & Distribution Management*, 48(1), 35-52. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJRDM-10-2017-0259
- Brockhaus, S., Petersen, M., & Knemeyer, A. M. (2019). The fallacy of "trickle-down" product sustainability: Translating strategic sustainability targets into product development efforts. *International Journal of Operations & Production*Management, 39(9), 1166-1190. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-03-2019-0181
- Brynne, G., Eilish, M., Power, J., & Vallières, F. (2019). Data analysis and synthesis within a realist evaluation: Toward more transparent methodological approaches.

 International Journal of Qualitative Methods, 18, Article 1609406919859754.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406919859754
- Bu, Q., Jin, Y., & Li, Z. (2020). How does a customer prefer community or brand? The impacts of customer experience on customer loyalty based on the perspective of value co-creation. *Journal of Contemporary Marketing Science*, *3*(3), 281-302. https://doi.org/10.1108/JCMARS-02-2020-0009
- Bucher, T., & Winter, R. (2009). Project types of business process management: Towards a scenario structure to enable situational method engineering for business process management. *Business Process Management Journal*, *15*(4), 548-568. https://doi.org/10.1108/14637150910975534
- Bulińska-Stangrecka, H., & Bagieńska, A. (2020). Intangible resources for an organization's sustainability potential. *Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues*, 8(1), 741-761. https://doi.org/10.9770/jesi.2020.8.1(50)

- Bvuma, S., & Marnewick, C. (2020). An information and communication technology adoption framework for small, medium and micro-enterprises operating in townships South Africa. *The Southern African Journal of Entrepreneurship and Small Business Management*, 12(1). https://doi.org/10.4102/sajesbm.v12i1.318
- Bystrov, A. V., Radaikin, A. G., & Fedoseev, E. V. (2021). Formation of organizational and economic model of cross-industry ecosystems. *IOP Conference Series.Earth and Environmental Science*, 666(6). https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/666/6/062112
- Cambra-Fierro, J., Melero-Polo, I., & Sese, F. J. (2018). Customer value co-creation over the relationship life cycle. *Journal of Service Theory and Practice*, 28(3), 336-355. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSTP-01-2017-0009
- Campion, M. C., Campion, M. A., & Campion, E. D. (2018). Big data techniques and talent management: Recommendations for organizations and a research agenda for I-O psychologists. *Industrial and Organizational Psychology*, 11(2), 250-257. https://doi.org/10.1017/iop.2018.14
- Candela, A. (2019). Exploring the function of member checking. *The Qualitative Report*. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2019.3726
- Canét-Wittkampf, C. G., Eijkelboom, C., Mol, S., Zwart, D., Hendriks, I., & de Groot, E. (2020). Fostering patient-centredness by following patients outside the clinical setting: An interview study. *BMC Medical Education*, 20(1), 1-8. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-020-1928-9

- Cao, H., & Chen, Z. (2019). The driving effect of internal and external environment on green innovation strategy-the moderating role of top management's environmental awareness. *Nankai Business Review International*, 10(3), 342-361. https://doi.org/10.1108/NBRI-05-2018-0028
- Cao, M. T. (2012). Success predictor for international joint ventures in Vietnam.

 International Journal of Emerging Markets, 7(1), 72-85.

 https://dx.org/10.1108/17468801211197914
- Capello, R., & Lenzi, C. (2016). Innovation modes and entrepreneurial behavioral characteristics in regional growth. *Small Business Economics*, 47(4), 875-893. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11187-016-9741-x
- Caputo, F., Garcia-Perez, A., Cillo, V., & Giacosa, E. (2019). A knowledge-based view of people and technology: Directions for a value co-creation-based learning organization. *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 23(7), 1314-1334. https://doi.org/10.1108/JKM-10-2018-0645
- Cárdenas, A. R., da Costa, T., Alperstedt, G. D., & Feuerschütte, S. G. (2018). The use of triangulation in theses and dissertations of graduate programs in administration in Brazil *. *Administration: Teaching and Research*, 19(2), 1-22.

 https://doi.org/10.13058/raep.2018.v19n2.853
- Cardullo, V., Wang, C., Burton, M., & Dong, J. (2021). K-12 teachers' remote teaching self-efficacy during the pandemic. *Journal of Research in Innovative Teaching & Learning*, 14(1), 32-45. https://doi.org/10.1108/JRIT-10-2020-0055

- Caretta, M. A., & Pérez, M. A. (2019). When participants do not agree: Member checking and challenges to epistemic authority in participatory research. *Field Methods*, *31*(4), 359–374. https://doi.org/10.1177/1525822X19866578
- Carlson, J. (2014). Avoiding traps in member checking. *The Qualitative Report*, *15*(5), 1102-1113. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2010.1332
- Carrera-Portugal, A. (2019). The role of city rankings in local public policy design:

 Urban competitiveness and economic press. *Global Media and China*, 4(2), 162–178. https://doi.org/10.1177/2059436419853892
- Caspersz, D., & Thomas, J. (2015). Developing positivity in family business leaders.

 Family Business Review, 28(1), 60–75.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0894486513505641
- Cavaleri, S., & Shabana, K. (2018). Rethinking sustainability strategies. *Journal of Strategy and Management*, 11(1), 2-17. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSMA-08-2016-0050
- Cave, J., Chaudhuri, K., & Kumbhakar, S. C. (2019). Do banking sector and stock market development matter for economic growth? *Empirical Economics*, *59*(4), 1513-1535. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00181-019-01692-7
- Cayre, F., Baillet, L., Fercocq, C., Linossier-Rocher, R., & Pons, J. L. (2018). 1ISG-014

 Iso 9001 certification: Customer focus. *European Journal of Hospital*Pharmacy. Science and Practice, 25, Article A6-A7.

 https://doi.org/10.1136/ejhpharm-2018-eahpconf.14

- Cescon, F., Costantini, A., & Grassetti, L. (2019). Strategic choices and strategic management accounting in large manufacturing firms. *Journal of Management & Governance*, 23(3), 605-636. https://dx.org/10.1007/s10997-018-9431-y
- Chan, V. N. M. (2019). English private tutoring in Macao: Perceptions of senior secondary three students. *ECNU Review of Education*, 2(1), 44–63. https://doi.org/10.1177/2096531119840864
- Chao-Hung, W. (2019). How organizational green culture influences green performance and competitive advantage: The mediating role of green innovation. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*, 30(4), 666-683.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/JMTM-09-2018-0314
- Chapman, E. F., Sisk, F. A., Schatten, J., & Miles, E. W. (2018). Human resource development and human resource management levers for sustained competitive advantage: Combining isomorphism and differentiation. *Journal of Management and Organization*, 24(4), 533-550. https://doi.org/10.1017/jmo.2016.37
- Chatman, J. E., Johnson, A., White, E., & Bell, R. L. (2020). The leader as effective communicator. *American Journal of Management*, 20(2), 22 32. https://doi.org/10.33423/ajm.v20i2.2997
- Chattopadhyay, R. (2018). Interactional justice-related bias and its impact on appraiser's decision-making process: An experimental approach. *Journal of Operations and Strategic Planning*, 1(2), 185–203. https://doi.org/10.1177/2516600X18814618

- Chenail, R. (2015). Conducting qualitative data analysis: Qualitative data analysis as a metaphoric process. *The Qualitative Report*, *17*(1), 248-253. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2012.1818
- Cheung, H., & Yu, E. (2020). A review of the strategic planning process in the Hong Kong police force. *Public Administration and Policy*, *23*(3), 245–258. https://doi.org/10.1108/pap-06-2020-0027
- Chikowore, N. R., & Kerr, J. M. (2020). A qualitative inquiry into collecting recyclable cans and bottles as a livelihood activity at football tailgates in the United States. *Sustainability*, *12*(14), 5659. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12145659
- Cho, E., Kim, H., Kim, J., Lee, K., Meghani, S. H., & Chang, S. J. (2017). Older adult residents' perceptions of daily lives in nursing homes. *Journal of Nursing Scholarship*, 49(5), 495-503. https://doi.org/10.1111/jnu.12314
- Choi, K., Ruey-Jer, B. J., & Kim, D. (2019). The impacts of organizational learning capacities on relationship-specific innovations: Evidence from the global buyer–supplier relationship. *International Marketing Review, 36*(6), 1042-1066. https://.doi.org/10.1108/IMR-07-2017-0130
- Chou, C., & Kimbrough, S. O. (2016). An agent-based model of organizational ambidexterity decisions and strategies in new product development.

 *Computational and Mathematical Organization Theory, 22(1), 4-46.

 https://doi.org/10.1007/s10588-015-9195-8
- Chuang, C.-H., & Zhao, Y. (2019). Demand stimulation in finished-goods inventory management: Empirical evidence from General Motors dealerships. *International*

- Journal of Production Economics, 208(2), 208–220. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2018.11.013
- Chung, S.-Y., & Byrom, J. (2021). Co-creating consistent brand identity with employees in the hotel industry. *Journal of Product & Brand Management*, 30(1), 74–89. https://doi.org/10.1108/JPBM-08-2019-2544
- Chun-Ming, C. (2018). Understanding social networking sites continuance: The perspectives of gratifications, interactivity and network externalities. *Online Information Review*, 42(6), 989-1006. https://doi.org/10.1108/OIR-03-2017-0088
- Ciftgul, R., & Cetinkanat, A. C. (2021). The impact of school principals on teachers' organizational culture perceptions and organizational citizenship behaviors.

 Revista de Cercetare Si Interventie Sociala, 72, 93–108.

 https://doi.org/10.33788/rcis.72.6
- Civaner, M. M., Vatansever, K., & Pala, K. (2017). Ethical problems in an era where disasters have become a part of daily life: A qualitative study of healthcare workers in turkey. *PLoS One*, *12*(3). 41-62.

 https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0174162
- Clark, L., Birkhead, A. S., Fernandez, C., & Egger, M. J. (2017). A transcription and translation protocol for sensitive cross-cultural team research. *Qualitative Health Research*, 27(12), 1751–1764. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732317726761
- Coda, R. C., De Castro, G., & Henrique, C. (2019). Business-to- business marketing:

 Brazilian scientific production from 2008 to 2018. *Revista De Administração De Empresas*, 59(4), 258-270. https://doi.org/10.1590/S0034-759020190404

- Coetzer, A., Kock, H., & Wallo, A. (2017). Distinctive characteristics of small businesses as sites for informal learning. *Human Resource Development Review*, *16*(2), 111–134. https://doi.org/10.1177/1534484317704291
- Colnar, S., & Dimovski, V. (2020). Knowledge management in social work:

 Management support, incentives, knowledge implementation, and
 employentation, and employee empowerment*. *Economic and Business Review*for Central and South Eastern Europe, 22(3), 383-414,446.

 https://doi.org/10.15458/ebr107
- Comella, A., Hassett, L., Hunter, K. C., Jenni, B. S., & Sherrington, C. (2019).

 Sporting opportunities for people with physical disabilities: Mixed methods study of web-based searches and sport provider interviews. *Health Promotion Journal of Australia*, 30(2), 180-188. https://doi.org/10.1002/hpja.31
- Connolly, D., Anderson, M., Colgan, M., Montgomery, J., Clarke, J., & Kinsella, M. (2019). The impact of a primary care stress management and wellbeing programmed (RENEW) on occupational participation: A pilot study. *British Journal of Occupational Therapy*, 82(2), 112–121.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0308022618793323
- Costa, C. M. T., Duch, B. N., & García, Q. J. (2019). Innovation strategies of energy firms. *Corporate Social Responsibility & Environmental Management*, 26(5), 1073–1085. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.1787

- Cote, R. (2019). The evolution of social network theory: Perceived impact on developing networking relationships. *American Journal of Management*, 19(3), 19-34. https://doi.org/10.33423/ajm.v19i3.2187
- Cotta de Mello, R. D., Pereira Barreto, L. G., & Secches Kogut, C. (2020). Networks and speed of internationalization: A multiple case study of emerging market it firms. *Internext: Revista Electrônica de Negócios Internacionais Da*ESPM, 15(3), 1–16. https://doi.org/10.18568/internext.v15i3.585
- Couturier, J., & Sklavounos, N. (2019). Performance dialogue: A framework to enhance the effectiveness of performance measurement systems. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, 68(4), 699-720. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-09-2017-0238
- Coventry, T., & Hays, A.-M. (2021). Nurse Managers' perceptions of mentoring in the multigenerational workplace: A qualitative descriptive study. *Australian Journal of Advanced Nursing*, 38(2). https://doi.org/10.37464/2020.382.230
- Creed, P. G. (2017). The experience of interpretation and use of text messaging techniques with the substance use disorder individual in post recovery: A grounded theory approach (Order No. 10276711). Available from ProQuest Dissertations & Theses Global. (1900173846).
- Crowe, S., Brown, K., Tregay, J., Wray, J., Knowles, R., Ridout, D. A., & Utley, M. (2017). Combining qualitative and quantitative operational research methods to inform quality improvement in pathways that span multiple settings. *BMJ Quality & Safety*, 26(8), 641. https://doi.org/10.1136/bmjqs-2016-005636

- Crusoe, J. R., & Ahlin, K. (2019). Users' activities for using open government data a process framework. *Transforming Government: People, Process and Policy*, 13(3), 213-236. https://doi.org/10.1108/TG-04-2019-0028
- Cruz, I. K. H., Hsu, P. L., Cruz, F. P. B., & Dal Vesco, D. G. (2017). Desenvolvimento

 Estratégico com Base em Ativos Intangíveis: O Caso da Empresa X. *Revista Ibero-Americana de Estratégia*, 16(02), 125–140.

 https://doi.org/10.5585/riae.v16i2.2292
- Cuadros, A., Cuestas, J. C., & Martín-Montaner, J. (2021). Self-employment convergence in Europe: The role of migration. *PLoS One*, *16*(4). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0250182
- Cyphert, D. (2021). From product to process: The rhetoric of sustainability and evolving management practice. *Business and Professional Communication Quarterly*, 84(3), 242-265. https://doi.org/10.1177/2329490620987835
- Dadzie, C. A., Winston, E. M., Williams, A. J., & Dadzie, K. Q. (2021). Promoting bank usage habits in Africa's savings mobilization programs: A strategic marketing perspective. *Journal of Macro marketing*, 41(2), 391–410. https://doi.org/10.1177/0276146720958063
- Dalkin, S., Forster, N., Hodgson, P., Lhussier, M., & Carr, S. M. (2021). Using computer assisted qualitative data analysis software (CAQDAS; NVivo) to assist in the complex process of realist theory generation, refinement and testing. *International Journal of Social Research Methodology*, 24(1), 123–134. https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2020.1803528

- Dankyi, A. B., Yusheng, K., Ankomah-Asare, E. T., Dankyi, J. K., & Addo, A. A. (2020). Acquisition of human capital for organizational sustainability: A BASS-SIR forecasting approach. *International Journal of Engineering Business Management*, 12, Article 1847979020935330. https://doi.org/10.1177/1847979020935330
- Davide, S. B., García-Muiña, F. E., Pini, M., Volpi, L., Siligardi, C., & Ferrari, A. M. (2019). Sustainability as source of competitive advantages in mature sectors: The case of ceramic district of Sassuolo (Italy). *Smart and Sustainable Built Environment*, 8(1), 53-79. https://doi.org/10.1108/SASBE-07-2018-0038
- Davidson, S., Harmer, M., & Marshall, A. (2015). Strategies for creating and capturing value in the emerging ecosystem economy. *Strategy & Leadership*, 43(2), 2-10. https://doi.org/10.1108/SL-01-2015-0003
- Davies, L., LeClair, K. L., Bagley, P., Blunt, H., Hinton, L., Ryan, S., & Ziebland, S. (2020). Face-to-face compared with online collected accounts of health and illness experiences: A scoping review. *Qualitative Health Research*, *30*(13), 2092–2102. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732320935835
- DeJonckheere, M., & Vaughn, L. M. (2019). Semistructured interviewing in primary care research: A balance of relationship and rigor. *Family Medicine and Community Health*, 7(2). https://doi.org/10.1136/fmch-2018-000057
- Dele-Ijagbulu, O., Moos, M., & Eresia-Eke, C. (2020). The relationship between environmental hostility and entrepreneurial orientation of small businesses.

- Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation in Emerging Economies, 6(2), 347–362. https://doi.org/10.1177/2393957520931332
- Demirkan, I. (2018). The impact of firm resources on innovation. *European Journal of Innovation Management*, 21(4), 672-694. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJIM-12-2017-0196
- Deng, P., Zeng, L., & Liu, Y. (2018). RBF neural network backstepping sliding mode adaptive control for dynamic pressure cylinder electrohydraulic servo pressure system. *Complexity*, 2018, Article 16. https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/4159639
- Deniers, C. (2019). Experiences of receiving career coaching via Skype: An interpretative phenomenological analysis. *International Journal of Evidence Based Coaching & Mentoring*, 17(1), 72–81. https://doi.org/10.24384/r4j8-hm94
- Denning, S. (2017). The next frontier for agile: Strategic management. *Strategy & Leadership*, 45(2), 12-18. https://doi.org/10.1108/SL-02-2017-0021
- Dentoni, D., Bijman, J., Marilia, B. B., Gondwe, S., Isubikalu, P., Chen, J., & Vieira, L. (2020). New organizational forms in emerging economies: Bridging the gap between agribusiness management and international development. *Journal of Agribusiness in Developing and Emerging Economies*, 10(1), 1-11. https://doi.org/10.1108/JADEE-10-2019-0176
- Desyllas, P., Salter, A., & Alexy, O. (2020). The breadth of business model reconfiguration and firm performance. *Strategic Organization*, 20(2), 231-269. https://doi.org/10.1177/1476127020955138

- Divatia, J. (2018). Comments on published article: A valuable resource. *Indian Journal of Anesthesia*, 62(6) https://doi.org/10.4103/ija.IJA_398_18
- Djedovic, A., Karabegovic, A., Avdagic, Z., & Omanovic, S. (2018). Innovative approach in modeling business processes with a focus on improving the allocation of human resources. *Mathematical Problems in Engineering*, 2018, Article 14. https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/9838560
- Dobrow, M. J., Miller, F. A., Frank, C., & Brown, A. D. (2017). Understanding relevance of health research: Considerations in the context of research impact assessment.

 *Health Research Policy and Systems, 15(1), 2-9. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12961-017-0188-6
- D'Oria, L., Crook, T. R., Ketchen, D. J., Sirmon, D. G., & Wright, M. (2021). The evolution of resource-based inquiry: A review and meta-analytic integration of the strategic resources—actions—performance pathway. *Journal of Management*, 47(6), 1383–1429. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206321994182
- Dotzel, T., & Shankar, V. (2019). The relative effects of business-to-business (vs. business-to-consumer) service innovations on firm value and firm risk: An empirical analysis. *Journal of Marketing*, 83(5), 133–152. https://doi.org/10.1177/0022242919847221
- Downie, C. (2017). Business actors, political resistance, and strategies for policymakers. *Energy Policy, 108*, 583–592. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.enpol.2017.06.018
- Dreyer, B., Lüdeke-Freund, F., Hamann, R., & Faccer, K. (2017). Upsides and downsides of the sharing economy: Collaborative consumption business models' stakeholder

- value impacts and their relationship to context. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*. *125*(1), 87-104. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2017.03.036
- Du, X., Gao, Y., Chang, L., Lang, X., Xue, X., & Bi, D. (2020). Assessing the application of big data technology in platform business model: A hierarchical framework.

 *PLoS One, 15(9). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0238152
- Duan, L., Liu, L., Dong, G., Nummenmaa, J., Wang, T., Qin, P., & Yang, H. (2018).

 Mining distinguishing customer focus sets from online customer reviews.

 Computing, 100(4), 335–351. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00607-018-0601-1
- Dubey, R., Gunasekaran, A., Childe, S. J., Blome, C., & Papadopoulos, T. (2019). Big data and predictive analytics and manufacturing performance: Integrating institutional theory, resource-based view and big data culture. *British Journal of Management*, 30(2), 341–361. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-8551.12355
- Dunay, A., & Nosratabadi, S. (2018). Challenges to economic upgrading of Iranian economy. *Theory, Methodology, Practice, 14*(1), 37–48.

 https://doi.org/10.18096/tmp.2018.01.04
- Dungan, A. M., Hartman, L. M., Tortorelli, G., Belderok, R., Lamb, A. M., Pisan, L., & van Oppen, M. J. H. (2020). Exaiptasia diaphana from the Great Barrier Reef: a valuable resource for coral symbiosis research. *Symbiosis*, 80(2), 195–206. https://doi.org/:10.1007/s13199-020-00665-0
- Duque, L., Costa, R., Dias, Á., Pereira, L., Santos, J., & Nelson, A. (2020). New ways of working and the physical environment to improve employee engagement.

 Sustainability, 12(17), 6759. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12176759

- Dwomoh, G., Luguterah, A. W., & Duah, S. B. (2020). Hoteliers' human resource strategies for business sustainability during covid-19 pandemic in Ghana. *Journal of Business and Retail Management Research*, 14(3).

 https://doi.org/10.24052/JBRMR/V14IS03/ART-04
- Ebadi, N., Ranjdoust, S., & Azimi, M. (2019). Perspectives of educational sciences experts and nursing professionals on task-based curriculum components.

 Research and Development in Medical Education, 8(1), 24-30,30A-30D.

 https://doi.org/10.15171/rdme.2019.005
- Eckhardt, J. T. (2013). Opportunities in business model research. *Strategic Organization*, *11*(4), 412–417. https://doi.org/10.1177/1476127013511059
- Edward, G. O., Ovbagbedia, O. O., Zuofa, T., Abdulai, R., Matipa, W., Ruan, X., & Oledinma, A. (2018). Utilizing a systematic knowledge management based system to optimize project management operations in oil and gas organizations.

 *Information Technology & People, 31(2), 527-556. https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-08-2016-0198
- Eggert, A., Böhm, E., & Cramer, C. (2017). Business service outsourcing in manufacturing firms: An event study. *Journal of Service Management*, 28(3), 476-498. https://doi.org/10.1108/JOSM-11-2016-0306
- Einarsen, K., Salin, D., Einarsen, S. V., Skogstad, A., & Mykletun, R. J. (2019).

 Antecedents of ethical infrastructures against workplace bullying: The role of organizational size, perceived financial resources and level of high-quality HRM

- practices. *Personnel Review*, 48(3), 672-690. https://doi.org/10.1108/PR-10-2017-0303
- Ekirapa-Kiracho, E., Tetui, M., Bua, J., Rornald, M. K., Waiswa, P., Makumbi, F., & Kiwanuka, S. N. (2017). Maternal and neonatal implementation for equitable systems. A study design paper. *Global Health Action*, *10* (4). https://doi.org/10.1080/16549716.2017.1346925
- Elbanna, S., & Abdel-Maksoud, A. (2020). Organizational resources and performance:

 The case of an oil-rich country. *Public Performance & Management Review*,

 43(3), 713–739. https://doi.org/10.1080/15309576.2019.1660187
- ElFarmawi, W. (2020). The effect of customer relationship management system on customer satisfaction. *Journal of Systems Integration*, 11(2), 11-16. https://doi.org/10.20470/jsi.v11i2.391
- Elgazzar, S., Tipi, N., & Jones, G. (2019). Key characteristics for designing a supply chain performance measurement system. *International Journal of Productivity* and Performance Management, 68(2), 296-318. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-04-2018-0147
- Eppich, R., & Grinda, J. L. G. (2019). Sustainable financial management of tangible cultural heritage sites. *Journal of Cultural Heritage Management and Sustainable Development*, 9(3), 282-299. https://doi.org/10.1108/JCHMSD-11-2018-0081
- Eret, O. E. (2017). What do teacher candidates in Turkey think about their teacher education? A qualitative study. *Ted Egitim Ve Bilim*, 42(189). https://doi.org/10.15390/eb.2016.4661

- Ernawati, E., Baharin, S. S. K., & Kasmin, F. (2021). A review of data mining methods in RFM-based customer segmentation. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1869(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1869/1/012085
- Errichiello, L., & Micera, R. (2018). Leveraging smart open innovation for achieving cultural sustainability: Learning from a new city museum project. *Sustainability*, 10(6), 1964. https://doi.org/10.3390/su10061964
- Eskreis-Winkler, L., & Fishbach, A. (2019). Not learning from failure—the greatest failure of all. *Psychological Science*, *30*(12), 1733–1744. https://doi.org/10.1177/0956797619881133
- Evans, J. M., Brown, A., & Baker, G. R. (2015). Intellectual capital in the healthcare sector: A systematic review and critique of the literature. *BMC Health Services Research*, 15(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12913-015-1234-0
- Evered, J. A. (2021). Social relationships in nurses' caring of adolescents and emerging adults with life-limiting illnesses or injuries. *Qualitative Health Research*, *31*(3), 578–589. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732320978207
- Famiyeh, S., Kwarteng, A., & Asante-Darko, D. (2018). Service quality, customer satisfaction and loyalty in automobile maintenance services. *Journal of Quality in Maintenance Engineering*, 24(3), 262-279. https://doi.org/10.1108/JQME-10-2016-0056
- Fang, G., Zhou, Q., Wu, J., & Qi, X. (2019). The relationship between network capabilities and innovation performance: Evidence from Chinese high-tech

- industry. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 119(8), 1638-1654. https://doi.org/10.1108/IMDS-02-2019-0060
- Fang-He, Z., Cheng-Zhi, Q., Teng-Fei, W., Tian-Wu, M., Feng, Q., Jun-Zhi, L., & A-Xing, Z. (2019). Dynamic recommendation of substitute locations for inaccessible soil samples during field sampling campaign. *ISPRS International Journal of Geo-Information*, 8(3), 127. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijgi8030127
- Farquhar, J., Michels, N., & Robson, J. (2020). Triangulation in industrial qualitative case study research: Widening the scope. *Industrial Marketing Management*, 87(1), 160–170. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.indmarman.2020.02.001
- Fasika, B. g., & Alemayehu, T. M. (2020). Kaizen implementation in industries of southern Ethiopia: Challenges and feasibility. *Cogent Engineering*, 7(1).
 https://doi.org/10.1080/23311916.2020.1823157
- Fatma, S. C., & Adiguzel, Z. (2019). Evaluation of open leadership and innovation orientation on employees and culture of the organization. *Verslas: Teorija Ir Praktika*, 20(1), 432-445. https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2019.40
- Favaretto, M., De Clercq, E., Gaab, J., & Elger, B. S. (2020). First, do no harm: An exploration of researchers' ethics of conduct in big data behavioral studies. *PLoS One*, *15*(11). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0241865
- Feng, X., & Behar-Horenstein, L. (2019). Maximizing NVivo utilities to analyze openended responses. *The Qualitative Report*, 24(3), 563-572. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2019.3692

- Ferdaous, J., & Rahman, M. M. (2019). The effects of intangible assets on firm performance: An empirical investigation on selective listed manufacturing firms in DSE, Bangladesh. *American Journal of Business*, *34*(3), 148-168. https://doi.org/10.1108/AJB-11-2018-0065
- Ferrall, I., Heinemann, G., Christian, v. H., & Kammen, D. M. (2021). The role of political economy in energy access: Public and private off-grid electrification in Tanzania. *Energies*, *14*(11), 3173. https://doi.org/10.3390/en14113173
- Ferreira, J., & Fernandes, C. (2017). Resources and capabilities' effects on firm performance: What are they? *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 21(5), 1202-1217. https://doi.org/10.1108/JKM-03-2017-0099
- Flöthmann, C., Hoberg, K., & Gammelgaard, B. (2018). Disentangling supply chain management competencies and their impact on performance: A knowledge-based view. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics*Management, 48(6), 630-655. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPDLM-02-2017-0120
- Fofana, F., Bazeley, P., & Regnault, A. (2020). Applying a mixed methods design to test saturation for qualitative data in health outcomes research. *PLoS One*, *15*(6), Article 0234898. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0234898
- Folkers, K. M., & Bateman-House, A. (2018). Improving expanded access in the United States: The role of the institutional review board. *Therapeutic Innovation* & *Regulatory Science*, 52(3), 285–293. https://doi.org/10.1177/2168479018759661

- Fornes, G., & Cardoza, G. (2019). Internationalization of Chinese SMEs: The perception of disadvantages of foreignness. *Emerging Markets, Finance & Trade*, *55*(9), 2086-2105. https://doi.org/10.1080/1540496X.2018.1518218
- France, C., Grace, D., Lo, I. J., & Carlini, J. (2020). Exploring the interplay between customer perceived brand value and customer brand co-creation behavior dimensions. *Journal of Brand Management*, 27(4), 466-480.

 https://doi.org/10.1057/s41262-020-00194-7
- Francischeto, L. L., & Neiva, E. R. (2019). Innovation in business and cultural orientation to innovation: A multilevel study. *Mackenzie Management Magazine*, 20(3), 1-37. https://doi.org/10.1590/1678-6971/eRAMG190135
- Freeman, R. E., Dmytriyev, S. D., & Phillips, R. A. (2021). Stakeholder theory and the resource-based view of the firm. *Journal of Management*, 47(7), 1757-1770. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206321993576
- Freixanet, J., Braojos, J., Rialp-Criado, A., & Rialp-Criado, J. (2021). Does international entrepreneurial orientation foster innovation performance? The mediating role of social media and open innovation. *The International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation*, 22(1), 33–44. https://doi.org/10.1177/1465750320922320
- Frew, E., & Breheny, K. (2020). Health economics methods for public health resource allocation: A qualitative interview study of decision makers from an English local authority. *Health Economics, Policy and Law, 15*(1), 128-140.

 https://doi.org/10.1017/S174413311800052X

- Fritsch, N.-S., Liedl, B., & Paulinger, G. (2020). Horizontal and vertical labor market movements in Austria: Do occupational transitions take women across gendered lines? *Current Sociology*. Article 001139212096976. https://doi.org/10.1177/0011392120969767
- Fung, K., Lo, H.-T., Srivastava, R., & Andermann, L. (2012). Organizational cultural competence consultation to a mental health institution. *Transcultural Psychiatry*, 49(2), 165–184. https://doi.org/10.1177/1363461512439740
- Furnival, J., Boaden, R., & Walshe, K. (2019). A dynamic capabilities view of improvement capability. *Journal of Health Organization and Management*, *33*(7), 821-834. https://doi.org/10.1108/JHOM-11-2018-0342
- Gaikwad, L., & Sunnapwar, V. (2020). Development of an integrated framework of LGSS strategies for Indian manufacturing firms to improve business performance:

 An empirical study. *TQM Journal*, *33*(1), 257-291. https://doi.org/10.1108/TQM-05-2020-0110
- Galan-Mashenene, R., & Kumburu, N. (2020). Performance of small businesses in Tanzania: Human resources-based view. *Global Business Review*. Article 0972150920927358. https://doi.org/10.1177/0972150920927358
- Galbreath, J. (2002). Success in the relationship age: Building quality relationship assets for market value creation. *The TQM Magazine*, *14*(1), 8-24. https://doi.org/10.1108/09544780210413219
- Gallaway, T. O., & Hines, M. F. (2012). Competitive usability and the catalogue: A process for justification and selection of a next-generation catalogue or web-scale

- discovery system. *Library Trends*, *61*(1), 173-185. https://doi.org/10.1353/lib.2012.0027
- Ganusauskaitė, A., & Vveinhardt, J. (2020). Revisiting contemporary research on creativity in Lithuania. *Management Theory & Studies for Rural Business & Infrastructure Development*, 42(2), 206–213.

 https://doi.org/10.15544/mts.2020.20
- Gao, P., Zhang, J., Gong, Y., & Li, H. (2020). Effects of technical IT capabilities on organizational agility: The moderating role of IT business spanning capability. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 120(5), 941-961. https://doi.org/10.1108/IMDS-08-2019-0433
- García-Fernández, J., Martelo-Landroguez, S., Vélez-Colon, L., & Cepeda-Carrión, G. (2018). An explanatory and predictive PLS-SEM approach to the relationship between organizational culture, organizational performance and customer loyalty:

 The case of health clubs. *Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Technology*, 9(3), 438-454. https://doi.org/10.1108/JHTT-09-2017-0100
- García-Sánchez, E., García-Morales, V. J., & Martín-Rojas, R. (2018). Influence of technological assets on organizational performance through absorptive capacity, organizational innovation and internal labor flexibility. *Sustainability*, 10(3), 770. https://doi.org/10.3390/su10030770
- Gehrke, C. (2019). CEO succession planning in small community banks: A qualitative case study of "PNW" bank. *Journal of Accounting & Finance*, *19*(6), 61–103. https://doi.org/10.33423/jaf.v19i6.2316

- Geibel, J., Reimer, C., Pook, T., Weigend, S., Weigend, A., & Simianer, H. (2021). How imputation can mitigate SNP ascertainment bias. *BMC Genomics*, 22(1), 1-13. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12864-021-07663-6
- Geil, M. A., & Greenwald, J. (2020). An investigation of characteristics of effective global leaders. *The Journal of Business & Industrial Marketing*, *35*(10), 1505-1515. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBIM-01-2019-0035
- Gesualdo, F., Daverio, M., Palazzani, L., Dimitriou, D., Diez-Domingo, J., Fons-Martinez, J., & Tozzi, A. E. (2021). Digital tools in the informed consent process:

 A systematic review. *BMC Medical Ethics*, 22(1), 1-10.

 https://doi.org/10.1186/s12910-021-00585-8
- Gharleghi, B., Asghar, A. J., & Nawaser, K. (2018). The outcomes of corporate social responsibility to employees: Empirical evidence from a developing country.

 Sustainability, 10(3), 698. https://doi.org/10.3390/su10030698
- Ghosh, S. (2021). Efficiency of Cournot and Bertrand equilibria with non-cooperative and cooperative R&D in presence of product differentiation. *The Indian Economic Journal*, 69(1), 32–50. https://doi.org/10.1177/00194662211015389
- Giacosa, E., Mazzoleni, A., & Usai, A. (2018). Business process management (BPM):

 How complementary BPM capabilities can build an ambidextrous state in

 business process activities of family firms. *Business Process Management Journal*, 24(5), 1145-1162. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-07-2017-0211
- Giannakopoulos, G., Mylona, S., Zisimopoulou, A., Belivanaki, M., Charitaki, S., & Kolaitis, G. (2021). Perceptions, emotional reactions and needs of adolescent

- psychiatric inpatients during the COVID-19 pandemic: A qualitative analysis of in-depth interviews. *BMC Psychiatry*, 21(1), 1-10. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12888-021-03378-w
- Gibb, A. (2006). Making markets in business development services for SMEs: Taking up the Chinese challenge of entrepreneurial networking and stakeholder relationship management. *Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development*, 13(2), 263-283. https://doi.org/10.1108/14626000610665962
- Gibson, C. B., Gibson, S. C., & Webster, Q. (2021). Expanding our resources: Including community in the resource-based view of the firm. *Journal of Management*, 47(7), 1878-1898. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206320987289
- Gill, S. L. (2020). Qualitative sampling methods. *Journal of Human Lactation*, *36*(4), 579–581. https://doi.org/10.1177/0890334420949218
- Gomes, C. F., Najjar, M., & Yasin, M. M. (2018). Exploring competitive strategic performance consistency in service organizations. *Measuring Business Excellence*, 22(2), 165-182. https://doi.org/10.1108/MBE-11-2016-0054
- González-Pérez, L. I., & Ramírez-Montoya, M. S. (2022). Components of education 4.0 in 21st century skills frameworks: Systematic review. *Sustainability*, *14*(3), 1493. https://doi.org/10.3390/su14031493
- Gorynia, M. (2019). Competition and globalization in economic sciences. Selected aspects 1. *Economics and Business Review*, *5*(3), 118-133. https://doi.org/10.18559/ebr.2019.3.7

- Goyal, G., Samalia, H. V., & Verma, P. (2017). Interpretive structural modeling for integrating quality management in manufacturing and service counterparts. *The International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management*, 34(9), 1568-1591. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQRM-11-2015-0169
- Grady, C., Touloumi, G., Walker, A. S., Smolskis, M., Sharma, S., Babiker, A. G., Pantazis, N., Tavel, J., Florence, E., Sanchez, A., & Denning, E. (2017). A randomized trial comparing concise and standard consent forms in the START trial. *PLoS One*, *12*(4), 2-8. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0172607
- Green, C. A., Duan, N., Gibbons, R. D., Hoagwood, K. E., Palinkas, L. A., & Wisdom, J. P. (2015). Approaches to mixed methods dissemination and implementation research: Methods, strengths, caveats, and opportunities. *Administration and Policy in Mental Health and Mental Health Services Research*, 42(5), 508-523. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10488-014-0552-6
- Gretenkord, S., Kostka, J. K., Hartung, H., Watznauer, K., Fleck, D., Minier-Toribio, I., & Hanganu-Opatz, I. (2019). Coordinated electrical activity in the olfactory bulb gates the oscillatory entrainment of entorhinal networks in neonatal mice. *PLoS Biology*, *17*(1). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pbio.2006994
- Gruzina, Y., Firsova, I., & Strielkowski, W. (2021). Dynamics of human capital development in economic development cycles. *Economies*, 9(2), 67. https://doi.org/10.3390/economies9020067

- Guangxi, Z., Jianan, Z., & Muammer, O. (2020). Status threat and ethical leadership: A power-dependence perspective: JBE. *Journal of Business Ethics*, *161*(3), 665-685. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-018-3972-5
- Guerry, M., & De Feyter, T. (2012). Optimal recruitment strategies in a multi-level manpower-planning model. *The Journal of the Operational Research*Society, 63(7), 931-940. https://doi.org/10.1057/jors.2011.99
- Guest, G., Namey, E., & Chen, M. (2020). A simple method to assess and report thematic saturation in qualitative research. *PLoS One*, *15*(5). Article 0232076. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0232076
- Gupta, N., & Sharma, V. (2018). Relationship between leader member exchange (LMX), high-involvement HRP and employee resilience on extra-role performance:

 Mediating role of employee engagement. *Journal of Indian Business Research*,

 10(2), 126-150. https://doi.org/10.1108/JIBR-09-2017-0147
- Gupta, S., Grant, S., & Melewar, T. C. (2008). The expanding role of intangible assets of the brand. *Management Decision*, 46(6), 948-960. https://doi.org/10.1108/00251740810882699
- Gusberti, T. D. H., Ludvig, V., Zuanazzi, G., Wolff, B., Peretti, A., Vasconcellos, C., Scherer, R., & Dewes, M. F. (2018). A market for ideas intermediator framework for academic spin-off companies: Expanding understanding of the commercialization of technology. *Small Enterprise Research*, 25(2), 137–151. https://doi.org/10.1080/13215906.2018.1480413

- Hadavimoghaddam, F., Ostadhassan, M., Mohammad, A. S., Bondarenko, T.,
 Chebyshev, I., & Semnani, A. (2021). Prediction of water saturation from well log
 data by machine learning algorithms: Boosting and super learner. *Journal of Marine Science and Engineering*, 9(6), 666. https://doi.org/10.3390/jmse9060666
- Haldin-Herrgard, T. (2000). Difficulties in diffusion of tacit knowledge in organizations.

 Journal of Intellectual Capital, 1(4), 357-365.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/14691930010359252
- Hancock, M., Amankwaa, L., Revell, M., & Mueller, D. (2016). Focus group data saturation: A new approach to data analysis. *The Qualitative Report*, 21(11), 2124. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2016.2330
- Harindranath, R. M., Sivakumaran, B., & Jacob, J. (2019). The moderating role of sales experience in adaptive selling, customer orientation and job satisfaction in a unionized setting. *The Journal of Business & Industrial Marketing*, *34*(8), 1724-1735. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBIM-08-2018-0233
- Hariyati, H., Tjahjadi, B., & Soewarno, N. (2019). The mediating effect of intellectual capital, management accounting information systems, internal process performance, and customer performance. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, 68(7), 1250-1271. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-02-2018-0049
- Harrison, C., Burnard, K., & Stuart, P. (2018). Entrepreneurial leadership in a developing economy: A skill-based analysis. *Journal of Small Business and Enterprise*Development, 25(3), 521-548. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSBED-05-2017-0160

- Haven, T., & Van Grootel, D. L. (2019). Preregistering qualitative research.
 Accountability in Research: Policies & Quality Assurance, 26(3), 229–244.
 https://doi.org/10.1080/08989621.2019.1580147
- Hawkins, D. L., & Hoon, S. (2019). The impact of customer retention strategies and the survival of small service-based businesses. *SSRN Electronic Journal*. *19*(2), 7–34. https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.3445173
- He, J., Chen, H., & Fu-Sheng, T. (2020). Strategy orientation, innovation capacity endowment, and international R&D intensity of listed companies in China. Sustainability, 12(1), 344. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12010344
- Heiens, R. A., Pleshko, L. P., & Ahmed, A. A. (2019). A comparison of the relationship marketing outcomes of SMEs vs large enterprises in the Kuwait fast food industry. *British Food Journal*, 121(10), 2442-2453. https://doi.org/10.1108/BFJ-03-2019-0180
- Heikkilä, M., Bouwman, H., & Heikkilä, J. (2018). From strategic goals to business model innovation paths: An exploratory study. *Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development*, 25(1), 107-128. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSBED-03-2017-0097
- Heng, L., Ferdinand, A. T., Afifah, N., & Ramadania, R. (2020). Service innovation capability for enhancing marketing performance: An SDL perspectives. *Verslas: Teorija Ir Praktika*, 21(2), 623-632. https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2020.12163
- Hennessey, S. P., & Rehman, L. (2020). Anatomy of an effective workplace health intervention: A comprehensive new model. *International Journal of Workplace*

- Health Management, 13(5), 461-475. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJWHM-05-2019-0079
- Henshaw, J. L. (2019). Systems thinking for systems making: Joining systems of thought and action. *Systemic Practice and Action Research*, *32*(1), 63-91. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11213-018-9450-2
- Herranz, A., & Machado, H. P. V. (2019). Motivadores da internacionalização de pequenas empresas de software: Um estudo multi casos nos contextos brasileiro e espanhol. *Revista Eletrônica de Ciência Administrativa*, 18(2), 261–280. https://doi.org/10.21529/recadm.2019011
- Hintsala, H., Niemelä, S., & Tervonen, P. (2017). Arctic innovation hubs: Opportunities for regional co-operation and collaboration in Oulu, luleå, and tromsø. *Northern Review*, 43(1), 77-92. https://doi.org/10.22584/nr45.2017.005
- Hitka, M., Kucharčíková, A., Štarchoň, P., Balážová, Ž., Lukáč, M., & Stacho, Z. (2019).
 Knowledge and human capital as sustainable competitive advantage in human resource management. Sustainability, 11(18), 4985.
 https://doi.org/10.3390/su11184985
- Hohl, S. D., Ceballos, R., Scott, M. A., & Thompson, B. (2019). Developing a culturally informed survey instrument to assess biomedical research participation among Latinos on the U.S.–Mexico Border. *Qualitative Health Research*, 29(3), 445–454. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732318801364
- Hollin, I. L., Craig, B. M., Coast, J., Beusterien, K., Vass, C., DiSantostefano, R., &

- Peay, H. (2020). Reporting formative qualitative research to support the development of quantitative preference study protocols and corresponding survey instruments: Guidelines for authors and reviewers. *The Patient*, *13*(1), 121-136. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40271-019-00401-x
- Holstein, J., Liedberg, G. M., Öhman, A., & Kjellberg, A. (2019). Validity and utility of the Swedish version of the cultural competence assessment instrument. *British Journal of Occupational Therapy*, 82(7), 422–432. https://doi.org/10.1177/0308022619825813
- Homayuni, A., Abedini, S., Hosseini, Z., Etemadifar, M., & Ghanbarnejad, A. (2021). Explaining the facilitators of quality of life in patients with multiple sclerosis: A qualitative study. *BMC Neurology*, 21(1), 1-10. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12883-021-02213-9
- Hopkin, J., & Blyth, M. (2019). The global economics of European populism: Growth regimes and party system change in Europe (The government and opposition/ Leonard Schapiro lecture 2017). *Government and Opposition*, 54(2), 193–225. https://doi.org/10.1017/gov.2018.43
- Hoque, M. E., & Yakob, N. A. (2017). Revisiting stock market development and economic growth nexus: The moderating role of foreign capital inflows and exchange rates. *Cogent Economics & Finance*, *5*(1), Article 1329975. https://doi.org/10.1080/23322039.2017.1329975

- Horak, S., Taube, M., Yang, I., & Restel, K. (2019). Two not of a kind: Social network theory and informal social networks in East Asia. *Asia Pacific Journal of Management*, 36(2), 349–372. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10490-018-9602-z
- Hosseini, S. S., Tekmedash, Y. N., Karami, A., & Jabarzadeh, Y. (2019). The impact of knowledge management strategy on service innovation performance in private and public hospitals. *Iranian Journal of Management Studies*, 12(1), 1-24.
 https://doi.org/10.22059/ijms.2018.249784.672966
- Hsieh, T., Ho, Y., & Chen, S. (2019). Relationship between transactional leadership and employee lifelong learning with prove orientation as a mediator. *Journal of Research in Educational Sciences*, 10(12), 5-9.

 https://doi.org/10.14505/jres.v10.12.01
- Hua, N., Hight, S., Wei, W., Ozturk, A. B., Xinyuan, Z., Nusair, K., & DeFranco, A. (2019). The power of e-commerce: Does e-commerce enhance the impact of loyalty programs on hotel operating performance? *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management*, 31(4), 1906-1923. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJCHM-02-2018-0168
- Huang, C.-C., & Huang, S.-M. (2020). External and internal capabilities and organizational performance: Does intellectual capital matter? *Asia Pacific Management Review*, 25(2), 111–120.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apmrv.2019.12.001

- Hudson, S., Meng, F., So, K. K. F., Smith, S., Li, J., & Qi, R. (2019). The effect of lodging tax increases on US destinations. *Tourism Economics*, 27(1), 205-219. https://doi.org/10.1177/1354816619890752
- Hutahayan, B. (2020). The mediating role of human capital and management accounting information system in the relationship between innovation strategy and internal process performance and the impact on corporate financial performance.

 Benchmarking, 27(4), 1289-1318. https://doi.org/10.1108/BIJ-02-2018-0034*
- Hye-Su, K., & Holst, J. D. (2018). A dissection of experiential learning theory:

 Alternative approaches to reflection. *Adult Learning*, 29(4), 150-157.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1045159518779138
- Hyo, S. J., Seo, K. H., & Yoon, H. H. (2020). The importance of leader integrity on family restaurant employees' engagement and organizational citizenship behaviors: Exploring sustainability of employees' generational differences.

 Sustainability, 12(6), 2504. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12062504
- Hyun-Hee, H., Jeong, W., Xian, H. C., & Chung, H. (2020). A stakeholder analysis of community-led collaboration to reduce health inequity in a deprived neighborhood in South Korea. *Global Health Promotion*, 27(2), 35-44. https://doi.org/10.1177/1757975918791517
- Iivari, N. (2018). Using member checking in interpretive research practice. *Information Technology & People*, 31(1), 111-133. https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-07-2016-0168

- Inków, M. (2020). Organizational innovation capability as a result of knowledge management processes a literature review. *Management*, 24(1), 143–156. https://doi.org/10.2478/manment-2019-0040
- Irving, G. L., Ayoko, O. B., & Ashkanasy, N. M. (2020). Collaboration, physical proximity and serendipitous encounters: Avoiding collaboration in a collaborative building. *Organization Studies*, 41(8), 1123–1146.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0170840619856913
- Islam, K. A., & Akagi, C. (2018). An exploratory study of customers' experiences with their financial services' customer education programs as it impacts financial firm customer loyalty. *Services Marketing Quarterly*, *39*(4), 330–344. https://doi.org/10.1080/15332969.2018.1514797
- Islamgaleyev, A., Petrova, M., Kurenkeyeva, G., Shalbayeva, S., & Kadirbergenova, A. (2020). Increasing customer focus in metal trading. *Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues*, 8(1), 604-617. http://doi.org/10.9770/jesi.2020.8.1(42)
- Ismail, H. (2016). Preferences in business and corporate strategies: The role of personal values. *Contemporary Management Research*, *12*(1), 25-45.

 https://doi.org/10.7903/cmr.14600
- Izaskun, A. A., & Irune, G. P. (2019). The effects of corporate social responsibility on customer loyalty: The mediating effect of reputation in cooperative banks versus commercial banks in the Basque country: JBE. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 154(3), 701-719. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-017-3438-1

- Jacobs, B. L., Hamm, M., Flor de, A. C., Luiggi-Hernandez, J., Heron, D. E., Kahn, J. M., & Barnato, A. E. (2020). Radiation oncologists' attitudes and beliefs about intensity-modulated radiation therapy and stereotactic body radiation therapy for prostate cancer. *BMC Health Services Research*, 20(1), 1-8.
 https://doi.org/10.1186/s12913-020-05656-x
- Jamali, G., Asl, E. K., Zolfani, S. H., & Šaparauskas, J. (2017). Analyzing large supply chain management completive strategies in Iranian cement industries. *E+M Economies a Management*, 20(3), 70-83. https://doi.org/10.15240/tul/001/2017-3-005
- Jardon, C., & Molodchik, M. (2017). What types of intangible resources are important for emerging market firms when going international? *Journal of East European Management Studies*, 22(4), 579-595. https://doi.org/10.5771/0949-6181-2017-4-579
- Jayaraman, S., Talib, P., & Khan, A. F. (2018). Integrated talent management scale:

 Construction and initial validation. *SAGE Open*, 8(3).

 https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244018780965
- Jha, S., Balaji, M. S., Yavas, U., & Babakus, E. (2017). Effects of frontline employee role overload on customer responses and sales performance. *European Journal of Marketing*, 51(2), 282–303. https://doi.org/10.1108/ejm-01-2015-0009
- Jiang, N., Zhao, X., & Zhang, J. (2019). Research on organizational information absorption based on the perspective of multimedia knowledge

- management. *Multimedia Tools and Applications*, 1-17. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11042-019-7296-y
- Jiao, H., Wang, Y., & Liu, M. (2019). The effect of the social network of the top management team on innovation in cultural and creative industries. *Journal of Chinese Human Resources Management*, 10(1), 4-18.
 https://doi.org/10.1108/JCHRM-10-2018-0021
- Jimenez, M. E., Hudson, S. V., Lima, D., & Crabtree, B. F. (2019). Engaging a community leader to enhance preparation for in-depth interviews with community members. *Qualitative Health Research*, 29(2), 270–278.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732318792848
- Jin, Y., & Edmunds, P. (2015). Achieving a competitive supply chain network for a manufacturer: IMS. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*, 26(5), 744-762. https://doi.org/10.1108/JMTM-01-2013-0004
- Jin, Y., & Smith, J. T. (2020). Manufacturer power over suppliers: Scale development and validation: IMS. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*, 32(1), 199-218. https://doi.org/10.1108/JMTM-03-2020-0100
- Jones, N. B., & Graham, C. M. (2018). Can the IT help small businesses? *Bulletin of Science, Technology & Society*, 38(1–2), 3–12. https://doi.org/10.1177/0270467620902365
- Jordão, R. V. D., Novas, J., & Gupta, V. (2020). The role of knowledge-based networks in the intellectual capital and organizational performance of small and medium-

- sized enterprises. *Kybernetes*, 49(1), 116-140. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-04-2019-0301
- Jose, R. S., Palos-Sanchez, P., & Beatriz, R. H. (2020). Digital marketing for sustainable growth: Business models and online campaigns using sustainable strategies.

 Sustainability, 12(3), 1003. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12031003
- Joubert, D., & Van der Merwe, L. (2020). Phenomenology in five-music education journals: Recent use and future directions. *International Journal of Music Education*, 38(3), 337–351. https://doi.org/10.1177/0255761419881492
- Ju, B., Lee, Y., Park, S., & Yoon, S. W. (2021). A meta-analytic review of the relationship between learning organization and organizational performance and employee attitudes: Using the dimensions of learning organization questionnaire. *Human Resource Development Review*, 20(2), 207–251. https://doi.org/10.1177/1534484320987363
- Kalaitzi, D., Matopoulos, A., Bourlakis, M., & Tate, W. (2019). Supply chains under resource pressure: Strategies for improving resource efficiency and competitive advantage. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 39(12), 1323-1354. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-02-2019-0137
- Kaleka, A., & Morgan, N. A. (2017). Which competitive advantage(s)? Competitive advantage—market performance relationships in international markets. *Journal of International Marketing*, 25(4), 25–49. https://doi.org/10.1509/jim.16.0058
- Kamasak, R. (2017). The contribution of tangible and intangible resources, and capabilities to a firm's profitability and market performance. *European Journal of*

- *Management and Business Economics*, 26(2), 252-275. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJMBE-07-2017-015
- Kane, V. E. (2020). Using lean six sigma implied assumptions. *TQM Journal*, *32*(6), 1561–1575. https://doi.org/10.1108/TQM-11-2019-0271
- Kang, S., & Na, Y. K. (2020). Effects of strategy characteristics for sustainable competitive advantage in sharing economy businesses on creating shared value and performance. *Sustainability*, 12(4), 1397. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12041397
- Kanyane, M. (2019). Municipal boundaries demarcations and ward delimitations influence service delivery. *Journal of Public Affairs*, 19(2), Article 1926. https://doi.org/10.1002/pa.1926
- Katainen, A., & Heikkilä, R. (2020). Analyzing the ways of participating in interview settings: Young people's identity performances and social class in focus groups.

 Qualitative Research*, 20(5), 649–666.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794119891634
- Katrakazas, P., Grigoriadou, A., & Koutrouris, D. (2020). Applying a general systems theory framework in mental health treatment pathways: The case of the Hellenic center of mental health and research. *Durham: Research Square, 14(1),* 1-8. https://doi.org/10.21203/rs.3.rs-31022/v2
- Kaufmann, M., & Tzanetakis, M. (2020). Doing internet research with hard-to-reach communities: Methodological reflections on gaining meaningful access.
 Qualitative Research, 20(6), 927–944.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794120904898

- Kaukab, M. E., Adawiyah, W. R., Refius, P. S., & Suroso, A. (2020). Accelerating small firms' production process improvement through international market knowledge and valuable, rare, inimitable, and organized resources and capabilities. *Verslas: Teorija Ir Praktika*, 21(1), 322-328. https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2020.11652
- Kawulich, B. B., & D'Alba, A. (2019). Teaching qualitative research methods with second life, a 3-dimensional online virtual environment. *Virtual Reality*, 23(4), 375-384. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10055-018-0353-4
- Kazmane, J. (2018). Proposal and analysis of a model for design and development of lean supply chain strategy. *International Journal of Engineering Research in Africa*, 37(1), 158-171. https://doi.org/10.4028/www.scientific.net/JERA.37.158
- Kefan, X., Song, Y., Liu, S., & Liu, J. (2019). Analysis of crowd stampede risk mechanism: A systems thinking perspective. *Kybernetes*, 48(1), 124-142. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-11-2017-0415
- Ketchen, D. J., & Craighead, C. W. (2020). Research at the intersection of entrepreneurship, supply chain management, and strategic management:
 Opportunities highlighted by COVID-19. *Journal of Management*, 46(8), 1330–1341. https://do.org/10.1177/0149206320945028
- Khan, I., & Afridi, M. A. (2021). Does board diversity matter for the quality of CSR disclosure? Evidence from the financial sector of Pakistan. *Revista Brasileira de Gestão de Negócios*, 23(1), 104–126.

 https://doi.org/10.7819/rbgn.v23i1.4091

- Khattak, M. S., & Shah, S. Z. A. (2020). Top management capabilities and firm efficiency: Relationship via resources acquisition. *Business and Economic Review*, 12(1), 87-117. https://doi.org/10.22547/BER/12.1.5
- Kiewitz, C., Meek, W. R., & Palmer, C. (2020). Entrepreneurial stress: Implications of the resource-based view and conservation of resources theory. *Academy of Management Annual Meeting Proceedings*, 2020(1), 40-58.
 https://doi.org/10.5465/AMBPP.2020.14058abstract
- Kim, J. (2019). Customers' value co-creation with healthcare service network partners:

 The moderating effect of consumer vulnerability. *Journal of Service Theory and Practice*, 29(3), 309-328. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSTP-08-2018-0178
- Kim, S., Lee, K., Lee, M., & Ahn, T. (2020). Data-driven three-phase saturation identification from X-ray CT images with critical gas hydrate saturation. *Energies*, 13(21), 5844. https://doi.org/10.3390/en13215844
- Kim, S. W. (2006). The effect of supply chain integration on the alignment between corporate competitive capability and supply chain operational capability. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 26(10), 1084-1107. https://doi.org/10.1108/01443570610691085
- Kingsbury, D., & Chatfield, S. (2019). A Qualitative metasynthesis of published research exploring the pregnancy and resettlement experience among eefugee women. *The Qualitative Report*, 24(2), 242-257. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2019.3750

- Kishishita, Y., Tanaka, Y., & Kurita, Y. (2019). Force perceptual bias caused by muscle activity in unimanual steering. *PLoS One*, *14*(10). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0223930
- Kissi, E., Divine, K. A., Debrah, C., & Adjei-Kumi, T. (2020). Underlying strategies for improving entrepreneurial skills development of technical and vocational students in developing countries: Using Ghana as a case study. *Education & Training*, 62(5), 599-614. https://doi.org/10.1108/ET-11-2019-0264
- Klepić, Z., & Madžar, D. (2017). The impact of organizational culture on knowledge management in small and medium enterprises. *Tourism in South East Europe*, 4, 259-266. https://doi.org/10.20867/tosee.04.48
- Koduah, A., Agyepong, I. A., & Han, v. D. (2018). Towards an explanatory framework for national level, maternal health policy agenda item evolution in Ghana: An embedded case study. *Health Research Policy and Systems, 16*(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12961-018-0354-5
- Koh, B. H., Wong, W. P., Tang, C. F., & Lim, M. K. (2018). The double-edge resource-based view of logistics performance and governance in Asian countries. *Asia Pacific Journal of Marketing and Logistics*, 30(3), 652-668.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/APJML-07-2017-0135
- König, C., Caldwell, N. D., & Ghadge, A. (2019). Service provider boundaries in competitive markets: The case of the logistics industry. *International Journal of Production Research*, *57*(18), 5624–5639. https://doi.org/10.1080/00207543.2018.1535203

- Koronis, E., & Ponis, S. (2018). Better than before: The resilient organization in crisis mode. *The Journal of Business Strategy*, *39*(1), 32-42. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBS-10-2016-0124
- Krasnov, A., Nikonorov, V., & Yanenko, M. (2018). Digital platforms based marketing innovations: New development trends. *SHS Web of Conferences*, *44*, Article 00049. https://doi.org/10.1051/shsconf/20184400049
- Krouwel, M., Jolly, K., & Greenfield, S. (2019). Comparing skype (video calling) and inperson qualitative interview modes in a study of people with irritable bowel syndrome an exploratory comparative analysis. *BMC Medical Research Methodology*, 19(1), 1-9. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12874-019-0867-9
- Kücher, A., Mayr, S., Mitter, C., Duller, C., & Feldbauer-Durstmüller, B. (2018). Firm age dynamics and causes of corporate bankruptcy: Age dependent explanations for business failure. *Review of Managerial Science*, *14*(3), 633–661. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11846-018-0303-2
- Kumar, B., Swee, M. L., & Suneja, M. (2019). The ecology of program director leadership: Power relationships and characteristics of effective program directors. *BMC Medical Education*, 19(1), 1-6. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-019-1869-3
- Kumar, R., Saha, R., Sekar, P. C., & Dahiya, R. (2019). Examining the role of external factors in influencing green behavior among young Indian consumers. *Young Consumers*, 20(4), 380-398. https://doi.org/10.1108/YC-12-2018-0921
- Kwok, S. I. (2020). Negotiating access to research on triad society: The importance of

- Chinese and triad cultural capital. *Qualitative Research*, 20(3), 307–323. https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794119862444
- Kwon, H., Ju-ho, K., Hong, M., & Eui-jin, P. (2020). Upcoming services innovation for the home energy management system in Korea. *Sustainability*, 12(18), 7261. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12187261
- Kyobe, M. (2008). The influence of strategy-making types on IT alignment in SMEs. *Journal of Systems and Information Technology*, 10(1), 22-38. https://doi.org/10.1108/13287260810876876
- Lahtinen, V., Dietrich, T., & Rundle-Thiele, S. (2020). Long live the marketing mix.

 Testing the effectiveness of the commercial marketing mix in a social marketing context. *Journal of Social Marketing*, 10(3), 357-375.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/JSOCM-10-2018-0122
- Langerud, D. H., & Jordan, P. J. (2020). Entitlement at work: Linking positive behaviors to employee entitlement. Journal of Management & Organization, 26(1), 75–94. https://doi.org/10.1017/jmo.2018.33
- Lanka, E., Lanka, S., Rostron, A., & Singh, P. (2021). Why we need qualitative research in management studies. *RAC Revista de Administração Contemporânea*, 25(2), 1–7. https://doi.org/10.1590/1982-7849rac2021200297.en
- Leask, C. F., Colledge, N., Laventure, R. M. E., McCann, D. A., & Skelton, D. A. (2019).

 Co-creating recommendations to redesign and promote strength and balance service provision. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 16(17). https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph16173169

- Lee, C., & Yu, H. (2020). Examining cross-industry collaboration in sharing economy based on social exchange and social network theories. *Advances in Management and Applied Economics*, 10(6), 29-41. https://doi.org/10.47260/amae/1062
- Lee, S., & Chung, G. H. (2020). Cultural Entrepreneurship: Between-organization cultural isomorphism and within-organization culture shaping. SAGE Open, 10(3), Article 215824402093954. https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244020939540
- Lee, S., Hae, Y. O., & Choi, J. (2021). Service design management and organizational innovation performance. *Sustainability*, *13*(1), 4. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13010004
- Lee, Y. G., Fitzgerald, M. A., & Bartkus, K. R. (2017). Adjustment strategy use in minority family businesses: Differences across gender. *Journal of Family and Economic Issues*, 38(1), 1-17. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10834-015-9478-8
- Leeson, W., Resnick, A., Alexander, D., & Rovers, J. (2019). Natural language processing (NLP) in qualitative public health research: A proof of concept study. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 18, Article 1609406919887021. https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406919887021
- Lei, Y., & Liao, X. (2019). A concurrent dual mode adaptive switching blind equalization system in impulse noise. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1345(4). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1345/4/042002
- Leiblein, M. J., Chen, J. S., & Posen, H. E. (2017). Resource allocation in strategic factor markets: A realistic real options approach to generating competitive advantage.

- Journal of Management, 43(8), 2588–2608. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206316683778
- Leroi-Werelds, S., Streukens, S., Yves, V. V., & Grönroos, C. (2017). Does communicating the customer's resource integrating role improve or diminish value proposition effectiveness? *Journal of Service Management*, 28(4), 618-639. https://doi.org/10.1108/JOSM-11-2015-0366
- Lesakova, D., & Rehak, R. (2020). Empirical exploration of customer management focus and its impact on business performance 1. *Ekonomicky Casopis*, 68(7), 714-736. https://doi.org/10.31577/ekoncas.2020.07.04
- Levitskaya, N. L. (2021). Financial resources as a factor of economic security of a municipality. *IOP Conference Series. Earth and Environmental Science*, 666(6), Article 062113. https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/666/6/062113
- Li, H., Liu, Y., Chee-Wee, T., & Hu, F. (2020). Comprehending customer satisfaction with hotels: Data analysis of consumer-generated reviews. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management*, 32(5), 1713-1735.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/IJCHM-06-2019-0581
- Li, M., Zhang, Y., Yuan, L., & Birkeland, Å. (2019). A critical analysis of education for sustainability in early childhood curriculum documents in China and Norway.
 ECNU Review of Education, 2(4), 441–457.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/2096531119893483

- Li, N. (2021). Stakeholder behaviours and grid-source coordinated planning mode under market circumstance. *IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science*, 634(1). https://dx.doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/634/1/012062
- Li, Q., Guarda, T., Lopes, I., & Rocha, Á. (2019). Regional technological innovation and green economic efficiency based on DEA model and fuzzy evaluation. *Journal of Intelligent & Fuzzy Systems*, 37(5), 6415–6425. https://doi.org/10.3233/JIFS-179220
- Li, R., Du, Y.-F., Tang, H.-J., Boadu, F., & Xue, M. (2019). MNEs' subsidiary HRM practices and firm innovative performance: A tacit knowledge approach.

 Sustainability, 11(5), 1388. https://doi.org/10.3390/su11051388
- Lian, J. K. M., & Ling, F. Y. Y. (2018). The influence of personal characteristics on quantity surveyors' job satisfaction. *Built Environment Project and Asset Management*, 8(2), 183-193. https://doi.org/10.1108/BEPAM-12-2017-0117
- Liang, Z., McGuinness, K. N., Crespo, A., & Zhong, W. (2018). Characterization of disulfide-linked peptides using tandem mass spectrometry coupled with automated data analysis software. Journal of the American Society for Mass Spectrometry, 29(5), 903-912. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13361-017-1855-0
- Lichtenthaler, U. (2019). An intelligence-based view of firm performance: Profiting from artificial intelligence. *Journal of Innovation Management*, 7(1), 7-20. http://doi.org/10.24840/2183-0606_007.001_0002

- Liddle, J. (2019). Craig Berry and Arianna Giovannini (Eds), developing England's north: The political economy of the northern powerhouse. *Local Economy*, *34*(2), 208–209. https://doi.org/10.1177/0269094219839036
- Lien, P., & Harvie, J. Y. (2018). Unpacking Chinese America: The political participation of Taiwanese Americans in the early twenty-first-century United States. *Journal of Asian American Studies*, 21(1), 31–63. https://doi.org/10.1353/jaas.2018.0002
- Li-Fan, W., Ing-Chung, H., Wei-Chang, H., & Pey-Lan, D. (2019). Aligning organizational culture and operations strategy to improve innovation outcomes:

 An integrated perspective in organizational management. *Journal of Organizational Change Management*, 32(2), 224-250.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/JOCM-03-2018-0073
- Lim, L. G., Tuli, K. R., & Grewal, R. (2020). Customer satisfaction and its impact on the future costs of selling. *Journal of Marketing*, 84(4), 23–44.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0022242920923307
- Lim, S., Wang, T. K., & Lee, S. (2017). Shedding new light on strategic human resource management: The impact of human resource management practices and human resources on the perception of federal agency mission accomplishment. *Public Personnel Management*, 46(2), 91-117.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0091026017704440
- Lindgren, H. E., Brink, Å., & Klinberg-Allvin, M. (2011). Fear causes tears perineal injuries in home birth settings. A Swedish interview study. *BMC Pregnancy and Childbirth*, 11(1), 1-8. https://doi.org/10.1186/1471-2393-11-6

- Lindstrom, L., Lind, J., Beno, C., Gee, K. A., & Hirano, K. (2020). Career and college readiness for Underserved Youth: Educator and youth perspectives. *Youth & Society*, *54*(2), 221-239. https://doi.org/10.1177/0044118X20977004
- Liozu, S. M. (2018). Designing salesforce compensation programs to improve pricing execution. *Journal of Revenue and Pricing Management*, 17(1), 11-19. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41272-017-0131-z
- Lisi, I. E. (2018). Determinants and performance effects of social performance measurement systems: JBE. *Journal of Business Ethics*, *152*(1), 225-251. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-016-3287-3
- Liu, C., Chang, A. Y., & Yen-Po, F. (2020). Network activities as critical sources of creating capability and competitive advantage: The mediating role of innovation capability and human capital. *Management Decision*, 58(3), 544-568.
 https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-08-2017-0733
- Liu, H., & Hsin-Feng, Y. (2020). Network resource meets organizational agility: Creating an idiosyncratic competitive advantage for SMEs. *Management Decision*, 58(1), 58-75. https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-10-2017-1061
- Liu, L., Yu, B., & Wu, W. (2019). The formation and effects of exploitative dynamic capabilities and explorative dynamic capabilities: An empirical study.

 Sustainability, 11(9). https://doi.org/10.3390/su11092581
- Liu, X., Vredenburg, H., & Daellenbach, U. (2019). The moderating effect of corporate reputation on inter-firm alliance impact on company performance. *European Business Review*, 31(4), 524-543. https://doi.org/10.1108/EBR-12-2017-0232

- Longoni, A., Pagell, M., Shevchenko, A., & Klassen, R. (2019). Human capital routines and sustainability trade-offs: The influence of conflicting schemas for operations and safety managers. *International Journal of Operations & Production*Management, 39(5), 690-713. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-05-2018-0247
- López-Cabarcos, M. Á., Göttling-Oliveira-Monteiro, S., & Vázquez-Rodríguez, P. (2015). Organizational capabilities and profitability: The mediating role of business strategy. *SAGE Open*, 5(4). https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244015616852
- Love, H. A., LeFebvre, L. E., & Pederson, J. R. (2021). Disclosure and nondisclosure of suicidality to romantic partners: Understanding the decision-making process.

 Journal of Social and Personal Relationships, 38(9), 2421-2441.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/02654075211008996
- Lu, X., Tang, F., Zhang, S., & Pan, Z. (2020). Social capital and sustainable innovation in small businesses: Investigating the role of absorptive capacity, marketing capability, and organizational learning. *Sustainability*, *12*(9), 3759.

 https://doi.org/10.3390/su12093759
- Lu, Y., Li, G., Luo, Z., Anwar, M., & Zhang, Y. (2021). Does intellectual capital spur sustainable competitive advantage and sustainable growth?: A study of Chinese and Pakistani firms. *SAGE Open 11(1)*, Article 2158244021996702.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244021996702
- Luamba, D. (2019). Strategies small business owners use to remain sustainable (Order No. 13806347). [Doctoral Dissertations, Walden University]. ProQuest Dissertations and Theses Global.

- Lum, B. W. (2017). Business strategies for small business survival (Order No. 10683851). Available from ProQuest Dissertations & Theses Global. (1973067070).
- Luo, B., & Chong, T. T.-L. (2019). Regional differences in self-employment in China. Small Business Economics, 53(3), 813–837. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11187-018-0063-z
- Luo, T., & Yu, J. (2019). Friends along supply chain and relationship-specific investments. Review of Quantitative Finance and Accounting, 53(3), 895-931. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11156-018-0770-1
- Luo, X., & Homburg, C. (2007). Neglected outcomes of customer aatisfaction. *Journal of Marketing*, 71(2), 133–149. https://doi.org/10.1509/jmkg.71.2.133
- Luo, X., Homburg, C., & Wieseke, J. (2018). Customer satisfaction, analyst stock recommendations, and firm value. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 47(6), 1041–1058. https://doi.org/10.1509/jmkr.47.6.1041
- Lv, S., He, Z., Quevedo, A. V., Mirabile, Y. Z., & Vining, G. G. (2019). Process optimization using sequential design of experiment: A case study. *Quality Engineering*, 31(3), 473–483. https://doi.org/10.1080/08982112.2018.1539232
- Lysek, M., Palmhager, J., & Danilovic, M. (2019). Re-envisioning innovation: From vision to strategy to plan and back again. *International Journal of Action**Research, 15(1), 5-24. https://doi.org/10.3224/ijar.v15i1.02

- Lyu, G., Chen, L., & Huo, B. (2019). Logistics resources, capabilities, and operational performance: A contingency and configuration approach. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 119(2), 230-250. https://doi.org/10.1108/IMDS-01-2018-0024
- Madden, A., Bailey, C., Alfes, K., & Fletcher, L. (2018). Using narrative evidence synthesis in HRM research: An overview of the method, its application, and the lessons learned. *Human Resource Management*, *57*(2), 641–657.

 https://doi.org/10.1002/hrm.21858
- Maestrini, V., Luzzini, D., Caniato, F., Maccarrone, P., & Ronchi, S. (2018). The impact of supplier performance measurement systems on supplier performance: A dyadic lifecycle perspective. *International Journal of Operations & Production*Management, 38(11), 2040-2061. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-10-2016-0589
- Mahajan, P., & Golahit, S. (2020). Service marketing mix as input and output of higher and technical education: A measurement model based on students' perceived experience. *Journal of Applied Research in Higher Education*, 12(2), 151-193. https://doi.org/10.1108/JARHE-01-2019-0022
- Maher, C., Hadfield, M., Hutchings, M., & de, E. A. (2018). Ensuring rigor in qualitative data analysis. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, *17*(1). https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406918786362
- Mahlamäki, K., & Nieminen, M. (2020). Analysis of manual data collection in maintenance context. *Journal of Quality in Maintenance Engineering*, 26(1), 104-119. https://doi.org/10.1108/JQME-12-2017-0091

- Mahmoud, A. M., Hinson, R. E., & Anim, P. A. (2018). Service innovation and customer satisfaction: The role of customer value creation. *European Journal of Innovation Management*, 21(3), 402-422. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJIM-09-2017-0117
- Majukwa, D., Fan, S. K., & Dwyer, R. J. (2020). Impact of sustainability strategies on small- and medium-sized enterprises in Zimbabwe. World Journal of Entrepreneurship, Management and Sustainable Development, 16(2), 149-163. https://doi.org/10.1108/WJEMSD-10-2019-0079
- Maletič, M., Maletič, D., Dahlgaard, J., Dahlgaard-Park, S., & Gomišcek, B. (2015). Do corporate sustainability practices enhance organizational economic performance?
 International Journal of Quality and Service Sciences, 7(2), 184-200.
 https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQSS-02-2015-0025
- Manca, C., Grijalvo, M., Palacios, M., & Kaulio, M. (2018). Collaborative workplaces for innovation in service companies: Barriers and enablers for supporting new ways of working. *Service Business*, 12(3), 525-550. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11628-017-0359-0
- Marcinkowski, B., & Gawin, B. (2019). A study on the adaptive approach to technology-driven enhancement of multi-scenario business processes. *Information*Technology & People, 32(1), 118-146. https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-03-2018-0142
- Marino, L. (2020). Commentary: A Belmont report for animals? Rights or welfare?:

 CQ. Cambridge Quarterly of Healthcare Ethics, 29(1), 67-70.

 https://doi.org/10.1017/S0963180119000793

- Marques, P., Morgan, K., & Richardson, R. (2018). Social innovation in question: The theoretical and practical implications of a contested concept. *Environment and Planning C: Politics and Space*, *36*(3), 496–512.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/2399654417717986
- Martinez, V., Zhao, M., Blujdea, C., Han, X., Neely, A., & Albores, P. (2019).
 Blockchain-driven customer order management. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 39(6), 993-1022.
 https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-01-2019-0100
- Martin-Rios, C., Parga-Dans, E., & Pasamar, S. (2019). Innovation strategies and complementarity between innovation activities: The case of commercial archaeological firms. *Service Business*, *13*(4), 695-713. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11628-019-00401-9
- Masoomzadeh, A., Zakaria, N. W. W., Masrom, M., Streimikiene, D., & Tavakoli, R. (2019). Organizational innovation factors, capabilities and organizational performance in automotive industry. *Montenegrin Journal of Economics*, *15*(3), 83-100. https://doi.org/10.14254/1800-5845/2019.15-3.6
- Matlock, J. E. (2017). *Improving the conversation of informed consent in the emergency department* (Order No. 10607340). Available from ProQuest Dissertations & Theses Global. (1970167683).
- McClelland, S. (1994). Gaining competitive advantage through strategic management development (SMD). *The Journal of Management Development*, 13(5), 4. https://doi.org/10.1108/02621719410058338

- McCorkle, D., & Alexander, J. F. (2019). Using a digital personal learning network assignment to teach social curation and lifelong learning in marketing. *Journal of Advertising Education*, 23(2), 108–120. https://doi.org/10.1177/1098048219871960
- McMillan, G. (2019). Socialist workhorse to capitalist powerhouse: Developing a modern Chinese commercial fleet in the pre-reform era. *Modern China*, 45(3), 316–349. https://doi.org/10.1177/0097700418797603
- Meng, X., Ma, Q., & Li, M. (2020). The impact of customer resources on customer value in co-creation: The multiple mediating effects. *Journal of Contemporary*Marketing Science, 3(1), 33-56. https://doi.org/10.1108/JCMARS-08-2019-0032
- Mengoni, S. E., Irvine, K., Thakur, D., Barton, G., Dautenhahn, K., Guldberg, K., Robins, B., Wellsted, D., & Sharma, S. (2017). Feasibility study of a randomized controlled trial to investigate the effectiveness of using a humanoid robot to improve the social skills of children with autism spectrum disorder (kaspar RCT):

 A study protocol. *BMJ Open*, 7(6). https://doi.org/10.1136/bmjopen-2017-017376
- Miguel, C., Castro, L., José Paulo Marques, d. S., Serrão, C., & Duarte, I. (2021). Impact of COVID-19 on medicine lecturers' mental health and emergency remote teaching challenges. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 18(13), 6792. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph18136792
- Miller, L., & Andrew, F. M. (2020). Innovative work behavior through high-quality leadership. *International Journal of Innovation Science*, 12(2), 219-236. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJIS-04-2019-0042

- Minchin, T. J. (2020). A world class industry: Honda in Alabama and the rise of the foreign-owned auto sector. *Journal of Contemporary History*. *56*(3), 789–816. https://doi.org/10.1177/0022009420925883
- Mink, A., Diehl, J. C., & Kandachar, P. (2018). Comprehensive user insight to improve technologies for development. *International Development Planning Review*, 40(3), 299-328. https://doi.org/10.3828/idpr.2018.13
- Minna, S., Juhani, U., Tero, R., Mina, N., & Hannu, R. (2020). Preceding operational capabilities as antecedents for productivity and innovation performance.

 Zeitschrift Für Betriebswirtschaft, 90(4), 537-561.

 https://doi.org/10.1007/s11573-019-00963-0
- Mirarab, A., Mirtaheri, S. L., & Asghari, S. A. (2019). Value creation with big data analytics for enterprises: A survey. *Telkomnika*, *17*(6), 2790-2802. https://doi.org/10.12928/TELKOMNIKA.v17i6.11962
- Mishra, P. (2017). Let's reduce the human footprint before building human capabilities. *Industrial and Organizational Psychology, 10*(3), 414-420.

 https://doi.org/10.1017/iop.2017.39
- Mitrega, M., Forkmann, S., Zaefarian, G., & Henneberg, S. C. (2017). Networking capability in supplier relationships and its impact on product innovation and firm performance. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 37(5), 577-606. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOPM-11-2014-0517

- Mohr, A., & Batsakis, G. (2014). Intangible assets, international experience and the internationalization speed of retailers. *International Marketing Review*, 31(6), 601-620. https://doi.org/10.1108/IMR-09-2013-0186
- Mona, J. P., & Asarian, M. (2019). Strategic orientations, knowledge management (KM) and business performance: An exploratory study in SMEs using clustering analysis. *Kybernetes*, 48(9), 1942-1964. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-05-2018-0277
- Mona, J. P., Zahra, K. Z., & Nima, A. Z. (2018). Designing an integrated methodology for knowledge management strategic planning: Very informal newsletter on library automation. *VINE Journal of Information and Knowledge Management Systems*, 48(3), 373-387. https://doi.org/10.1108/VJIKMS-10-2017-0071
- Morales, S. N., Martínez, L. R., Gómez, J. A. H., López, R. R., & Torres-Argüelles, V. (2019). Predictors of organizational resilience by factorial analysis. *International Journal of Engineering Business Management*, 11, Article 184797901983704.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/1847979019837046
- Mortensen, N. H., Bertram, C. A., & Lundgaard, R. (2019). Achieving long-term modularization benefits: A small- and medium-sized enterprise study. *Concurrent Engineering*, 27(1), 14–27. https://doi.org/10.1177/1063293X18803145
- Mozzato, A. R., Grzybovski, D., & Teixeira, A. N. (2016). Qualitative analysis in organizational studies: The advantage in the use of NVIVO software®. *Reach Magazine (Online)*, 23(4), 578-587. https://doi.org/alcance.v23n4.p578-587
- Muafi, R., & Kusumawati, R. A. (2020). Strategic consensus on organizational performance: A contingency approach of organizational culture and isomorphic

- pressure. *Journal of Industrial Engineering and Management, 13*(2), 352-370. https://doi.org/10.3926/jiem.2480
- Muhammad, S. K., Sentosa, I., & Salman, F. (2018). Exploring the role of transformational leadership in human capital effectiveness: Empirical evidence from the Malaysian healthcare sector. World Journal of Entrepreneurship,

 Management and Sustainable Development, 14(2), 191-204.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/WJEMSD-10-2017-0075
- Muharam, H., Resi, J. A., & Robiyanto, R. (2019). Islamic stock market and sukuk market development, economic growth, and trade openness (the case of Indonesia and Malaysia). *Verslas : Teorija Ir Praktika*, 20(1), 196-207.

 https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2019.19
- Mukumbang, F. C., Marchal, B., Van Belle, S., & van Wyk, B. (2020). Using the realist interview approach to maintain theoretical awareness in realist studies.

 Qualitative Research*, 20(4), 485–515.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794119881985
- Muneeb, D., Kok, W. K., Ennew, C., & Avvari, M. (2019). Building an integrated conceptual model of competitive learning capability: A strategic management perspective. *Asia Pacific Journal of Business Administration*, 11(3), 267-287. https://doi.org/10.1108/APJBA-02-2019-0042
- Musibau, H. O., Agboola, H. Y., & Kafilah, L. G. (2019). Endogenous specification of foreign capital inflows, human capital development and economic growth: A

- study of pool mean group. *International Journal of Social Economics*, 46(3), 454-472. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJSE-04-2018-0168
- Mutlu, Ş. (2019). Din kültürü ve ahlak bilgisi öğretmenlerinin branş dersliği uygulamasına ilişkin görüşleri. *Cumhuriyet Ilahiyat Dergisi*, *23*(3), 1209-1234. https://doi.org/10.18505/cuid.597911
- Nadeem, A., Abedin, B., Cerpa, N., & Chew, E. (2018). Editorial: Digital transformation & digital business strategy in electronic commerce the role of organizational capabilities. *Journal of Theoretical and Applied Electronic Commerce**Research, 13(2), I-VIII. https://doi.org/10.4067/S0718-18762018000200101
- Naqvi, M., Li, S., Jiang, Y., & Muhammad Hasnain, A. N. (2020). The rise of social networking sites: An empirical investigation applying demographic differences and the technology acceptance model. *Asia Pacific Journal of Marketing and Logistics*, 32(1), 232-252. https://doi.org/10.1108/APJML-01-2019-0029
- Nastase, M., Bibu, N., Munteanu, A., Mircioi, I., & Florescu, M. S. (2019). The specific elements of strategic human resources management for competitive business development. *Industria Textila*, 70(6), 579-586.

 https://doi.org/10.35530/IT.070.06.1749
- Nasution, M. I., Prayogi, M. A., Siregar, L. H., & Suryani, Y. (2020). Environment of internet marketing and experiential marketing in Indonesia context: Small and medium enterprises (SMEs) purchase intentions. *IOP Conference Series. Earth and Environmental Science*, 469(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/469/1/012010

- Natalicchio, A., Petruzzelli, A. M., Cardinali, S., & Savino, T. (2018). Open innovation and the human resource dimension: An investigation into the Italian manufacturing sector. *Management Decision*, *56*(6), 1271-1284. https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-03-2017-0268
- Natow, R. S. (2020). The use of triangulation in qualitative studies employing elite interviews. *Qualitative Research*, 20(2), 160–173. https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794119830077
- Naz, M. S., Tehrani, F. R., & Ozgoli, G. (2019). Polycystic ovary syndrome in adolescents: A qualitative study. *Psychology Research and Behavior Management*, 12, 715 - 723. https://doi.org/10.2147/PRBM.S207727
- Ncoyini, S. S., & Cilliers, L. (2020). Factors that influence knowledge management systems to improve knowledge transfer in local government: A case study of buffalo city metropolitan municipality, Eastern Cape, South Africa. *SA Journal of Human Resource Management*, 18(1), 1-11.

 https://doi.org/10.4102/sajhrm.v18i0.1147
- Nelliot, A., Dinglas, V. D., Jacqueline O'Toole, J., Patel, Y., Mendez-Tellez, P., Mohammed, N., & Needham, D. M. (2019). Acute respiratory failure survivors' physical, cognitive, and mental health outcomes: Quantitative measures versus semistructured interviews. *Annals of the American Thoracic Society*, *16*(6), 731-737. https://doi./10.1513/AnnalsATS.201812-851OC

- Nesiba, J., & Cuhlova, R. (2021). Analysis of legislative acts in water management.

 Global Journal of Environmental Science and Management, 7(4), 587-598.

 https://doi.org/10.22034/gjesm.2021.04.07
- Nguyen, D. T., Nguyen, D. P., Quan, T. H. M., & Nguyen Thi, M. T. (2018). Marketers' human capital resources and job performance. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, *36*(1), 124-137. https://doi.org/10.1108/MIP-05-2017-0093
- Nicholas, R. P. (2019). Competition, market commonality, and resource similarity:

 Precursors to HPWS. *Personnel Review*, 48(7), 1830-1847.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/PR-09-2018-0356
- Nigar, N. (2020). Hermeneutic phenomenological narrative enquiry: A qualitative study design. *Theory and Practice in Language Studies*, *10*(1), 10-18. https://doi.org/10.17507/tpls.1001.02
- Nizaeva, M., & Coskun, A. (2019). Investigating the relationship between financial constraint and growth of SMEs in South Eastern Europe. *SAGE Open.* 9(3), 2-9. https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244019876269
- Nizam, H. (2017). Survival strategies for small independent full-service restaurants.

 (Order No. 10634019). [Doctoral Dissertations, Walden University]. ProQuest Dissertations and Theses Global.
- Njoroge, M., Anderson, W., & Mbura, O. (2019). Innovation strategy and economic sustainability in the hospitality industry. *The Bottom Line*, *32*(4), 253-268. https://doi.org/10.1108/BL-03-2019-0080

- Nkholedzeni, S. N. (2020). The role of archives in documenting African national congress women's league records that impacted the development of their records. *Global Knowledge, Memory and Communication*, 70(1), 44-59. https://doi.org/10.1108/GKMC-09-2019-0107
- Nordgren, L. (2008). The performativity of the service management discourse: "value creating customers" in health care. *Journal of Health Organization and Management*, 22(5), 510-528. https://doi.org/10.1108/14777260810898723
- Norin, L., Iwarsson, S., Haak, M., & Slaug, B. (2019). The housing enabler instrument:

 Assessing threats to reliability and validity. *British Journal of Occupational*Therapy, 82(1), 48–59. https://doi.org/10.1177/0308022618782329
- Nur Fadiah, M. Z., & Sazali, A. W. (2019). Organizational sustainability: A redefinition?

 Journal of Strategy and Management, 12(3), 397-408.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/JSMA-08-2018-0077
- Nurjaman, R., Rahayu, A., & Wibowo, L. A. (2021). The relationship between strategic agility and resource base view of the firm performance in manufacturing industry:

 The research framework. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1764(1).

 https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1764/1/012148
- Nyseth, T., Ringholm, T., & Agger, A. (2019). Innovative forms of citizen participation at the fringe of the formal planning system. *Urban Planning*, *4*(1), 7-18. https://doi.org/10.17645/up.v4i1.1680

- Ocak, M., & Fındık, D. (2019). The impact of intangible assets and sub-components of intangible assets on sustainable growth and firm value: Evidence from Turkish listed firms. *Sustainability*, *11*(19), 5359. https://doi.org/10.3390/su11195359
- Oczkowski, S. J. W., Ball, I., Saleh, C., Kalles, G., Chkaroubo, A., Kekewich, M., & Frolic, A. (2017). The provision of medical assistance in dying: Protocol for a scoping review. *BMJ Open*, 7(8). https://doi.org/10.1136/bmjopen-2017-017888
- Ofem, B., Arya, B., Ferrier, W. J., & Borgatti, S. P. (2020). Entrepreneurial orientation, collaborative engagement, and performance: Evidence from rural economic development organizations. *Economic Development Quarterly*, *34*(3), 269–282. https://doi.org/10.1177/0891242420926576
- Omonov, Z. K., & Veretennikova, A. Y. (2016). Quantitative scaling of social innovations. *Montenegrin Journal of Economics*, 12(4), 77-86. https://doi.org/10.14254/1800-5845/2016.12-4.7
- Omotayo, T. S., Boateng, P., Osobajo, O., Oke, A., & Obi, L. I. (2020). Systems thinking and CMM for continuous improvement in the construction industry. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, 69(2), 271-296. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-11-2018-0417
- Oprean-Stan, C., Sebastian, S., & Pele, A. (2018). The national intangible resources and their importance in the current knowledge-based economy. *Management of Sustainable Development*, 10(2), 45-49. https://doi.org/10.2478/msd-2019-0007

- Orr, S. (2019). Daring to tap external strategic resources: Competitive advantage in global industries. *The Journal of Business Strategy*, 40(3), 25-35. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBS-03-2018-0032
- Ortlieb, R., & Sieben, B. (2019). Balls, barbecues and boxing: Contesting gender regimes at organizational social events. *Organization Studies*, 40(1), 115–134. https://doi.org/10.1177/0170840617736941
- O'Shannassy, T. (2008). Sustainable competitive advantage or temporary competitive advantage: Improving understanding of an important strategy construct. *Journal of Strategy and Management*, 1(2), 168-180.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/17554250810926357
- Oyner, O., & Korelina, A. (2016). The influence of customer engagement in value cocreation on customer satisfaction: Searching for new forms of co-creation in the Russian hotel industry. *Worldwide Hospitality and Tourism Themes*, 8(3), 327-345. https://doi.org/10.1108/WHATT-02-2016-0005
- Pai-Chin, H., Chia-ling, Y., & Chen, S. (2019). Development of the organizational resources towards innovation strategy and innovation value: Empirical study.

 Revista De Cercetare Si Interventie Sociala, 64, 108-119.

 https://doi.org/10.33788/rcis.64.9
- Palmer, T., & Baker, D. (2021). Classical soloists' life histories and the music conservatoire. *International Journal of Music Education*, 39(2), 167-186. https://doi.org/10.1177/0255761421991154

- Pasquini, T. L. S., Goff, S. L., & Whitehill, J. M. (2021). Navigating the U.S. health insurance landscape for children with rare diseases: A qualitative study of parents' experiences. *Orphanet Journal of Rare Diseases*, 16, 1-14. https://doi.org/10.1186/s13023-021-01943-w
- Pathiranage, Y. L., Jayatilake, L. V. K., & Abeysekera, R. (2020). Case study research design for exploration of organizational culture towards corporate performance. Review of International Comparative Management / Revista de Management Comparat International, 21(3), 361–372.

 https://doi.org/10.24818/RMCI.2020.3.361
- Patricia Ordóñez, d. P. (2006). Transnational corporations and strategic challenges: An analysis of knowledge flows and competitive advantage. *The Learning Organization*, 13(6), 544-559. https://doi.org/10.1108/09696470610705433
- Pattinson, S. (2020). The Hextol Foundation: Building a sustainable social enterprise business model. *The International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation*, 21(1), 72–80. https://doi.org/10.1177/1465750319879023
- Pedwell, C. (2020). Affect theory's alternative genealogies Review symposium on leys's the ascent of affect. *History of the Human Sciences*, *33*(2), 134–142. https://doi.org/10.1177/0952695119888990
- Perkins, D., Mathur, G., & Jugdev, K. (2020). Project management resources and outcomes: A confirmatory factor analysis. *International Journal of Managing*Projects in Business, 13(3), 600-615. http://doi.org/10.1108/IJMPB-07-2019-0170
- Phillippi, J., & Lauderdale, J. (2018). A guide to field notes for qualitative research:

- Context and conversation. *Qualitative health research*, 28(3), 381–388. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F1049732317697102
- Piezunka, H., Lee, W., Haynes, R., & Bothner, M. S. (2018). The Matthew effect as an unjust competitive advantage: Implications for competition near status boundaries. *Journal of Management Inquiry*, 27(4), 378–381.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1056492617737712
- Pigozne, T., Luka, I., & Surikova, S. (2019). Promoting youth entrepreneurship and employability through non-formal and informal learning: The Latvia case. *CEPS Journal: Center for Educational Policy Studies Journal*, *9*(4), 129-150. https://doi.org/10.26529/cepsj.303
- Pjesivac, I., Geidner, N., & Cameron, J. (2018). Social credibility online: The role of online comments in assessing news article credibility. *Newspaper Research Journal*, 39(1), 18–31. https://doi.org/10.1177/0739532918761065
- Podra, O., Litvin, N., Zhyvko, Z., Kopytko, M., & Kukharska, L. (2020). Innovative development and human capital as determinants of knowledge economy. *Verslas:*Teorija Ir Praktika, 21(1), 252-260. https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2020.11305
- Popkova, E. (2021). The social management of human capital: Basic principles and methodological approaches. *The International Journal of Sociology and Social Policy*, 41(1), 24-36. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJSSP-03-2020-0062
- Postavaru, N., Draghici, G., Filip, C., Mohammed, A., & Mohammed, S. M. (2019).

 Business management strategies for business development. Organization of the territory and planning of construction works. "Ovidius" University Annals

- Constantza Series Civil Engineering, 21(21), 45-50. https://doi.org/10.2478/ouacsce-2019-0005
- Prater, J., Kirytopoulos, K., & Ma, T. (2017). Optimism bias within the project management context. *International Journal of Managing Projects in Business*, 10(2), 370–385. https://doi.org/10.1108/ijmpb-07-2016-0063
- Priaulx, N., & Weinel, M. (2018). Connective knowledge: What we need to know T2 other fields to 'envision' cross-disciplinary collaboration. *European Journal of Futures Research*, 6(1), 1-18. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40309-018-0150-z
- Purchase, S., & Volery, T. (2020). Marketing innovation: A systematic review. *Journal of Marketing Management*, *36*(9/10), 763–793.

 https://doi.org/10.1080/0267257X.2020.1774631
- Purtik, H., & Arenas, D. (2019). Embedding social innovation: Shaping societal norms and behaviors throughout the innovation process. *Business & Society*, 58(5), 963–1002. https://doi.org/10.1177/0007650317726523
- Puzio, K., Colby, G. T., & Algeo-Nichols, D. (2020). Differentiated literacy instruction:

 Boondoggle or best practice? *Review of Educational Research*, 90(4), 459–498.

 https://doi.org/10.3102/0034654320933536
- Quan Minh, Q. B., & Ngo Thi, H. T. (2020). Application of an intangible asset valuation model using panel data for listed enterprises in Vietnam. *Investment Management & Financial Innovations*, 17(1), 304-316.

https://doi.org/10.21511/imfi.17(1).2020.26

- Quaye, D., & Mensah, I. (2019). Marketing innovation and sustainable competitive advantage of manufacturing SMEs in Ghana. *Management Decision*, 57(7), 1535-1553. https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-08-2017-0784
- Rabiei, P., & Arias-Aranda, D. (2021). Design and development of a genetic algorithm based on fuzzy inference systems for personnel assignment problem. *Working Papers on Operations Management, 12*(1), 1-27. https://doi.org/10.4995/wpom.14699
- Raffing, R., Thor, B. J., & Tonnesen, H. (2017). Self-reported needs for improving the supervision competence of PhD supervisors from the medical sciences in Denmark. *BMC Medical Education*, *17*(1), 2-9. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-017-1023-z
- Rafi, A., & Saeed, T. (2019). Salespersons as boundary spanners: Moderating role of salespersons' emotional intelligence in the pharmaceutical industry. *Paradigms*, 13(1), 32-39. https://doi.org/10.24312/1900097130106
- Rahman, M. (2020). Dynamic marketing productivity and firm intangible value: Insights from airlines industry. *Journal of Marketing Theory & Practice*, 28 (3), 342–55. https://doi.org/10.1080/10696679.2020.1766360
- Rahman, M. Z., Ullah, F., & Thompson, P. (2018). Challenges and issues facing ethnic minority small business owners: The Scottish experience. *The International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Innovation*, *19*(3), 177–193.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1465750317753932

- Raimundo, J. R., Frazão, D. F., Domingues, J. L., Quintela-Sabarís, C., Dentinho, T. P., Anjos, O., & Delgado, F. (2018). Neglected Mediterranean plant species are valuable resources: The example of Cistus ladanifer. *Planta*, 248(6), 1351-1364. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00425-018-2997-4
- Rantala, T., Ukko, J., Saunila, M., Puolakoski, H., & Rantanen, H. (2019). Creating sustainable customer value through digitalis. *World Journal of Entrepreneurship, Management and Sustainable Development, 15*(4), 325-340.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/WJEMSD-08-2018-0077
- Ratten, V. (2019). Social innovation in sport: The creation of Santa Cruz as a world surfing reserve. *International Journal of Innovation Science*, 11(1), 20-30. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJIS-12-2017-0135
- Ray, A., & Mondal, S. (2017). Study of collaborative PRM business model for sustainability. *Benchmarking*, 24(7), 1891-1911. https://doi.org/10.1108/BIJ-04-2016-0048
- Raynard, M. (2017). Understanding academic E-books through the diffusion of innovations theory as a basis for developing effective marketing and educational strategies. *The Journal of Academic Librarianship*, 43(1), 82–86.

 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.acalib.2016.08.011
- Razzaq, S., Shujahat, M., Hussain, S., Nawaz, F., Wang, M., Murad, A., & Tehseen, S. (2019). Knowledge management, organizational commitment and knowledgeworker performance: The neglected role of knowledge management in the public

- sector. Business Process Management Journal, 25(5), 923-947. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-03-2018-0079
- Reczey, I., Houjeir, R., & AlSakka, M. (2017). Advantages of implementing quality management system in higher education. *Researchers World*, 8(2), 74-89. https://doi.org/10.18843/rwjasc/v8i2/08
- Rehman, S., Mohamed, R., & Ayoup, H. (2019). The mediating role of organizational capabilities between organizational performance and its determinants. *Journal of Global Entrepreneurship Research*, 9(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s40497-019-0155-5
- Reibenspiess, V., Drechsler, K., Eckhardt, A., & Wagner, H. (2020). Tapping into the wealth of employees' ideas: Design principles for a digital intrapreneurship platform. *Information & Management*, 38(1), 4-20.

 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.im.2020.103287
- Reñosa, M. D. C., Mwamba, C., Meghani, A., West, N. S., Hariyani, S., Ddaaki, W., & McMahon, S. (2021). Selfie consents, remote rapport, and zoom debriefings:

 Collecting qualitative data amid a pandemic in four resource-constrained settings. *BMJ Global Health*, 6(1). https://doi.org/10.1136/bmjgh-2020-004193
- Richardson, T., Andrew, M. J., & Draper, H. (2017). A systematic review of Ebola treatment trials to assess the extent to which they adhere to ethical guidelines. *PLoS One*, *12*(1), 96-100. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0168975
- Richter, S., Vallianatos, H., Green, J., & Obuekwe, C. (2020). Intersection of migration and access to health care: Experiences and perceptions of female economic

- migrants in Canada. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 17(10), 3682. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17103682
- Robbins, P., & O'Gorman, C. (2016). Innovation processes: Do they help or hinder new product development outcomes in Irish SMEs? *Irish Journal of Management*, 35(1), 88-103. https://doi.org/10.1515/ijm-2016-0006
- Robert, C. W. (2018). Visionary customers: Source of long-term competitive advantage. Strategy & Leadership, 46(3), 29-36. https://doi.org/10.1108/SL-02-2018-0014
- Roberts, K., Gordon, S., Sherr, L., Stewart, J., Skeen, S., Macedo, A., & Tomlinson, M. (2020). 'When you are a data collector you must expect anything' barriers, boundaries and breakthroughs: Insights from the South African data-collection experience. *Global Health Promotion*, 27(2), 54-62. https://doi.org/10.1177/1757975918811093
- Rose, J., & Johnson, C. W. (2020). Contextualizing reliability and validity in qualitative research: Toward more rigorous and trustworthy qualitative social science in leisure research. *Journal of Leisure Research*, *51*(4), 432-451. https://doi.org/10.1080/00222216.2020.1722042
- Rostami, P., Ashcroft, D. M., & Tully, M. P. (2018). A formative evaluation of the implementation of a medication safety data collection tool in English healthcare settings: A qualitative interview study using normalization process theory. *PLoS One*, *13*(2). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0192224
- Routhier, F., W, B. M., Demers, L., Mahmood, A., Chaudhury, H., Martin Ginis, K. A., & Miller, W. C. (2019). Mobility and participation of people with disabilities

- using mobility assistive technologies: Protocol for a mixed-methods study. *JMIR Research Protocols*, 8(4). https://dx.doi.org/10.2196/12089
- Rowland, C. A., Hall, R. D., & Altarawneh, I. (2017). Training and development.

 EuroMed Journal of Business, 12(1), 36-51. https://doi.org/10.1108/EMJB-01-2016-0001
- Rua, O., França, A., & Rubén, F. O. (2018). Key drivers of SMEs export performance:

 The mediating effect of competitive advantage. *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 22(2), 257-279. https://doi.org/10.1108/JKM-07-2017-0267
- Ruel, M., Ramirez, G. M., & Arbour, C. (2020). Transition from hospital to home after elective colorectal surgery performed in an enhanced recovery program: An integrative review. *Nursing Open*, 8(4), 1550-1570.
 https://doi.org/10.1002/nop2.730
- Ruel, S., Shaaban, S., & Ducros, M. (2019). Supply chain vulnerability: Contributions from an edifying case study. *Journal of Enterprise Information Management*, 32(2), 214-232. https://doi.org/10.1108/JEIM-05-2018-0086
- Runfola, A., Perna, A., Baraldi, E., & Gregori, G. L. (2017). The use of qualitative case studies in top business and management journals: A quantitative analysis of recent patterns. *European Management Journal*, *35*(1), 116–127.

 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.emj.2016.04.001
- Sachpazidu-Wojcicka, K. (2021). Small firm's cooperation for innovation with other firms and research units whether the partner matters for product, process,

- marketing and organizational innovations? *European Research Studies Journal*, 24(1), 69–75. https://doi.org/10.35808/ersj/2029
- Saddour, I. (2020). Methodological considerations when piloting an interview protocol:

 The example of Syrian asylum seekers in France. *Journal of French Language Studies*, 30(2), 211-238. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0959269520000101
- Sage, D., Vitry, C., & Dainty, A. (2020). Exploring the organizational proliferation of new technologies: An affective actor-network theory. *Organization Studies*, 41(3), 345–363. https://doi.org/10.1177/0170840618815524
- Saha, N., Sáha, T., Gregar, A., & Sáha, P. (2020). Organizational agility and organizational learning: Do they accelerate organizational innovation and competency? *European Conference on Innovation and Entrepreneurship*. 578-586. https://dx.org/10.34190/EIE.20.030
- Salehi, M., Mahdavi, N., Saeed Zarif, A. D., & Tarighi, H. (2019). Association between the availability of financial resources and working capital management with stock surplus returns in Iran. *International Journal of Emerging Markets*, *14*(2), 343-361. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJoEM-11-2017-0439
- Salles-Loustau, G., Le, T., Najafizadeh, L., Zonouz, S., & Javanmard, M. (2018).
 Cytocoded passwords: BioMEMS based barcoding of biological samples for user authentication in microfluidic diagnostic devices. *Biomedical Micro Devices*,
 20(3), 1-9. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10544-018-0306-4

- Sánchez-Medina, P. S. (2020). Organizational capability for change and performance in artisanal businesses in Mexico. *Journal of Organizational Change Management*, 33(2), 415-431. https://doi.org/10.1108/JOCM-06-2018-0157
- Santana-Sarmiento, F., & Velázquez-Medina, S. (2021). Development of a territorial planning model of wind and photovoltaic energy plants for self-consumption as a low carbon strategy. *Complexity*, 2021. https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/6617745
- Sanz, A. S. (2019). Bohm's approach to quantum mechanics: Alternative theory or practical picture? *Frontiers of Physics*, *14*(1), 1-15. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11467-018-0853-4
- Saqib, Y. M., Cao, Y., Yasir, H. M., Ghulam, M. K., Mudassir, H. M., & Ramayah, T. (2020). Pathways towards sustainability in organizations: Empirical evidence on the role of green human resource management practices and green intellectual capital. *Sustainability*, 12(8), 3228. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12083228
- Saravia-Matus, S., Saravia Matus, J., Sotomayor, O., & Rodriguez, A. (2018). Investment strategies in the Latin American agri-business sub-sectors of agricultural commodities, biofuels and meat chains. *Journal of Agribusiness in Developing and Emerging Economies*, 8(2), 320–338. https://doi.org/10.1108/JADEE-09-2014-0036
- Schatz, E. J. (2009). Reframing vulnerability: Mozambican refugees' access to state-funded pensions in rural South Africa. *Journal of Cross-Cultural Gerontology*, 24(3), 241-58. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10823-008-9089-z

- Schiermer, B. (2019). Weber's alternative theory of action: Rationalism and object-oriented action in max Weber's work. *Archives Européennes De Sociologie*, 60(2), 239-281. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0003975619000109
- Schneider, S., & Clauß, T. (2020). Business models for sustainability: Choices and consequences. *Organization & Environment*, *33*(3), 384–407. https://doi.org/10.1177/1086026619854217
- Schonberger, M., & Vasiljeva, T. (2019). Determinants and impacts of computer system validation on firm-level performance. *Journal of Business Management*, 17(1), 22–56. https://doi.org/10.32025/RIS18013
- Schultz-Jones, B. (2009). Examining information behavior through social networks: An interdisciplinary review. *Journal of Documentation*, 65(4), 592-631. https://doi.org/10.1108/00220410910970276
- Schwarz, G. M., Bouckenooghe, D., & Vakola, M. (2021). Organizational change failure: Framing the process of failing. *Human Relations*, 74(2), 159–179. https://doi.org/10.1177/0018726720942297
- Schwarzmüller, T., Brosi, P., Spörrle, M., & Welpe, I. M. (2017). It's the base: Why displaying anger instead of sadness might increase leaders' perceived power but worsen their leadership outcomes. *Journal of Business and Psychology, 32*(6), 691-709. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10869-016-9467-4
- Scribner, E. D., & Harris, S. E. (2020). The mineralogy concept inventory: A statistically validated assessment to measure learning gains in undergraduate mineralogy

- courses. *Journal of Geoscience Education*, *68*(3), 186-198. https://doi.org/10.1080/10899995.2019.1662929
- Sedunova, R., & Golichenko, O. (2020). The study of relationship between the processes of creating technological and marketing innovations on the example of Russia.

 Reading: *Academic Conferences International Limited*. 604-613.

 https://doi.org/10.34190/EIE.20.173
- Seifzadeh, P. (2017). Corporate controls, geographic dispersion, and their effect on corporate financial performance in related diversified corporations. *Journal of Strategy and Management*, 10(1), 102–117. https://doi.org/10.1108/jsma-10-2015-0079
- Selyutina, L., Pesotskaya, E., & Hakimov, A. (2021). Competitive partnership in the context of strategic management of construction companies competitiveness. *IOP Conference Series Earth and Environmental Science*, 751(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/751/1/012173
- Sepulveda, T. (2021). Barriers to hiring and accommodating people with disabilities in small and medium sized businesses: A scoping review. *Journal of Applied Rehabilitation Counseling*, 52(2), 104-114. https://doi.org/10.1891/JARC-D-20-00013
- Shafi, M., Sarker, M. N. I., & Junrong, L. (2019). Social network of small creative firms and its effects on innovation in developing countries. *SAGE Open*, *9*(4), Article 2158244019898248. https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244019898248

- Shafiq, M., Munir, A., & Aziz, K. (2021). Conceptualizing Islamic scholar's perspective on corporal punishment of children in Pakistan. *FWU Journal of Social Sciences*, 15(2), 65-75. https://doi.org/10.51709/19951272/Summer-2/4
- Shaw, E. H. (2020). Constructing a partially formalized general theory of the marketing system: Insights from the history of marketing thought. *Journal of Historical Research in Marketing*, 12(2), 263-283. https://doi.org/10.1108/JHRM-11-2019-0046
- Shayestehfar, R., & Yazdani, B. (2019). Bank service quality: A comparison of service quality between BSI branches in Isfahan and Dubai. *TQM Journal*, *31*(1), 28-51. https://doi.org/10.1108/TQM-04-2018-0052
- Sheikh, Z. A., & Hoeyer, K. (2019). "Stop talking to people; talk with them": A qualitative study of information needs and experiences among genetic research participants in Pakistan and Denmark. *Journal of Empirical Research on Human Research Ethics*, 14(1), 3–14. https://doi.org/10.1177/1556264618780810
- Sherman, L. (2017). If your market is a competitive dogfight, think like a cat. *Strategy & Leadership*, 45(1), 11–19. https://doi.org/10.1108/SL-01-2017-0002
- Shibin, K. T., Dubey, R., Gunasekaran, A., Hazen, B., Roubaud, D., Gupta, S., & Foropon, C. (2020). Examining sustainable supply chain management of SMEs using resource based view and institutional theory. *Annals of Operations**Research*, 290(1/2), 301–326. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10479-017-2706-x

- Shin, H., & Lee, S. (2019). Firm resource stock, resource complementarity, and the heterogeneity in resource value: APJM. *Asia Pacific Journal of Management,* 36(3), 661-686. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10490-018-9564-1
- Shoaib, S., & Baruch, Y. (2019). Deviant behavior in a moderated-mediation framework of incentives, organizational justice perception, and reward expectancy:

 JBE. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 157(3), 617-633. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-017-3651-y
- Shokrani, M., Haghighi, M., Paricheh, M., & Shokrani, M. (2019). A comparison of statistical and decision-making techniques in marketing mix evaluation. *The Journal of Management Development*, 38(10), 847-863.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/JMD-08-2018-0228
- Shu, E. (2017). Emergent strategy in an entrepreneurial firm: The case of Lenovo in its formative years. *International Journal of Emerging Markets*, 12(3), 625-636. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJoEM-01-2016-0016
- Shuck, B., Nimon, K., & Zigarmi, D. (2017). Untangling the predictive homological validity of employee engagement: Partitioning variance in employee engagement using job attitude measures. *Group & Organization Management*, 42(1), 79–112. https://doi.org/10.1177/1059601116642364
- Shutt, J., & Liddle, J. (2020). Comparing the development of local industrial strategies across the northern powerhouse: Key emerging issues. *Local Economy*, *35*(4), 297–315. https://doi.org/10.1177/0269094220959299

- Sidenius, U., Stigsdotter, U. K., Poulsen, D. V., & Bondas, T. (2017). "I look at my own forest and fields in a different way": The lived experience of nature-based therapy in a therapy garden when suffering from stress-related illness. *International Journal of Qualitative Studies on Health and Well-being, 12*(1), 1-14. https://doi.org/10.1080/17482631.2017.1324700
- Sikandar, A. Q., Li, W., Ahmed, N., Manzoor, A. M., & Khan, A. (2021). Examining the factors affecting SME performance: The mediating role of social media adoption. Sustainability, 13(1), 75. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13010075
- Simsek, Z., Heavey, C., & Fox, B. C. (2018). Interfaces of strategic leaders: A conceptual framework, review, and research agenda. *Journal of Management*, 44(1), 280–324. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206317739108
- Skingley, A., Clift, S., Hurley, S., Price, S., & Stephens, L. (2018). Community singing groups for people with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: Participant perspectives. *Perspectives in Public Health*, *138*(1), 66–75.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1757913917740930
- Skolarus, L. E., Neshewat, G. M., Evans, L., Green, M., Rehman, N., Landis-Lewis, Z., & Sales, A. E. (2019). Understanding determinants of acute stroke thrombolysis using the tailored implementation for chronic diseases framework: A qualitative study. *BMC Health Services Research*, 19(1), 1-9. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12913-019-4012-6

- Slack, N. J., & Singh, G. (2020). The effect of service quality on customer satisfaction, loyalty, and the mediating role of customer satisfaction: Supermarkets in Fiji. TQM Journal, 32(3), 543-558. https://doi.org/10.1108/TQM-07-2019-0187
- Smart, M., Sadler, R., Harris, A., Buchalski, Z., Pearson, A., & Furr-Holden, C. (2019).

 The population randomization observation process (PROP) assessment method:

 Using systematic habitation observations of street segments to establish household-level epidemiologic population samples. *International Journal of Health Geographic*, 18(1), 1-7. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12942-019-0190-z
- Sobrinho, J. F., Araújo, A. P. M., Falcão, I. L. C., & Falcao, I. L. C. (2017). Nature medium ambient and the general theory of systems: Environmental, economic and legal bases. *Holos*, *33*(8), 104-125. https://doi.org/10.15628/holos.2017.3485
- Sołoducho-Pelc, L., & Sulich, A. (2020). Between sustainable and temporary competitive advantages in the unstable business environment. *Sustainability*, *12*(21), 8832. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12218832
- Solomon, Y., & Bronstein, J. (2021). The information-gathering practice of liberal professionals in a workplace setting: More than just seeking information. *Journal of Librarianship and Information Science*, *54*(1), 54-68.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/0961000621992810
- Soroush, A., Andayeshgar, A. A., Vahdat, A., & Khatony, A. (2018). Exploring the perceived factors that affect self-medication among nursing students: A qualitative study. *BMC Nursing*, 17(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12912-018-0302-

- Sourinejad, H., Noroozi, M., Taleghani, F., & Kheirabadi, G. R. (2020). The process of risky sexual behaviors formation in women drug users: A protocol for a grounded theory study. *Reproductive Health*, *17*(1), 1-5. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12978-020-00936-5
- Souza, S. A., Silva, D. E. P., & Abreu, A. F. (2019). Absorptive capacity of signals captured from environment for innovation. *Revista de Administração Mackenzie*, 20(6), 1–27. https://doi.org/10.1590/1678-6971/eRAMD190029
- Sperber, S., & Linder, C. (2018). The impact of top management teams on firm innovativeness: A configurational analysis of demographic characteristics, leadership style and team power distribution. *Review of Managerial Science*, 12(1), 285-316. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11846-016-0222-z
- Stead, V., & Elliott, C. (2019). Pedagogies of power: Media artefacts as public pedagogy for women's leadership development. *Management Learning*, 50(2), 171–188. https://doi.org/10.1177/1350507618806793
- Stefaniuk, T. (2020). Training in shaping employee information security awareness.

 *Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues, 7(3), 1832-1846.

 https://doi.org/10.9770/jesi.2020.7.3(26)
- Stosic-Panic, D. (2019). The strategic choices of Serbian entrepreneurs: Are they entrepreneurially oriented and do they differ by gender? *Ekonomski Anali / Economic Annals*, 64(222), 147–172. https://doi.org/10.2298/EKA1922147S
- Su, H., Fang, S., & Young, C. (2013). Influences of relationship transparency from intellectual capital reporting on supply chain partnerships with suppliers: A field

- experiment. *Supply Chain Management*, *18*(2), 178-193. https://doi.org/10.1108/13598541311318818
- Suh, J. T. (2018). Strategies for used car dealership owners to sustain business in a competitive environment (Order No. 10973730). [Doctoral Dissertations, Walden University]. ProQuest Dissertation and Theses Global.
- Sulieman, M. (2017). Attitudes of Jordanian students toward managers' leadership styles and their relationship to the national culture. *Journal of Applied Business**Research, 33(2), 351-362. https://doi.org/10.19030/jabr.v33i2.9909
- Sun, C., Chen, H., & Liao, R. (2021). Research on incentive mechanism and strategy choice for passing on intangible cultural heritage from masters to apprentices.

 Sustainability, 13(9), 5245. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13095245
- Sun, J., Wu, S., & Yang, K. (2018). An eco-systemic framework for business sustainability. *Business Horizons*, 61(1), 59–72. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bushor.2017.09.006
- Sun, S. L., Xiao, J., Zhang, Y., & Zhao, X. (2018). Building business models through simple rules. *Multinational Business Review*, 26(4), 361-378.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/MBR-08-2017-0053
- Šviráková, E., & Bianchi, G. (2018). Design thinking, systems thinking, grounded theory, and system dynamics modeling—an integrative methodology for social sciences and humanities: Post disciplinary humanities & social sciences quarterly. *Human Affairs*, 28(3), 312-327. https://doi.org/10.1515/humaff-2018-0025

- Syapsan. (2019). The effect of service quality, innovation towards competitive advantages and sustainable economic growth: Marketing mix strategy as mediating variable. *Benchmarking*, 26(4), 1336-1356. https://doi.org/10.1108/BIJ-10-2017-0280
- Syed, A. R., Qazi, W., Umer, B., & Khan, K. A. (2020). Influence of social networking sites on life satisfaction among university students: A mediating role of social benefit and social overload. *Health Education*, 120(2), 141-164.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/HE-07-2019-0034
- Taba, M., Lewis, L., Spring, C. C., Albury, K., Kon Shing, K. C., Lim, M., & Skinner, S.
 R. (2020). What adolescents think of relationship portrayals on social media: A qualitative study. *Sexual Health (Online)*, 17(5), 467-474.
 https://doi.org/10.1071/SH20056
- Taboada, G. L., & Han, L. (2020). Exploratory data analysis and data envelopment analysis of urban rail transit. *Electronics*, *9*(8), 1270. https://doi.org/10.3390/electronics9081270
- Taghreed, A. S., Sundarakani, B., & Lasrado, F. (2019). The relationship between TQM practices and organizational innovation outcomes: Moderating and mediating the role of slack. *TQM Journal*, *31*(6), 874-907. https://doi.org/10.1108/TQM-11-2018-0160
- Taheri, B., Coelho, F. J., Sousa, C. M. P., & Evanschitzky, H. (2017). Mood regulation, customer participation, and customer value creation in hospitality services.

- International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management, 29(12), 3063-3081. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJCHM-07-2016-0389
- Takahashi, A. R. W., Bulgacov, S., & Giacomini, M. (2017). Dynamic capabilities, operational capabilities (educational-marketing) and performance. *Revista Brasileira De Gestão De Negócios*, 19(65), 375-393.

 https://doi.org/10.7819/rbgn.v0i0.2831
- Tamminen, M., Betz, A., Pereira, A. L., Thali, M., Matthews, B., Suter, M. J., & Narwani, A. (2018). Proteome evolution under nonsubstitutable resource limitation. *Nature Communications*, 9, 1-10. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41467-018-07106-z
- Tapera, O., Dreyer, G., Nyakabau, A. M., Stray-Pedersen, W., & Heinrich Hendricks, S. J. (2021). Model strategies to address barriers to cervical cancer treatment and palliative care among women in Zimbabwe: A public health approach. *BMC Women's Health*, 21, 1-11. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12905-021-01322-4
- Tauetsile, J. (2021). Employee engagement in non-Western contexts: The link between social resources Ubuntu and employee engagement. *International Journal of Cross Cultural Management*, 21(2), 245-259.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/14705958211007874
- Taylor, R., Torugsa, N., & Arundel, A. (2020). Transformed management scholarship and ways forward for exploring social innovation in organizations. *International Studies of Management & Organization*, 50(2), 107–129.

 https://doi.org/10.1080/00208825.2020.1758420

- Ter Wal, A. L. J., Criscuolo, P., McEvily, B., & Salter, A. (2020). Dual networking: How collaborators network in their quest for innovation. Administrative science quarterly, 65(4), 887–930. https://doi.org/10.1177/0001839219893691
- Tessema, T. T., Alamdo, A. G., Mekonnen, E. B., Debele, F. A., Bamud, J. A., Abessa, T. G., & Tefera, B. L. (2021). Enhancing the ethical conduct of a longitudinal cluster-randomized trial of psychosocial stimulation intervention for children with complicated severe acute malnutrition through rapid ethical assessment: A qualitative study. *BMC Medical Ethics*, 22, 1-13. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12910-021-00578-7
- Thakur, R., Hale, D., & AlSaleh, D. (2018). Manager's report: Organizational culture & strategy association. *Foresight: The Journal of Futures Studies, Strategic Thinking, and Policy*, 20(4), 375-392. https://doi.org/10.1108/FS-02-2018-0015
- Theeke, M., & Lee, H. (2017). Multimarket contact and rivalry over knowledge-based resources. *Strategic Management Journal*, *38*(12), Article 2508-2531. https://doi.org/10.1002/smj.2676
- Thomas, F. S., DeSousa, J. M., Moore, C. P., Hardcastle, A., & David, W. W. (2021).

 App use and usability of a barcode-based digital platform to augment COVID-19 contact tracing: Postpilot survey and paradata analysis. *JMIR Public Health and Surveillance*, 7(3). https://doi.org/10.2196/25859
- Tibbetts, R. H., & Lutter, S. B. (2018). Associations of health and financial resources with stress: Applying the theory of conservation of resources. *Journal of*

- Financial Counseling and Planning, 29(1), 60-67. https://doi.org/10.1891/1052-3073.29.1.60
- Tjaden, C. D., Mulder, C. L., Jaap, v. W., Delespaul, P., Keet, R., Castelein, S., Boumans, J., Leeman, E., Malm, U., & Kroon, H. (2019). The resource group method in severe mental illness: Study protocol for a randomized controlled trial and a qualitative multiple case study. *International Journal of Mental Health Systems*, 13(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s13033-019-0270-2
- Toews, I., Booth, A., Berg, R. C., Lewin, S., Glenton, C., Munthe-Kaas, H. M., & Meerpohl, J. J. (2017). Dissemination bias in qualitative research: Conceptual considerations. *Journal of Clinical Epidemiology*. 88, 133-139. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclinepi.2017.04.010
- Tomaszewski, L. E., Zarestky, J., & Gonzalez, E. (2020). Planning qualitative research:

 Design and decision making for new researchers. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 19, Article 160940692096717.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406920967174
- Tomé, E., & Gromova, E. (2021). Development of emergent knowledge strategies and new dynamic capabilities for business education in a time of crisis. *Sustainability*, *13*(8), 4518. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13084518
- Toussaint-Comeau, M., Wang, Y. D., & Newberger, R. (2020). Impact of bank closings on credit extension to businesses in low-income and minority neighborhoods. *The Review of Black Political Economy*, 47(1), 20–49. https://doi.org/10.1177/0034644619885343

- Tracey, S., O'Sullivan, T. L., Lane, D. E., Guy, E., & Courtemanche, J. (2017).

 Promoting resilience using an asset-based approach to business continuity planning. *SAGE Open*, 7(2), Article 215824401770671.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244017706712
- Tremayne, E., Freeman, J., & Coppola, A. (2021). Stroke survivors' experiences and perceptions of post-stroke fatigue education in the subacute phase of stroke. The FASE qualitative study. *British Journal of Occupational Therapy*, 84(2), 111–121. https://doi.org/10.1177/0308022620963741
- Truong, T. D., Hallinger, P., & Sanga, K. (2017). Confucian values and school leadership in Vietnam: Exploring the influence of culture on principal decision making.

 *Educational Management Administration & Leadership, 45(1), 77–100.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1741143215607877
- Turner, S., & Endres, A. (2017). Strategies for enhancing small-business owners' success rates. *International Journal of Applied Management & Technology*, *16*(1), 34–49. https://doi.org/10.5590/IJAMT.2017.16.1.03
- Tzavlopoulos, I., Gotzamani, K., Andronikidis, A., & Vassiliadis, C. (2019). Determining the impact of e-commerce quality on customers' perceived risk, satisfaction, value and loyalty. *International Journal of Quality and Service Sciences*, 11(4), 576-587. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQSS-03-2019-0047
- Ujwary-Gil, A. (2017). The business model and intellectual capital in the value creation of firms. *Baltic Journal of Management*, 12(3), 368-386. https://doi.org/10.1108/BJM-10-2016-0224

- Ullah, A., Iqbal, S., & SM, R. S. (2020). Impact of CRM adoption on organizational performance: Moderating role of technological turbulence. *Competitiveness Review*, 32(1), 59-77. https://doi.org/10.1108/CR-11-2019-0128
- Umanto, W. C., & Andreo, W. A. (2018). Intellectual capital performance of regional development banks in Indonesia. *Banks and Bank Systems*, *13*(3), 36-47. https://doi.org/10.21511/bbs.13(3).2018.04
- U.S. Department of Commerce. (2012). *Motor Vehicle Sales The 2012 Statistical*Abstract U.S. Retrieved from http://www.search.commerce.gov
- U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. (2016). *The Belmont Report. Ethical*principles and guidelines for the protection of human subjects of research.

 Retrieved from https://www.hhs.gov/
- U.S. Small Business Administration. (2016). *Annual report of the office of economic research*. Retrieved from https://www.sba.gov/sites/default/files/OER_Annual_Report_FY2016
- Uwizeyemungu, S., Raymond, L., Poba-Nzaou, P., & St-Pierre, J. (2018). The complementarity of IT and HRM capabilities for competitive performance: A configurational analysis of manufacturing and industrial service SMEs. *Enterprise Information Systems*, *12*(10), 1336–1358.
- Valentinov, V. (2017). Wiener and luhmann on feedback: From complexity to sustainability. *Kybernetes*, 46(3), 386-399. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-11-2016-

https://doi.org/10.1080/17517575.2018.1448118

0317

- Valls-Fox, H., De Garine-Wichatitsky, M., Fritz, H., & Chamaillé-Jammes, S. (2018).
 Resource depletion versus landscape complementation: Habitat selection by a multiple central place forager. *Landscape Ecology*, 33(1), 127–140.
 https://doi.org/10.1007/s10980-017-0588-6
- Van Trang, T., Do, Q. H., & Luong, M. H. (2019). Entrepreneurial human capital, role models, and fear of failure and start-up perception of feasibility among adults in Vietnam. *International Journal of Engineering Business Management*, 11, Article 1847979019873269. https://doi.org/10.1177/1847979019873269
- Van Weele, M. A., van Rijnsoever, F. J., Groen, M., & Moors, E. H. M. (2020). Gimme shelter? Heterogeneous preferences for tangible and intangible resources when choosing an incubator. *The Journal of Technology Transfer*, *45*(4), 984–1015. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10961-019-09724-1
- Van Wijk, J., Zietsma, C., Dorado, S., de Bakker, F. G. A., & Martí, I. (2019). Social innovation: Integrating micro, meso, and macro level insights from institutional theory. *Business & Society*, 58(5), 887–918.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/0007650318789104
- Vasil, K. (2020). In memoriam: Errol bazar and the general systems theory—a personal reminiscence. *Biological Cybernetics*, *114*(3), 419-420. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00422-020-00836-8
- Vatuiu, T., & Lazaroiu, G. (2019). Using renewable energy sources in the context of promoting a conceptual model for sustainable cloud computing. *Surveying*

Geology & Mining Ecology Management (SGEM). 19(4), 593-601 https://doi.org/10.5593/sgem2019/4.1/S17.076

Venables, K., Fear, N., Carpenter, L., Keegan, T., Brooks, C., & Archer, G. (2019).
P.1.36 Occupational cohort studies: Safeguarding a valuable resource.
Occupational and Environmental Medicine, 76(1), 86.
https://doi.org/10.1136/OEM-2019-EPI.234

Verma, P., & Sharma, R. (2019). The linkages between business strategies, culture, and compensation using miles & snows and Hofstede culture framework in conglomerate firms. *Benchmarking*, 26(4), 1132-1160.

https://doi.org/10.1108/BIJ-06-2017-0153

- Viergever, R. F. (2019). The critical incident technique: Method or methodology?

 **Qualitative Health Research*, 29(7), 1065–1079.*

 https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732318813112
- Viglioni, M. T. D., & Calegario, C. L. L. (2021). How firm size moderates the knowledge and Affects the innovation performance? Evidence from Brazilian manufacturing firms. *Revista Ibero-Americana de Estratégia (RIAE)*, 20, 1–20. https://doi.org/10.5585/riae.v20i1.15567
- Vila-Lopez, N., & White, G. (2018). North American entrepreneurs in Cuba: Which entry mode and government affiliation strategy? *European Journal of Management and Business Economics*, 27(3), 285-303. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJMBE-12-2017-0065

- Villamañán, E., Sobrino, C., Freire, M., Inmaculada, J. N., Luis, S., Patricia, L., & Moreno, M. (2020). 6ER-023 the role of institutional review boards, and hospital pharmacists as members, in the informed consent process in clinical research: A retrospective observational study. *European Journal of Hospital Pharmacy*.
 Science and Practice, 27, Article 215. https://doi.org/10.1136/ejhpharm-2020-eahpconf.458
- Visser, A., du Preez, P., & Simmonds, S. (2019). Reflections on life design narrative inquiry as a methodology for research with child sex trafficking survivors. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods, 18*, Article 160940691985755. https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406919857553
- Vivel-Búa, M., & Lado-Sestayo, R. (2021). Contagion effect on business failure: A spatial analysis of the hotel sector. *Journal of Hospitality & Tourism Research*, 22(3), 593-607. https://doi.org/10.1177/10963480211023804
- Vluggen, R., Gelderman, C. J., Semeijn, J., & Marc, v. P. (2019). Sustainable public

 Procurement—external forces and accountability. *Sustainability*, *11*(20), 5696.

 https://doi.org/10.3390/su11205696
- Wahyono. (2020). The mediating effects of product innovation in relation between knowledge management and competitive advantage. *The Journal of Management Development*, 39(1), 18-30. https://doi.org/10.1108/JMD-11-2018-0331
- Walker, R. (2021). Communication perspectives on organizational culture and organizational identification. *International Journal of Business Communication*, 58(2), 147–151. https://doi.org/10.1177/2329488420957073

- Waller, T. C., Hockin, R. J., & Smith, G. S. (2017). Marketing strategies of mobile game application entrepreneurs. *International Journal of Applied Management and Technology*, *16*(1), 1-14. Available from https://search.proquest.com
- Walton, S., Roberson, K., Onsomu, E. O., Hall, S., & Dearman, C. (2019). Evaluating centering group prenatal care in rural women with low socioeconomic status to promote access to care and improve pregnancy outcomes. *Journal of Public Health*, 29(2), 285-291. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10389-019-01121-0
- Wamba-Taguimdje, S.-L., Fosso Wamba, S., Kala Kamdjoug, J. R., & Tchatchouang Wanko, C. E. (2020). Influence of artificial intelligence (AI) on firm performance: The business value of AI-based transformation projects. *Business Process Management Journal*, 26(7), 1893-1924. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-10-2019-0411
- Wang, R., Liu, L., & Yu, F. (2021). An empirical investigation on the impact of marketing strategy style on firm performance: Evidence from public firms in china. *Journal of Contemporary Marketing Science*, 4(2), 280-299. https://doi.org/10.1108/JCMARS-05-2021-0013
- Wang, X. (2021). Research on the application of computer software technology in big data. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1856(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1856/1/012009
- Wapshott, R., & Mallett, O. (2018). Small and medium-sized enterprise policy: Designed to fail? *Environment and Planning C: Politics and Space*, *36*(4), 750–772. https://doi.org/10.1177/2399654417719288

- Waqar, M. A., Uddin, G. M., Ahmad, H. K., Muhammad, H. K., Awais, A. K., Ahmad,
 H. A., & Krzywanski, J. (2020). Optimization of a 660 MW supercritical power plant Performance—A case of industry 4.0 in the data-driven operational management. Part 2. Power generation. *Energies*, 13(21), 5619.
 https://doi.org/10.3390/en13215619
- Wasiuzzaman, S. (2019). Resource sharing in interfirm alliances between SMEs and large firms and SME access to finance: A study of Malaysian SMEs. *Management Research Review*, 42(12), 1375-1399. https://doi.org/10.1108/MRR-10-2018-0369
- Wassermann, S. N., Hind-Ozan, E., & Seaman, J. (2018). Reassessing public opinion of captive cetacean attractions with a photo elicitation survey. *PeerJ*, 6, Article 5953. https://doi.org./10.7717/peerj.5953
- Watt, C., Dawson, E., Tullo, A., Pooley, A., & Rice, H. (2020). Testing precognition and alterations of consciousness with selected participants in the Ganzfeldd. *The Journal of Parapsychology*, 84(1), 21-37.

 https://doi.org.org/10.30891/jopar2020.01.05
- Wegman, L. A., Hoffman, B. J., Carter, N. T., Twenge, J. M., & Guenole, N. (2018).
 Placing job characteristics in context: Cross-temporal meta-analysis of changes in job characteristics since 1975. *Journal of Management*, 44(1), 352–386.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206316654545

- Weinberger, A. B., Iyer, H., & Green, A. E. (2016). Conscious augmentation of creative state enhances "real" creativity in open-ended analogical reasoning. *PLoS One*, 11(3), 773. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0150773
- Weinstein, A. (2020). Creating superior customer value in the now economy. *Journal of Creating Value*, 6(1), 20–33. https://doi.org/10.1177/2394964319898962
- Wendt, L. M., Austermann, M. I., Rumpf, H., Thomasius, R., & Paschke, K. (2021).
 Requirements of a group intervention for adolescents with internet gaming disorder in a clinical setting: A qualitative interview study. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 18(15), 7813.
 https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph18157813
- Werner, E. L., Løchting, I., Storheim, K., & Grotle, M. (2018). A focus group study to understand biases and confounders in a cluster randomized controlled trial on low back pain in primary care in Norway. *BMC Family Practice*, 19 (1), 1-7. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12875-018-0759-9
- Whitmore, C., Baxter, P. E., Kaasalainen, S., & Ploeg, J. (2018). Protocol for a case study to explore the transition to practice of new graduate nurses in long-term care.

 SAGE Open Nursing, 4, Article 237796081879725.

 https://doi.org/10.1177/2377960818797251
- Widmann, A., & Mulder, R. H. (2018). Team learning behaviors and innovative work behavior in work teams. *European Journal of Innovation Management*, 21(3), 501-520. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJIM-12-2017-0194

- Wilson, J., Ward, C., & Fischer, R. (2013). Beyond culture learning theory: What can personality tell us about cultural competence? *Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology*, 44(6), 900–927. https://doi.org/10.1177/0022022113492889
- Winter, L. (2019). Organizational trauma: A phenomenological study of psychological organizational trauma and its effect on employees and organization. *Management* (18544223), 14(2), 117–136. https://doi.org/10.26493/1854-4231.14.117-136
- Wiseman, N., Rossmann, C., & Harris, N. (2019). A systematic review of data collection techniques used to measure preschool Children's knowledge of and preference for physical activity. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 16(6). https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph16060964
- Woermann, N. (2018). Focusing ethnography: Theory and recommendations for effectively combining video and ethnographic research. *Journal of Marketing Management*, *34*(5/6), 459–483. https://doi.org/10.1080/0267257X.2018.1441174
- Wolf, L. E., & Beskow, L. M. (2018). New and improved? 21st century cures act revisions to certificates of confidentiality. *American Journal of Law and Medicine*, 44(2-3), 343-358. https://doi.org/10.1177/0098858818789431
- Wolff, S., Schell, S., & Moog, P. (2020). Information asymmetries in intrafamily business succession. *BRQ Business Research Quarterly*, 25(2), 173-192. https://doi.org/10.1177/2340944420942525
- Wong-Riff, K. W. Y., Tsangaris, E., Goodacre, T., Forrest, C. R., Pusic, A. L., Cano, S. J., & Klassen, A. F. (2017). International multiphase mixed methods study protocol to develop a cross-cultural patient-reported outcome instrument for

- children and young adults with cleft lip and/or palate (CLEFT-Q). *BMJ Open*, 7(1), 467. https://doi.org/10.1136/bmjopen-2016-015467
- Wright, S., Daker-White, G., Newman, W., & Payne, K. (2018). Understanding barriers to the introduction of precision medicines in non-small cell lung cancer: A qualitative interview protocol [version 1; referees: 2 approved]. *Welcome Open Research*, 3, 24. https://doi.org/10.12688/wellcomeopenres.13976.1
- Xu, C. (2021). Research on quantitative analysis method of readers' demands in university library. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series, 1944*(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1944/1/012035
- Xu, J., Zhang, X., Zhao, Y., & Xu, B. (2021). Verification of air data computer software using formal methods. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1827(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1742-6596/1827/1/012207
- Xue, Y., Deng, X., & Sun, S. (2020). Analysis and simulation of the early warning model for human resource management risk based on the BP neural network.
 Complexity, 2020. https://doi.org/10.1155/2020/8838468
- Yang, C., & Lirn, T. (2017). Revisiting the resource-based view on logistics performance in the shipping industry. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management*, 47(9), 884-905. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPDLM-05-2017-0184
- Yang, F., & Zhang, H. (2018). The impact of customer orientation on new product development performance. *International Journal of Productivity and*

- Performance Management, 67(3), 590-607. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-08-2016-0166
- Yang, T., & Del-Carmen, T. M. (2019). Set up to fail: Explaining when women-led businesses are more likely to fail. *Journal of Management*, 45(3), 926–954. https://doi.org/10.1177/0149206316685856
- Yang, Z., Pan, Y., Sun, D., & Ma, L. (2021). Human capital and international capital flows: Evidence from China. *International Regional Science Review*. https://doi.org/10.1177/0160017621989421
- Yaşar, M. (2017). Adaptation of general system theory and structural family therapy approach to classroom management in early childhood education * **. *Çukurova University Faculty of Education Journal*, 46(2), 665-696.

 https://doi.org/10.14812/cuefd.300993
- Yau, H. K., & Tang, H. Y. H. (2018). Analyzing ecology of internet marketing in small-and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) with unsupervised-learning algorithm. *Journal of Marketing Analytics*, 6(2), 53-61.

 https://doi.org/10.1057/s41270-018-0030-1
- Yin, R. K. (2016). *Qualitative research from start to finish*. 2nd ed. New York: The Guilford Press.
- Yin, R. K. (2018). Case study research and applications (6th ed.). Sage Publications.
- Ying, Q., Hassan, H., & Habib, A. (2019). The role of a Manager's intangible capabilities in resource acquisition and sustainable competitive performance. *Sustainability*, 11(2). https://doi.org/10.3390/su11020527

- Yue, C., & Xu, X. (2019). Review of quantitative methods used in Chinese educational research, 1978–2018. *ECNU Review of Education*, 2(4), 515–543. https://doi.org/10.1177/2096531119886692
- Yuen, K. F., Wang, X., Ma, F., Lee, G., & Li, X. (2019). Critical success factors of supply chain integration in container shipping: an application of resource-based view theory. *Maritime Policy & Management*, 46(6), 653–668.
 https://doi.org/10.1080/03088839.2019.1597289
- Yuliansyah, Y., Gurd, B., & Mohamed, N. (2017). The significant of business strategy in improving organizational performance. *Humanomics*, *33*(1), 56-74. https://doi.org/10.1108/H-06-2016-0049
- YuSheng, K., & Ibrahim, M. (2020). Innovation capabilities, innovation types, and firm performance: Evidence from the banking sector of Ghana. *SAGE Open.* 10(2), https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244020920892
- Zarhin, D. (2018). Conducting joint interviews with couples: Ethical and methodological challenges. *Qualitative Health Research*, 28(5), 844–854. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732317749196
- Zeldenryk, L., Gray, M., Gordon, S., Speare, R., & Hossain, M. (2014). The use of focus groups to develop a culturally relevant quality of life tool for lymphatic filariasis in Bangladesh. *Quality of Life Research*, 23(1), 299-309. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11136-013-0455-0

- Zelt, S., Recker, J., Schmiedel, T., & Jan, v. B. (2019). A theory of contingent business process management. *Business Process Management Journal*, 25(6), 1291-1316. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-05-2018-0129
- Zemlickiene, V., & Turskis, Z. (2020). Evaluation of the expediency of technology commercialization: A case of information technology and biotechnology.

 *Technological & Economic Development of Economy, 26(1), 271–289.

 https://doi.org/10.3846/tede.2020.11918
- Zennaro, I., Battini, D., Sgarbossa, F., Persona, A., & De Marchi, R. (2018). Micro downtime: Data collection, analysis and impact on OEE in bottling lines the san benedetto case study. *The International Journal of Quality & Reliability*Management, 35(4), 965-995. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJQRM-11-2016-0202
- Zhai, J., Weller-Newton, J. M., Shimoinaba, K., Chen, H., & Copnell, B. (2020).

 Emerging from the "Ku:" fluctuating in adjusting with breast cancer—a post-traumatic growth theory situated within Chinese culture. *Qualitative Health*Research, 30(11), 1674–1683. https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732320930195
- Zhang, Z., Yousaf, Z., Radulescu, M., & Yasir, M. (2021). Nexus of digital organizational culture, capabilities, organizational readiness, and innovation:
 Investigation of SMEs operating in the digital economy. Sustainability, 13(2),
 720. https://doi.org/10.3390/su13020720
- Zhao, L., & Ha-Brookshire, J. (2018). The winning personality: Impact of founders' personality traits and firms' network relationships on Chinese apparel new

- venture performance. *International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behavior & Research*, 24(2), 553-573. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJEBR-09-2016-0281
- Zhou, H., Wang, Q., & Zhao, X. (2020). Corporate social responsibility and innovation:

 A comparative study. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 120(5), 863-882.

 https://doi.org/10.1108/IMDS-09-2019-0493
- Zhou, T., Tan, R., & Sedlin, T. (2018). Planning modes for major transportation infrastructure projects (MTIPs): Comparing china and Germany. *Sustainability*, 10(10), 3401. https://doi.org/10.3390/su10103401
- Zhu, J., Li, Q., & Shi, Y. (2021). Failure analysis of static analysis software module based on big data tendency prediction. *Complexity*, 2021. https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/6660830
- Zhu, X., & Bao, Z. (2018). Why people use social networking sites passively: An empirical study integrating impression management concern, privacy concern, and SNS fatigue. *Aslib Journal of Information Management*, 70(2), 158-175. https://doi.org/10.1108/AJIM-12-2017-0270
- Zieba, M., & Kończyński, P. (2020). Factors of successful client co-production in knowledge-intensive business services: Case study analysis. *Kybernetes*, 49(1), 141-164. https://doi.org/10.1108/K-04-2019-0297

Appendix A: Interview Protocol

Date of Interview: Code Assigned:
1. Introduce self to participant(s).
2. Introduce the research topic.
3. Thank the participant for taking the time to respond to the invitation to participate in
the study.
4. Present consent form, go over contents, and answer questions and concerns of
participant.
5. Give participant copy of consent form for review.
6. Turn on recording device.
7. Follow procedure to introduce participant(s) with pseudonym/coded identification;
note the date and time.
8. Begin interview with question #1. The interview will span approximately
1 hour for responses to the interview questions, including any additional follow-up
questions.
9. Remind the participant of the purpose of the proposal is to explore start-up strategies of
microenterprise entrepreneurial business owners used to succeed in business beyond 5
years.
10. End interview sequence; discuss the follow up member checking process with each
participant.
11. Thank the participant(s) for their part in the study. Reiterate contact numbers for
follow up questions and concerns from participants.

Appendix B: Interview Questions

Questions

- 1. What are the strategies you used for business sustainability in the competitive auto dealership market?
- 2. What methods did you use to assess the effectiveness of your strategies?
- 3. How, if at all, did you use the assessment data to change or enhance strategies for sustainability?
- 4. What were the adjustments, if any, made to achieve planned benchmarks?
- 5. What additional information would you like to provide to improve business skills to manage a small business through competitive advantage?